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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slziag

March 31, December 31
2015 2014

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 119517 $ 164,62(
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu 3,707,43! 3,404,14!
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 7,163,14. 8,441,52;
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alaae for loan losses of $0 million and $7 millioespectively - 626,11
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e: 5,132,90:; 4,699,21!
Receivable for investments sc 962,12: 1,572,05!
Accrued interest receivab 74,59¢ 71,09¢
Other asset 171,15: 172,60:
Derivatives, at fair value, n 9,78¢ 3,631
Total asset() $ 17,340,65 $ 19,155,00
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, RMBS ($9.3 billion and §i8i&n pledged as collateral, respective $ 8,296,222 $ 8,455,38
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMER.4 billion and $2.5 billion pledged as coltate
respectively’ 671,60: 704,91!
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifisestment ($0 million and $626 million pledgedcadiateral,
respectively - 521,99
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dgris held for investment ($5.1 billion and $4.dgled as
collateral, respectively 4,198,19; 3,868,36!
Payable for investments purcha: 489,78« 1,845,28:
Accrued interest payab 39,37: 31,88¢
Dividends payabl 98,67¢ 92,48:
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 71F 2,46¢
Investment management fees and expenses payaiffdiate 10,36¢ 10,35
Derivatives, at fair valu 12,527 14,17
Total liabilities® 13,817,46. 15,547,31
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 100000Ghares authorized, 0 shares issued and aditegan
respectively $ - $ =
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 300,00%;08res authorized, 205,576,893 and 205,546, latésh
issued and outstanding, respectiv 10,277 10,27¢
Additional paic-in-capital 3,606,64. 3,606,19:
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 1,005,50° 1,046,68!
Accumulated defici (1,099,23) (1,055,450
Total stockholders' equit $ 3,523,19 $ 3,607,69
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 17,340,65 $ 19,155,00

(1) The Company's consolidated statements of fiahonondition include assets of consolidated vdeahterest entities ("VIEs") that can only
used to settle obligations and liabilities of thk=Wor which creditors do not have recourse toghmary beneficiary (Chimera Investment
Corp.). As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2@dtd] assets of consolidated VIEs were $7,676d808V$7,924,232, respectively, and total

liabilities of consolidated VIEs were $4,885,3121&%5,111,348, respectively. See Note 8 for furtliscussion

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#sients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

For the Quarter Ende

March 31, March 31,
Net Interest Income: 2015 2014
Interest incom«?®) $ 243,14* $ 120,66’
Interest expens® 60,45¢ 22,42¢
Net interest incom 182,68¢ 98,24
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (1,052 (400
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensicere (6,769 (1,139
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (7,815 (1,539
Other investment gains (losses,
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 4,05¢ (2,199
Realized gains (losses) on terminations of intewst swap: (68,579 -
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (42,086 (5,74%¢)
Net gains (losses) on derivative (106,610 (7,946
Net unrealized gains (losses) on financial instnotsat fair value (20,42%) 15,01(
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 29,56¢ 8,371
Loss on Extinguishment of De - (2,189
Total other gains (losse (87,47() 13,251
Other expenses
Management fee 10,32¢ 6,221
Expense recoveries from Manay (1,119 (681)
Net management fet 9,21: 5,54(
General and administrative expen 11,14¢ 4 05¢
Total other expense 20,36: 9,59
Income before income taxe 67,04: 100,37(
Income taxe: 1 2
Net income $ 67,04: $ 100,36¢
Net income per share available to common shareholde
Basic $ 0.3z $ 0.5C
Diluted $ 0.3 3 0.5C
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 205,527,47 205,452,52
Diluted 205,566,95 205,517,75
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income $ 67,04. $ 100,36¢
Other comprehensive incomr
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni (29,919 37,50:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetkt income for other-than- temporary credit ainment
losses 7,81¢ 1,53¢
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggais) included in net incon (29,076 (8,377
Other comprehensive income (lo (41,177) 30,66(
Comprehensive incon $ 25,86¢ $ 131,02¢

(1) Includes interest income of consolidated VIE$150,618 and $85,211 for the quarters ended Mat¢t2015 and 2014 respectively. See No 3 8

for further discussior

(2) Includes interest expense of consolidated \GEB46,753 and $20,699 for the quarters ended Matcl2015 and 2014 respectively. See Nc

for further discussior

See accompanying notes to consolidated finana#sients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Accumulated

Common Other
Stock Par Additional Comprehensiv  Accumulatec
Value Paic-in Capita Income Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,27 $ 3,60524 $ 990,80: $ (1,274,80) $ 3,331,51
Net income - - - 100,36¢ 100,36¢
Other comprehensive income (lo - - 30,66( - 30,66(
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 1 65 - - 66
Common dividends declared, $0.45 per sl - - (92,459 (92,459
Balance, March 31, 201 $ 10,27¢ $ 3,60530 $ 1,021,46. $ (1,266,89) $ 3,370,15
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,27¢ $ 3,606,19 $ 104668 $ (1,05545) $ 3,607,69
Net income (loss - - - 67,04: 67,04
Cumulative effect of accounting char® - - - (12,137 (12,137
Other comprehensive income (lo - - (41,179 - (41,179
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 2 451 - - 452
Common dividends declared, $0.48 per sl - - - (98,679 (98,679
Balance, March 31, 201 $ 10,277 $ 3,606,64. $ 1,00550 $ (1,099,23) $ 3,523,19

(1) Adoption of ASU No. 201-13, Measuring the financial Assets and the financialdilities as a Consolodiated Collateralized FinamgiEntity.
See Note 2(p), Recent Accounting Pronouncement ftirer discussior

See accompanying notes to consolidated final
statements




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousand:

March 31, March 31,
2015 2014

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $ 67,04. $ 100, 36¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountefpiums, ne (12,89) (29,79)
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disotspremiums, ne 1,38¢ 2,91:
Net unrealized losses (gains) on derivati (4,055 2,19¢
Net realized losses (gains) on option contractiesk - 30¢
Proceeds (payments) for derivative sales and sedties (7,387 -
Margin (paid) received on derivativ 3,63 -
Net unrealized losses (gains) on financial instnotsat fair value 10,42¢ (15,010
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investn (29,569 (8,377)
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 7,81t 1,53¢
Loss on extinguishment of de - 2,18¢
Provision for loan losses, n - 31¢
Equity-based compensation expel 452 6€
Changes in operating asse

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivabte (3,497 4,67¢

Decrease (increase) in other as (5,087 (6,867)
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and ddbéities (1,759 (23¢€)

Increase (decrease) in investment management ridesx@enses payable to affilic 11 (299

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payatl 7,48 35
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 34,01 $ 64,02¢
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Agency RMBS portfolio

Purchase $ (2,549,19) $ (17,619

Sales 2,734,87. 397,57

Principal payment 343,06! 60,36"
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio

Purchase (478,93 (136,52

Sales 109,02( 16,23¢

Principal payment 70,14¢ 81,69
Securitized loans held for investme

Principal payment 167,401 34,00:
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ 396,37 $ 435,73:
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 12,717,78 $ 1,894,29

Payments on repurchase agreem (12,876,94) (1,990,93)

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatedlby loans held for investme (189,72) (32,99)

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaiedlby No-Agency RMBS (34,129 (53,17)

Repurchase of securitized debt borrowings, cobidiad by No-Agency RMBS - (56,072)

Common dividends pai (92,48 (297,904
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ (475,49) $ (536,78)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ (45,10) $ (37,027
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 164,62( 77,62¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 119517 $ 40,60:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest receive $ 226,74! $ 102,74t

Interest paic $ 54,35¢ $ 19,47

Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 10,31F $ 6,51F
Non-cash investing activities:

Receivable for investments sc $ 962,12: $ 88,53¢

Payable for investments purcha: $ 489,78 $ 176,15:

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ (41,17) $ 30,66(
Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet p $ 98,67¢ $ 92,45+




See accompanying notes to consolidated finana@#sients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Commganymenced operations on November
21, 2007 when it completed its initial public offeg. The Company elected to be taxed as a reateeisivestment trust (‘REIT”) under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and regulatiomaifgated thereunder (the “Code”). The Compamsnéa the following wholly-owned
qualified REIT subsidiaries: Chimera Securitiedditmys, LLC in July 2008; Chimera Asset Holding Lla@d Chimera Holding LLC in June 2009;
and Chimera Special Holding LLC in January 2010chtis a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chimera Assetditig LLC. In July 2010, the Company
formed CIM Trading Company LLC (“CIM Trading”), ahelly-owned taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”). In t@ber 2013, the Company formed
Chimera Funding TRS LLC (“CIM Funding TRS"), whitha wholly-owned TRS. In March 2015, the Compamyrfed Chimera Mortgage
Securities LLC, which is a wholly-owned qualifieER subsidiary (“QRS”).

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apxmately 4.4% of the Company’s common sharesf ddasch 31, 2015. The Company is
managed by Fixed Income Discount Advisory CompdRIDAC”), an investment advisor registered with tBecurities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamtisrelated notes of the Company have been prepasadordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States ("GAARY)the opinion of management, all adjustments cemeitinecessary for a fair presentation of the
Company's financial position, results of operatiand cash flows have been included. Certain gear amounts have been reclassified to conform
to the current year’s presentation. All per stEr®unts, common shares outstanding and restribteésfor the first quarter of 2015 and all prior
periods reflect the Company's 1-for-5 reverse sgptit, which was effective April 6, 2015.

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, theuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, and
variable interest entities (“VIES”) in which the @pany is the primary beneficiary. All intercompdralances and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

The Company uses securitization trusts consideree VIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. VIEs are defined as entities in
which equity investors (i) do not have the chanasties of a controlling financial interest, or)(do not have sufficient equity at risk for theignto
finance its activities without additional subordieé financial support from other parties. The grttitat consolidates a VIE is known as its primary
beneficiary, and is generally the entity with fiptpower to direct the activities that most sigmifitly impact the VIEs’ economic performance, and
(ii) the right to receive benefits from the VIE thie obligation to absorb losses of the VIE thatiddoe significant to the VIE. For VIEs that do not
have substantial on-going activities, the powatitect the activities that most significantly imp#we VIES’ economic performance may be
determined by an entity’s involvement with the desand structure of the VIE.

The trusts are structured as pass through ertfiiseceive principal and interest on the undedydollateral and distribute those payments to the
certificate holders. The assets held by the sézatibn entities are restricted in that they catyde used to fulfill the obligations of the seitiaation
entity. The Companyg'risks associated with its involvement with the#es are limited to its risks and rights as a diedie holder of the bonds it t
retained. There have been no recent changes tathee of risks associated with the Company’s lwvement with VIEs.




Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determined fibr the securitizations it consolidates, its
ownership of substantially all subordinate intesgsbvides the Company with the obligation to abdosses or the right to receive benefits from the
VIE that could be significant to the VIE. In addit, the Company has the power to direct the ai/bf the VIEs that most significantly impact the
VIEs’ economic performance (“power”) such as riglutslirect servicer activity or the Company wasdeitined to have power in connection with its
involvement with the purpose and design of the VIE.

The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidatedrenCompany’s Statements of Financial
Condition, is restricted by the structural provis®f these entities, and a recovery of the Comipanyestment in the vehicles will be limited by
each entity’s distribution provisions. The liabé# of the securitization vehicles, which are alsosolidated on the Company’s Statements of
Financial Condition, are non-recourse to the Corgipand can generally only be satisfied from eadusgzation vehicle’'s respective asset pool.

The securitization entities are comprised of sedliasses of residential mortgage backed secu(ff®dBS”) and residential mortgage loans. See
Notes 3, 4 and 8 for further discussion of the abt@ristics of the securities and loans in the Gamy's portfolio.

(b) Statements of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@naldition include both the Company’s direct assets liabilities and the assets and liabilities
of consolidated securitization vehicles. Asseteaith consolidated VIE can only be used to satigfyobligations of that VIE, and the liabilities of
consolidated VIEs are non-recourse to the Compdtme Company is not obligated to provide, nor dbegend to provide, any financial support to
these consolidated securitization vehicles. Thestu the consolidated financial statements desthi& Company’s direct assets and liabilities and
the assets and liabilities of consolidated seaatitbn vehicles. See Note 8 for additional infotiovarelated to the Company’s investments in
consolidated securitization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handashddeposited overnight in money market fundschvhre not bank deposits and are not insured
or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit InsurancedZatipn. There were no restrictions on cash anld egsivalents at March 31, 2015 and Decer
31, 2014.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed Securite

The Company invests in mortgage backed securitB$”) representing interests in obligations backsdpools of mortgage loans. The Company
delineates between Agency MBS and Non-Agency MB®Bl&svs: Agency MBS are mortgage pass-throughifteates, collateralized mortgage
obligations (“*CMOs"), and other MBS representintgiests in or obligations backed by pools of may&gkvans issued or guaranteed by agencies of
the U.S. Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or felyechbrtered corporations such as Freddie Mac onigaviae where principal and interest
repayments are guaranteed by the respective agétiog U.S. Government or federally chartered caapon. Non-Agency RMBS are not issued or
guaranteed by a U.S. Government Agency or othéitutien and are subject to credit risk. Repaynirincipal and interest on Non-Agency
RMBS is subject to the performance of the mortdagas or MBS collateralizing the obligation.

The Company also invests in Interest Only AgencySWrips and Non-Agency RMBS strips (“10 MBS stijpslO MBS strips represent the
Company’s right to receive a specified proportiéthe contractual interest flows of the collatetaterest income on 10 MBS strips is accrued based
on the outstanding notional balance and the sg&udbntractual terms, and amortization of any @remis calculated in accordance with the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification (“ASC") 325-4Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial
Assety(*ASC 325-40"). The Company accounts for IO MB8p#t at fair value with changes in fair value reciegd in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

The Company classifies the majority of its MBS waailable-for-sale and records investments at eséichfair value as described in Note 5 of these
consolidated financial statements. The Companyd®s unrealized gains and losses considered tentygorary on all MBS in Other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) in the Consolidated Statements oe@ions and Comprehensive Income. For 1O strijlscartain other MBS investments, the
Company has elected the fair value option and tiessstments are recorded at estimated fair vatdea#l unrealized gains and losses are includ
earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Opermtad Comprehensive Income. From time to timgaatsof the overall management of its
portfolio, the Company may sell any of its invesitiseand recognize a realized gain or loss as a aoemt of earnings in the Consolidated Staten

of Operations and Comprehensive Income utilizirgaherage cost method.




The Company’s accounting policy for interest incaane impairment related to its MBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on MBS secusitiaries depending on the characteristics of tbergg as follows:

Agency MBS and No-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

FASB ASC 310-20Nonrefundable Fees and Other CogSC 310-20") is applied to the recognition ofénést income for the following securities:

e Agency MBS
e Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following conditiat the acquisition date (referred to hereafée¢* Non-Agency RMBS of Hig
Credit Quality’):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized credliing agency using the lowest rating availa
2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow
3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid shehthe Company would not recover substantiallpfits recorded investmer

Under ASC 310, interest income, including premiums and dist®associated with the acquisition of these seesrits recognized over the life
such securities using the interest method basedeocontractual cash flows of the security. In g the interest method, the Company considers
estimates of future principal prepayments in theuwation of the effective yield. Differences thaise between previously anticipated prepayments
and actual prepayments received, as well as chamdesire prepayment assumptions, result in alcetation of the effective yield on the security

a quarterly basis. This recalculation results srécognition of an adjustment to the carrying amadi the security based on the revised prepayment
assumptions and a corresponding increase or dedreasported interest income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Norn-Agency RMBS purchased at a discount and not df bigdit quality at the time of purchase are actedifor under ASC 310-3Qans and
Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Creditality (“ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-40 (referred to hereafisr‘Non-Agency RMBS Not of High
Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3R0éffollowing conditions are met as of the acqgigaidate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyadbt the security from its inceptio
2. It is probable that the Company will be unabledtiext all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if abtguisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (definaslrated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otlerveettled in such a way that the Company wouldrecover substantially all of
recorded investmer

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gté&lality is recognized using the interest methaded on management’s estimates of cash
flows expected to be collected. The effective ie$érate on these securities is based on managsrestitnate for each security of the projected cash
flows, which are estimated based on observati@upoknt market information and include assumpti@tasted to fluctuations in prepayment speeds
and the timing and amount of credit losses. Qugrtdre Company reviews and, if appropriate, madjsstments to its cash flow projections based
on inputs and analyses received from external esuinternal models, and the Company’s judgmerdstgirepayment rates, the timing and amount
of credit losses, and other factors. Changes imtheunt or timing of cash flows from those origipadrojected, or from those estimated at the last
evaluation date, are considered to be either pesitianges or adverse changes. For securitiesraecoior under ASC 325-40, any positive or
adverse change in cash flows that does not resthei recognition of an other-than-temporary impaint (“OTTI”) results in a prospective increase
or decrease in the effective interest rate useddognize interest income. For securities accoufaiednder ASC 310-30, only significant positive
changes are reflected prospectively in the effedtiterest rate used to recognize interest incofrtverse changes in cash flows expected to be
collected are generally treated consistently forSQviEcounted for under ASC 325-40 and ASC 310-3® ganerally result in recognition of an OTTI
with no change in the effective interest rate usekcognize interest income.




Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all MBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale MB%esss than its amortized cost the security is a®red impaired. On a quarterly basis the Company
evaluates its securities for OTTI. If the Compartends to sell an impaired security, or it is mbkely-than-not that the Company will be required

to sell an impaired security before its anticipatecbvery, then the Company must recognize an @rbugh a charge to earnings equal to the entire
difference between the investment’s amortized andtits fair value at the measurement date. Ibmpany does not intend to sell an impaired
security and it is not more-likely-thamst that it would be required to sell an impairedwgity before recovery, the Company must furtivedeate the
security for impairment due to credit losses. Tieglit component of OTTI is recognized in earningd the remaining or non-credit component is
recorded as a component of OCI. Following the rait@m of an OTTI through earnings, a new amortizedt basis is established for the security
subsequent recovery in fair value may not be agfltrough current earnings. Subsequent recovargeamortized into income over the remaining
life of the security as an adjustment to yield.

When evaluating whether the Company intends toeseiinpaired security or will more-likely-than-rime required to sell an impaired security before
recovery, the Company makes judgments that conaideng other things, its liquidity, leverage, cantual obligations, and targeted investment
strategy to determine its intent and ability tochthle investments that are deemed impaired. Ttezrdmation as to whether an OTTI exists is
subjective as such determinations are based amefaoformation available at the time of assessrasnwell as the Company’s estimates of future
conditions. As a result, the determination of O&mtl its timing and amount is based on estimastsilay change materially over time.

The Company'’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its MBS is based on its review @& tinderlying securities or mortgage loans
securing the MBS. The Company considers histonifalmation available and expected future perfaroeaof the underlying securities or mortgage
loans, including timing of expected future casiwlo prepayment rates, default rates, loss sev&rdidinquency rates, percentage of non-performing
loans, extent of credit support available, Faiats&€orporation (“FICO”) scores at loan originatigear of origination, loan-to-value ratios,
geographic concentrations, as well as reports dgitrating agencies, general market assessmetidialiogue with market participants. As a result,
substantial judgment is used in the Company’s aigtp determine the expected cash flows for itsSVIB

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of Higredit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHiredit Quality involves comparing the presertieaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized codtekecurity at the assessment date. The discatentised to calculate the present value of the
expected future cash flows is based on the setudffective interest rate as calculated under 83Q-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in the
security as of the last measurement date). Iptesent value of the remaining cash flows expetttda® collected is less than the amortized cost
basis, an OTTI is recognized in earnings for tHfedince. This amount is considered to be the ttest component; the remaining difference
between amortized cost and the fair value of tlcersty is considered to be the portion of loss ggiped in other comprehensive income.




Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Nothigh Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily ingehiwhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less thiaa &mortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwarse change in cash flows expected to be cetlect
from the last measurement date (i.e., adverse esangeither the amount or timing of cash flowsfrthose previously expected).

The OTTI is separated into a credit loss compoti@ttis recognized in earnings and the portioros$ recognized in other comprehensive income.
The credit component is comprised of the impadheffair value decline due to changes in assumptielated to default (collection) risk and
prepayments. The portion of loss recognized inratbenprehensive income comprises the change ivddie of the security due to all other factors,
including changes in benchmark interest rates asudken liquidity. In determining the OTTI relateal ¢redit losses for securities, the Company
compares the present value of the remaining castsfadjusted for prepayments expected to be cellezt the current financial reporting date to the
present value of the remaining cash flows expeitdnt collected at the original purchase dateh{edadst date those estimates were revised for
accounting purposes). The discount rate useditalete the present value of expected future clastsfis the effective interest rate used for income
recognition purposes as determined under ASC 32&5-#EC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is suligestgnificant judgment and management’s
estimates of both historical information availahtdhe time of assessment, the current market@mwvient, as well as the Company’s estimates of the
future performance and projected amount and tirofnzash flows expected to be collected on the $gcurs a result, the timing and amount of

OTTI constitutes an accounting estimate that mangk materially over time.

Investments for which the Company has electedahesélue option are not evaluated for OTTI ashlinges in fair value are reflected in earnings.
(e) Securitized Loans Held for Investment
Prime residential mortgage loan:

A portion of the securitized loan portfolio is cornged primarily of non-conforming, single familywaer occupied, jumbo, prime loans that are not
guaranteed as to repayment of principal or interébese securitized loans are serviced and maydukfied, in the event of a default, by a third-
party servicer. The Company generally has thetalbd approve certain loan modifications and deiiee the course of action to be taken as it relates
to certain loans in default, including whether ot to proceed with foreclosure. These mortgageda@ae designated as held for investment. Interest
income on loans held for investment is recogniaggt the expected life of the loans using the irgeneethod with changes in yield reflected in
earnings on a prospective basis. As of Janua2@15, the securitized loan portfolio comprised puiity of non-conforming, single family, owner
occupied, jumbo, prime loans is carried at faiuealvith changes in fair value recorded in earnir@sor to January 1, 2015, this loan portfolio was
carried at amortized cost, net of the allowancddan losses.

The allowance for loan losses as of December 314 2as $7 million. The allowance for loan lossessists of a general reserve and a specific
reserve. The general reserve is based on hidttogsarates for pools of loans with similar credifracteristics, adjusted for current trends and
market conditions, including current trends in dgliencies and severities. The specific reserVectsfconsideration of loans more than 60 days
delinquent, loans in foreclosure and borrowers llaae declared bankruptcy. The specific loan pwesision related to these loans is primarily the
difference between the unpaid principal balancethadstimated fair value of the property secutirgmortgage, less estimated costs to sell. Loan
modifications made by the servicer are evaluatetbtermine if they constitute troubled debt redtrrings (“TDRSs”). A restructuring of a loan
constitutes a TDR if the servicer, for economidegal reasons related to the borrower's finangfitdlties, grants a concession to the borroweat th

it would not otherwise consider. Impairment of adified loan considered to be a TDR is measureddasehe present value of expected cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rat@edption. If the present value of expected cémhd is less than the recorded investment in tha,lo

an allowance for loan losses is recognized withraesponding charge to the provision for loan lesse




The Company estimates the fair value of securitieads as described in Note 5 of these consolidatadcial statements.
Seasoned st-prime residential mortgage loans:

A portion of the securitized loan portfolio is coriged of seasoned sub-prime residential mortgagesithat are not guaranteed as to repayment of
principal or interest. These securitized loanssargiced and may be modified, in the event of defay a third-party servicer. The Company
generally has the ability to approve certain loandifications and determine the course of actiobgdaken as it relates to certain loans in default,
including whether or not to proceed with foreclasuiThese mortgage loans are designated as hatd/&stment. Interest income on loans held for
investment is recognized over the expected lifdnefloans using the interest method with changggeid reflected in earnings on a prospective
basis. The securitized loan portfolio compriseithprily of seasoned sub-prime residential mortgages is carried at fair value with changes in fair
value recorded in earnings. As these loans areedaat fair value, no allowance for loan losseeiguired.

The Company estimates the fair value of securitieads as described in Note 5 of these consolidatadcial statements.
All residential mortgage loans

Interest is accrued on all securitized loans hetdrfvestment when due. Interest which is notikezkat the due date is written off when it becomes
delinquent. Nonrefundable fees and costs relatedduiring the Company’s securitized residentiatitgage loans are recognized as expenses over
the life of the associated debt using the intarethod of amortization. Income recognition is susfed for loans when, based on information from
the servicer, a full recovery of interest or prpalibecomes doubtful.

Real estate owned (“REO”) represents propertieshwvtiie Company has received the legal title ofptfoperty to satisfy the outstanding loan. REO
is re-categorized from loan to REO when the Compakgs legal title of the property. REO assetsweasured and reported at the estimated fair
value less the estimated cost to sell at the emacifi reporting period. At the time the assetisategorized, any difference between the prewousl
recorded loan balance and the carrying value oREE® at the time the Company takes legal titleheffiroperty, is recognized as a loss. The
Company recognized a loss of $4 million for thertgraended March 31, 2015 related to REO whichésgnted in Net unrealized gains (losses) on
financial instruments at fair value on the Consatiidl Statement of Operations and Comprehensivenacd\ll REO assets of the Company are held-
for-sale and it is the Company’s intention to #edl property in the shortest time possible to méeéntheir return and recovery on the previously
recorded loan. Total REO assets at March 31, 200December 31, 2014 is $9 million and $8 milli@spectively, and is recorded in other assets
on the Company’s consolidated statements of firdmoindition.

(f) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifiggortion of its mortgage-backed securities wéhurchase agreements. The Company has
evaluated each agreement and has determined ttabkthe repurchase agreements be accounted $ercaged borrowings.

(g) Securitized Debt, collateralized by Non-AgencRMBS and Securitized Debt, collateralized by loankeld for investment

Certain re-securitization transactions classifis®eacuritized Debt, collateralized by Non-Agency B®teflect the transfer to a trust of fixed or
adjustable rate MBS which are classified as NonfsgeRMBS that pay interest and principal to thetdwliders of that re-securitization. Re-
securitization transactions completed by the Compplaat did not qualify as sales are accounted $aexured borrowings. The associated secur
debt is carried at amortized cost, net of any unéreal premiums or discounts.

Certain transactions involving residential mortgaggns are accounted for as secured borrowingsasntecorded as Securitized loans held for

investment and the corresponding debt as Secutitlebt, collateralized by loans held for investniarthe Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition. These securitizations are collateralilag residential adjustable or fixed rate mortglagas that have been placed in a trust and pay

interest and principal to the debt holders of geturitization. As of January 1, 2015, securitidebt, collateralized by loans held for investment,
carried at fair value. Prior to January 1, 2015usiéized debt, collateralized by loans held fordatment, was carried at amortized cost.
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The Company recognizes interest expense on seeuritiebt over the expected life of the debt udiegrterest method with changes in yield
reflected in earnings on a prospective basis. Bsgsciated with the debt issuance of jumbo pres&lential mortgage loans are also amortized 1|
the interest method. Unamortized fees associatbddebt issuance are included in other assets.

The Company estimates the fair value of its sezedtdebt as described in Note 5 to these congetidanancial statements.
(h) Fair Value Option
Interes-Only MBS:

The Company has elected the fair value option toaat for IO MBS strips to simplify the reporting @hanges in fair value. The 10 MBS strips are
included in MBS, at fair value, on the accompany@ansolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

Changes in fair value are presented in Net unegliains (losses) on financial instruments atfaline on the Consolidated Statements of Opera
and Comprehensive Income. Included in Non-AgenigdBR, at fair value on the Consolidated Statemeh&rmancial Condition are 10 MBS strips
carried at fair value with changes in fair valugeted in earnings of $290 million and $214 mitlias of March 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014. Included in Agency MBS, at fair value on @ensolidated Statements of Financial Conditionl@®&IBS strips carried at fair value with
changes in fair value reflected in earnings of $@f#ion and $186 million as of March 31, 2015 d@becember 31, 2014. Interest income reporte
all 10 securities was $13 million and $10 millicor the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014ectsply.

Non-Agency RMBS:

The Company has elected the fair value option éotain interests in MBS which we refer to as theroullateralization class of the MBS pass
through structure. The cash flows for these hgsliare generally subordinate to all other interesthe trusts and generally only pay out fundsnvhe
certain ratios are met and excess cash holdingtgtasmined by the trustee, are available foribistion to the overcollateralization class. Mariy o
the investments in this group have no current fas¥s and may not ever pay cash flows, dependintherioss experience of the collateral group
supporting the investment. Estimating future déshs for this group of MBS investments is highiydgmental and uncertain; therefore, the
Company has elected to carry these holdings av#ire with changes in fair value reflected in @aga.

Changes in fair value are presented in Net unediiains (losses) on financial instruments atfaline on the Consolidated Statement of Operations
and Comprehensive Income. The fair value of the-Ngency RMBS carried at fair value with changesaiin value reflected in earnings is $11
million as of March 31, 2015. There were no NoreAgy RMBS carried at fair value with changes in Vailue reflected in earnings as of December
31, 2014.

Securitized Loans Held for Investmen

Upon the adoption of ASU 2014-18easuring the Financial Assets and the Financialhlilities of a Consolidated Collateralized Finangi&ntity
on January 1, 2015, the securitized loans helthf@stment comprised primarily of non-conformingpgte family, owner occupied, jumbo, prime
loans were carried at fair value. Therefore, aapfuary 1, 2015, all securitized loans held feegtment are carried at fair value with changdaim
value reflected in earnings. The Company careesistized loans held for investment at fair vadiseit may resecuritize these loans in the
future. Additionally, the fair value option allovbsth the loans and related financing to be coesikt reported at fair value and to achieve
operational and valuation simplifications.

Changes in fair value of securitized loans heldrgestment are presented in Net unrealized géssds) on financial instruments at fair value fua
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Compréerehsome.
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As of December 31, 2014, $626 million of securifizeans held for investment comprised primarilynoh-conforming, single family, owner
occupied, jumbo, prime loans were carried at amedticost, net of an allowance for loan losses.

Securitized Debt, Collateralized by Loans Held favwestment:

As of January 1, 2015, the Company has electeththealue option for all of the Company’s secwtil debt, collateralized by loans held for
investment. The Company has elected fair valuengtr these financings as it may call or restriethese debt financings in the

future. Additionally, the fair value option allovbsth the loans and related financing to be coesikt reported at fair value and to achieve
operational and valuation simplifications.

As of December 31, 2014, $522 million of securiliziebt collateralized primarily by non-conformirsingle family, owner occupied, jumbo, prime
loans were carried at amortized cost. Upon th@talo of ASU 2014-13 on January 1, 2015, the séized debt collateralized primarily by non-
conforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbange loans were carried at fair value.

Changes in fair value of securitized loans heldrgestment are presented in Net unrealized géssds) on financial instruments at fair value fua
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprerehsome.

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company'’s investment policies permit it to eitéo derivative contracts, including interestratvaps, swaptions, mortgage options, futures, an
interest rate caps to manage its interest rateariglk from time to time, enhance investment returhe Company’s derivatives are recorded as either
assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Statementinancial Condition and measured at fair vallieese derivative financial instrument contracts
are not designated as hedges for GAAP; therefirehanges in fair value are recognized in earningise Company estimates the fair value of its
derivative instruments as described in Note 5 e¢hconsolidated financial statements. Net paysr@ntlerivative instruments are included in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as a compohanst income. Unrealized gains (losses) onvadikies are removed from net income to ar

at cash flows from operating activities.

The Company elects to net the fair value of itswdgive contracts by counterparty when appropridteese contracts contain legally enforceable
provisions that allow for netting or setting offalf individual derivative receivables and payabléth each counterparty and, therefore, the fduea
of those derivative contracts are reported netdunterparty. The credit support annex provisidrthe Company'’s derivative contracts allow the
parties to mitigate their credit risk by requiritige party which is in a net payable position totpatlateral. As the Company elects to net by
counterparty the fair value of derivative contradtalso nets by counterparty any cash collatexahanged as part of the derivative.

(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note 5 to these
consolidated financial statements.

(k) Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionglich it sells financial assets, such as MBS, modtgage loans. Gains and losses on sales of
assets are calculated using the average cost metier@by the Company records a gain or loss odifference between the average amortized cost
of the asset and the proceeds from the sale. diti@d, the Company from time to time securitizesesecuritizes assets and sells tranches in the
newly securitized assets. These transactions magdorded as either sales and the assets coattitmithe securitization are removed from the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditionagain or loss is recognized, or as secured bongswvhereby the assets contributed to the
securitization are not derecognized but rathed#t® issued by the securitization entity are reed reflect the term financing of the assets. In
these securitizations and re-securitizations, the@@ny may retain senior or subordinated inteiiadtse securitized or re-securitized assets. In
transfers that are considered secured borrowirgggaim or loss is recognized. Any difference ia finoceeds received and the carrying value of the
transferred asset is recorded as a premium oruis@nd amortized into earnings as an adjustmeyietd.
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() Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REITnéewlds to comply with the provision of the Codethwiespect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state galoncome tax to the extent that qualifying distitions are made to stockholders and as long as
certain asset, income, distribution and stock oslmiprtests are met. If the Company failed to qualg a REIT and did not qualify for certain
statutory relief provisions, the Company would bbjsct to federal, state and local income taxesnaag be precluded from qualifying as a REIT for
the subsequent four taxable years following the yrewhich the REIT qualification was lost. The Cpamy, CIM Trading and CIM Funding TRS
made joint elections to treat CIM Trading and CINhHing TRS as TRS'’s. As such, CIM Trading and Clivh@#ng TRS are taxable as domestic C
corporations and subject to federal, state, anal lnocome taxes based upon their respective taxatdene.

A tax position is recognized only when, based onagament’s judgment regarding the application obine tax laws, it is more likely than not that
the tax position will be sustained upon examinati®he Company does not have any unrecognizeddsitigns that would affect its financial
statements or require disclosure. No accrualpdoglties and interest were necessary as of MdrcB(5 or 2014.

(m) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévltling net income for the period by the basiighted-average shares of its common stock
outstanding for that period. Diluted net income gleare takes into account the effect of dilutiv&riuments such as unvested restricted stock.ell p
share amounts, common shares outstanding andctedtshares for the first quarter of 2015 and rédirgperiods reflect the Company's 1-foreversi
stock split, which was effective April 6, 2015.

(n) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&fdiates at the fair value of the stock-
based compensation provided. The Company meatsh@éair value of the equity instrument using ttexk prices and other measurement
assumptions as of the earlier of either the datehath a performance commitment by the recipieme&ched or the date at which the recipient’s
performance is complete. Stock compensation expetesed to the grants of stock is recognized @ivewvesting period of such grants based on the
fair value of the stock on each vesting date attvktie recipient’s performance is complete.

Compensation expense for equity based awards grémtbe Company’s independent directors is reasghpro-rata over the vesting period of such
awards, based upon the fair value of such awartfeagrant date.

(0) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith GAAP requires management to make estimaesassumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosuieaofingent assets and liabilities at the datdeffinancial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting pekittbugh the Company’s estimates contemplate ctigenditions and how it expects them to
change in the future, it is reasonably possibléabtual conditions could be materially differelman anticipated in those estimates, which coulehav
a material adverse impact on the Company’s resfittgerations and its financial condition. Managaties made significant estimates in
accounting for income recognition and OTTI on Ageaad Non-Agency RMBS and IO MBS (Note 3), valuatal Agency MBS and Non-Agency
RMBS (Notes 3 and 5), residential mortgage loarstéM), securitized debt (Note7) and derivatiwdriments (Notes 5 and 9). Actual results could
differ materially from those estimates.
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(p) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 830)

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-@mplifying the Presentation of Debt Issue Costhis update changes the presentation of debt
issuance costs in financial statements. Under tBig,/An entity presents such costs in the balareet sis a direct deduction from the related debt
liability rather than as an asset. Amortizatiorit@f costs is reported as interest expense. Asanti31, 2015, the Company has unamortized debt
issuance costs of $4 million. The guidance inAB) is effective for the Company as of January(iL& Early adoption is allowed. The guidance
would be applied retrospectively to all prior petso As the unamortized debt issuance costs isigoificant, the guidance in this ASU is not
expected to have a significant impact on the codatdd financial statements.

Consolidations (Subtopic 810)

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015A08endments to the Consolidation Analysihis update affects the following areas of the
consolidation analysis: limited partnerships amdilsir entities, evaluation of fees paid to a deeisinaker or service provider as a variable interest
and in determination of the primary beneficiarfeef of related parties on the primary beneficideyermination and for certain investment

funds. The guidance in the ASU is effective far @ompany as of January 1, 2016. Early adoptiatiasied. Fees paid to the Company are not
significant, therefore, the guidance in this ASUW@ expected to have a significant impact on tiesolidated financial statements.

Presentation of Financial Statemen{Soing Concern (Subtopic 288)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014 Di¢closure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Afyilio Continue as a Going ConcerrThis

update provides guidance on determining when amdthdalisclose going-concern uncertainties in tharficial statements. The new standard requires
the Company to perform interim and annual assessnog¢its ability to continue as a going concerithini one year of the date the financial
statements are issued. The Company must provitiEcelisclosures if conditions or events raise sl doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern. The ASU applies to all entities enelffective for the Company beginning January@, 72 Early adoption is permitted. The
Company does not expect this update to have angdhgs we do not expect to have the conditions@nts which would raise substantial doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a g@ogcern.

Consolidations (Subtopic 810)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014MI8asuring the Financial Assets and the Financialilities of a Consolidated Collateralized
Financing Entity. This update provides a measurement alternadivednsolidated qualifying collateralized financiegtities (CFEs). The update
defines a CFE as a variable interest entity thiddhfinancial assets, issues beneficial interesthdse assets and has no more than nominal equity.
The beneficial interests have contractual recoandg to the related assets of the CFE and areifitabsas financial liabilities. Under the alternaj

the Company may elect to measure both the CFEailal assets and financial liabilities using thie ¥alue of either the CFE’s financial assets or
financial liabilities, whichever is more observabléne guidance is aimed at eliminating the measerg¢mifference that sometimes arises when a
CFFE’s financial assets and financial liabilitiese &amdependently measured at fair value, as reqbysdiSC 820. The Company adopted the guidance
in this standard beginning January 1, 2015.

Upon adoption of this guidance, the Company eletttedair value option for certain consolidated ¥Ifolding securitized loans held for investment
and the related securitized debt which qualifie€BEs. As the fair value of the securitized ddlihese CFEs is more observable, the fair value of
the securitized loans will be based on the faiuealf the securitized debt. The adoption of tipdate resulted in a net reduction in equity of $12
million as of January 1, 2015. A complete disaus®f the methodology utilized by the Company s$tiraate the fair value of its financial
instruments impacted by this standard is includelate 5 to these consolidated financial statements

The following table summarized the adjustments madbke Company's consolidated assets, liabilaies equity as of January 1, 2015:

Effect of accounting standa

Fair value
Balance Reclass to fair valu adjustmen Total

Assets: (dollars in thousand:
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloge for loar
losses $ 626,11: $ (626,11) $ - $ =
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e: 4,699,21! 626,11 (19,287) 5,306,50:

Total Securitized loans held for investm $ 532532 $ - % (19,289 $ 5,306,50:
Liabilities:
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestmen $ 521,990 $ (521,99) $ - 8 =
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized bgrls held fo
investmen 3,868,36! 521,99 (7,146 4,383,21

Total Securitized det $ 4,390,36. $ - $ (7,146 $ 4,383,21
Total effect of accounting standard on retainediegs $ (12,139

Transfers and Servicing (Subtopic 860)

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. z-11, Repurchas-to-Maturity Transactions, Repurchase Financings, atigc@sures. This update



makes limited amendments to the guidance in ASCaB68ccounting for certain repurchase agreemériis. ASU requires entities to account for
repurchase-to-maturity transactions as secure@Wwargs, rather than as sales with forward repuelaseements. The ASU defines a repurchase-
to-maturity transaction as a repo that (1) setiteabe maturity of the transferred financial asset (2) does not require the transferor to reaeghie
transferred financial asset. In addition, the ASithinates accounting guidance on linked repuretiEmncing transactions. The ASU also expands
disclosure requirements related to certain trassféfinancial assets that are accounted for &s ald certain transfers accounted for as secured
borrowings. The guidance in this update was dffedor the Company beginning January 1, 2015, jgixfoe the disclosure requirements for
transactions accounted for as secured borrowingishvware required to be presented by the Compattyeisecond quarter of 2015. The adoption of
this standard did not have any impact on the cafesi@ld financial statements of the Company.
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Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subt®di6-40)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014R#t|assification of Residential Real Estate Cotldteed Consumer Mortgage Loans Upon
Foreclosure. This update clarifies when the Company is cargid to have obtained physical possession, fron-anbstance possession or
foreclosure, of a residential real estate propestiateralizing a mortgage loan. Current guidainckcates that the Company should reclassify a
collateralized mortgage loan such that the loamikshioe derecognized and the collateral asset réoedjmvhen it determines that there has been an in
substance repossession or foreclosure by the Comgdris update defines the termsubstance repossession or foreclosoreeduce diversity in
interpretation of when such an event occurs. Théamnce in this update was effective for the Corgdaeginning January 1, 2015 and did not have a
significant impact on the consolidated financiatsments of the Company.

3. Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as sesinior 10, subordinated, or subordinated 10e Tompany also invests in residential and
commercial Agency MBS. Senior interests in Non-AgeRMBS are considered to be entitled to the firsicipal repayments in their pro-rata
ownership interests at the acquisition date. ©ked fair value of the Non-Agency RMBS that aredhley consolidated re-securitization trusts was
$2.4 billion and $2.5 billion at March 31, 2015 @bdcember 31, 2014, respectively. See Note 8asetltonsolidated financial statements for further
discussion of consolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or nnéibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains, gross
unrealized losses, and net unrealized gain (letajed to the Company’s available-for-sale RMBSfpbo as of March 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, by asset class.

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Net
Principal ot Gross Gross Unrealizec
Notional Total Total Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Gain/
Value Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 3,723,01. $ 424 $(1,610,81) $ 2,112,62. $ 2,929,43 $ 817,74: $ (935) $ 816,80
Senior, intere-only 6,175,34 298,76: - 298,76: 283,88: 24,10t (38,98 (14,880)
Subordinatet 711,44! 11,50( (341,52) 381,41 487,80( 108,63 (2,25%) 106,38
Subordinated, interest-
only 214,35( 9,35: - 9,35: 6,32¢ 117 (3,145 (3,029
Agency MBS
Residentia 6,060,501 313,50 - 6,374,00. 6,447,12 85,56¢ (12,447) 73,12
Commercial 432,04 13,16¢ (1,599 443,61! 451,90: 8,95¢ (672) 8,28¢
Interes-only 5,888,22. 265,30 - 265,30: 264,11t 3,701 (4,889 (1,189
Total $23,204,92 $ 912,01+ $(1,953,93) $ 9,885,08. $10,870,58 $ 1,048,82. $ (63,32) $ 985,50:
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Net
Principal ot Gross Gross Unrealizec
Notional Total Total Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Gain/
Value Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)

Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 3,435,36. $ - $(1,542,90) $ 1,892,445 $ 2,735,781 $ 843,68( $ (355 $ 843,32!

Senior, intere-only 5,221,93 227,30¢ - 227,30! 207,21t 17,37¢ (37,46 (20,089

Subordinate( 690,59¢ - (344,03) 346,56t 454 341 108,09: (309 107,78:

Subordinated, intere-

only 216,40: 9,571 - 9,57 6,80¢ 194 (2,96¢) (2,772
Agency RMBS

Residentia 7,774,26! 387,17« (1,624 8,159,811 8,255,41 108,80: (13,199 95,60:

Interes-only 3,884,52. 189,79’ - 189,79 186,10: 1,32¢ (5,020 (3,699
Total $21,223,09 $ 813,85. $(1,888,56) $10,825,51 $11,845,67 $1,079,47. $ (59,31¢ $1,020,15!

15




The table below presents changes in AccretablalY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etqubto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahgs-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201! March 31, 201«
(dollars in thousand:

Balance at beginning of peric $ 1,534,49 $ 1,794,57
Purchase 84,75: 24,28¢
Accretion (69,705 (77,285
Reclassification (to) from neaccretable differenc 7,18z (13,980
Sales and deconsolidati (19,865 (1,126
Balance at end of peric $ 1,536,86. $ 1,726,47!

The table below presents the outstanding prinddpknce and related amortized cost at March 315 20l December 31, 2014 as it pertains to the
Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted focarding to the provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter For the Year

Ended Ended
December 31
March 31, 201! 2014

(dollars in thousand:

Outstanding principal balanc
Beginning of perioc $ 3,325,33' $ 3,949,66.
End of perioc $ 3,511,73 $ 3,325,33!

Amortized cost
Beginning of perioc
End of perioc

1,741,78' $ 2,027,73:

$
$ 1,876,82. $ 1,741,78

The following tables present the gross unrealipsdéds and estimated fair value of the Company’s BMBlength of time that such securities have
been in a continuous unrealized loss position achl&1, 2015 and December 31, 2014. All securities unrealized loss position have been
evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discussedaie I2(d).

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Le Unrealized Loss Position for :
than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimatec Estimate
Number Number  Estimatec Number
Fair Unrealizet of Fair Unrealize! of Fair Unrealizet of
Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 107,08: $ (93%) 8 $ - $ - - $ 107,08 $ (93%) 8
Senior, intere-only 56,225 (9,28)) 44 95,55! (29,709 57 151,77¢ (38,989 101
Subordinatec 1,78¢ (2,149 8 11,72 (112) 3 13,50¢ (2,255 11
Subordinated, intere-
only 3,721 (3,005 1 1,35¢ (140 3 5,07¢ (3,145 4
Agency MBS
Residentia 659,70: (3,28¢) 11 681,54 (9,155 11 1,341,24 (12,447 22
Commercial 56,937 (672) 3 - - - 56,93" (672) 3
Interes-only 90,38¢ (3,12 14 9,64 (1,768 3 100,02 (4,889 17
Total $ 975,84( $ (22,449 89 $ 799,81« $ (40,879 77 $1,775,65 $ (63,320 16€
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position for Le Unrealized Loss Position for :
than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimatec Estimate
Number Number  Estimatec Number
Fair Unrealizet of Fair Unrealize! of Fair Unrealizet of
Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities Value Losses Securities
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 29,78¢ $ (35%) 3 3 - % - - $ 29,78 % (355 3
Senior, intere-only 23,47¢ (3,06¢) 24 96,754 (34,40)) 53 120,23: (37,467 77
Subordinate( 19,38( @) 2 11,60¢ (302) 4 30,98t (309 6

Subordinated, intere-



only 4,37: (2,709 2 1,074 (257) 2 5,44 (2,96¢) 4
Agency MBS

Residentia 219,80 (19%) 7 701,44. (13,000 11 921,250 (13,199 18
Interes-only 112,01« (3,616) 12 10,46’ (1,404 3 122,48 (5,020 15
Total $ 408,84, $ (9,95 50 $ 821,34, $ (49,365 73 $1,230,18 $ (59,310 127

At March 31, 2015, the Company did not intend tba®y of its RMBS that were in an unrealized lpssition, and it was not more likely than not
that the Company would be required to sell theseBBMefore recovery of their amortized cost bashEcivmay be at their maturity. With respect to
RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, the ability of amtity to cause the sale by the VIE prior to theéurity of these RMBS is either expressly
prohibited, not probable, or is limited to spedifievents of default, none of which have occurredfddarch 31, 2015.
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Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agencytihasugh MBS were $13 million at both March 3112@nd December 31, 2014. Given the
inherent credit quality of Agency MBS, the Compaloes not consider any of the current impairmentissoAgency pass-through MBS to be credit
related. In evaluating whether it is more liketah not that it will be required to sell any impairsecurity before its anticipated recovery, whiy

be at their maturity, the Company considers theii@ance of each investment, the amount of impaittnthe projected future performance of such
impaired securities, as well as the Company’s ctrged anticipated leverage capacity and liquidagition. Based on these analyses, the Company
determined that at March 31, 2015 and Decembe2@®14, unrealized losses on its Agency MBS were tgarp.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (excluding Non-Agency RMBS 10 strips whicleaccounted for under the fair value
option with changes in fair value recorded in e@gs) were $3 million and $1 million at March 31,180and December 31, 2014, respectively. Based
upon the most recent evaluation, the Company doesamsider these unrealized losses to be indeatfiOTTI and does not believe that these
unrealized losses are credit related, but ratreedae to other factors. The Company has revievsedanAgency RMBS that are in an unrealized
position to identify those securities with losdeattare other-than-temporary based on an assessfrranges in cash flows expected to be collected
for such RMBS, which considers recent bond perforceaand expected future performance of the underlgollateral.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for therters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 is presésted.
For the Quarter Ende

March 31, 201* March 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (1,052 $ (400
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensicgerine (loss (6,769 (1,139
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (7,815 $ (1,539

The following table presents a roll forward of tredit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Marency RMBS for which a portion of loss
was previously recognized in OCI. The table deltes between those securities that are recogning for the first time as opposed to those that
have previously recognized OTTI.

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201! March 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 507,54¢ $ 524,43
Additions:
Otherthar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 7,81t 1,53¢
Reductions for securities sold or deconsolidateihdithe perioc (1,319 (1,670

Increases related to ot-thar-temporary impairments on securities w

previously recognized ott-thar-temporary impairmenti - -
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectéxttoollected that are

recognized over the remaining life of the secL (158) (2,819

Cumulative credit loss ending balan $ 513,88t $ 521,48:

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaupoeary credit impairment losses recognized iniegare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs useh¢asure the component of OTTI recognized in egaiior the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
are summarized as follows:
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For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201* March 31, 201«
Loss Severity

Weighted Averag: 69% 72%

Range 51%- 78% 43%- 80%
60+ days delinquer

Weighted Averag 22% 36%

Range 15%- 33% 17%- 47%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted Averag 10% 8%

Range 0%- 18% 0%- 14%
3 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 8% 11%

Range 5%- 15% 10%- 11%
12 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 8% 12%

Range 3%- 16% 11%- 19%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancemehetR-REMIC and underlying frot
each of their respective capital structu

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at March 31, 2015 and Decenih@034. 10 MBS included in the tables
below represent the right to receive a specifietiquo of the contractual interest cash flows of timelerlying principal balance of specific

securities. At March 31, 2015, IO MBS had a neatatized loss of $19 million and had an amortizest of $573 million. At December 31, 2014,

IO MBS had a net unrealized loss of $27 million &ad an amortized cost of $427 million. The faiueaof |Os at March 31, 2015 and December
31, 2014 was $554 million, and $400 million, redpety. All changes in fair value of 10s are refled in Net Income in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Unrealize Gross Unrealize
Gain Included in Loss Included in
Accumulated Gross Unrealize Accumulated Gross Unrealize
Other Gain Included in  Total Gross Other Loss Included in  Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 817,74. $ - $ 817,74: $ (935 $ - $ (93%)
Senior, intere-only - 24,10t 24,10t - (38,985 (38,985
Subordinate 108,63 - 108,63" (2,255 - (2,255
Subordinated, interest-
only - 117 117 - (3,14%) (3,14%)
Agency MBS
Residentia 85,56¢ - 85,56¢ (12,447 - (12,447
Commercial 8,95¢ - 8,95¢ (672) - (672)
Interes-only - 3,701 3,701 - (4,889 (4,889
Total $ 1,020,90 $ 27,92 $ 1,048,82. $ (16,309 $ (47,019 $ (63,32)
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Unrealize Gross Unrealize
Gain Included ir Loss Included ir
Accumulated Gross Unrealize Accumulated Gross Unrealize
Other Gain Included ir Total Gross Other Loss Included ir Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 843,68( $ - $ 843,68( $ (355 $ - $ (35%)
Senior, intere-only - 17,37¢ 17,37¢ - (37,467 (37,46
Subordinate( 108,09: - 108,09: (309 - (309)
Subordinated, interest-
only - 194 194 - (2,96€) (2,96€)

Agency MBS



Residentia 108,80: - 108,80: (13,199 - (13,199
Interes-only - 1,32¢ 1,32¢ - (5,020 (5,020

Total $ 1,06057. $ 18,89¢ $ 1,079,47. $ (13,869 $ (45,45) $  (59,31¢)
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Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andflcagh expected to be collected, among other itarsaffected by the collateral characteristic
each asset class. The Company chooses assete fmrtfolio after carefully evaluating each investitis risk profile.

The following tables provide a summary of the CompstRMBS portfolio at March 31, 2015 and DecemBgr2014.

March 31, 201!

Principal or
Notional Value Weighted Weighted
at Period-End  Average Weighted Weighted Average Yielc
(dollars in Amortized Average Fair  Average  at Period-End
thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 3,723,01. $ 56.7¢ $ 78.6¢ 3.9% 14.€%
Senior, intere-only $ 6,175341 $ 48, % 4.6(C 1.7% 13.(%
Subordinate( $ 711,44 $ 53.61 $ 68.5¢ 3.1% 13.2%
Subordinated, intere-only $ 21435 $ 43¢ $ 2.9t 0.8% 9.4%
Agency MBS
Residential pa-through $ 6,060,500 $ 105.17 $ 106.3¢ 3.9% 2.4%
Commercial pasthrough $ 432,04 $ 102.6¢ $ 104.6( 4.C% 4.1%
Interes-only $ 5,888,22. $ 451 $ 4.4¢ 1.C% 5.9%
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
December 31, 201
Principal or
Notional Weighted
Value Average
at Period- Weighted Weighted Yield
End Average  Average Fai  Weighted at Period-
(dollars in Amortized Average End
thousands Cost Basis Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 3,43536. $ 55.0¢ $ 79.6: 4.2% 15.9%
Senior, intere-only $ 522193 $ 43 % 3.97 1.€% 14.4%
Subordinate( $ 690,59¢ $ 50.1¢ $ 65.7¢ 3.1% 10.6%
Subordinated, intere-only $ 216,400 $ 44 $ 3.1 0.9% 9.2%
Agency MBS
Pas-through $ 7,774,261 $ 104.9¢ $ 106.1¢ 4.C% 3.2%
Interes-only $ 3,884,52. $ 48¢ $ 4.7¢ 0.€% 3.1%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availablehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolio
at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

March 31, 201 December 31, 20:

AAA 0.7% 0.9%
AA 0.4% 0.4%
A 0.0% 0.0%
BBB 0.3% 0.4%
BB 2.6% 1.9%
B 4.7% 5.6%
Below B or nol 91.3% 90.8%
rated

Total 100.0% 100.0%

Actual maturities of MBS are generally shorter tiiam stated contractual maturities. Actual maesibf the Company’s MBS are affected by the
contractual lives of the underlying mortgages, gid payments of principal and prepayments of fp@c The following tables provide a summary
of the fair value and amortized cost of the ComaMBS at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 ralaog to their estimated weighted-average
life classifications. The weighted-average livéthe MBS in the tables below are based on lifetenpected prepayment rates using an industry
prepayment model for the Agency MBS portfolio ahd Company’s prepayment assumptions for the Nom&g&MBS. The prepayment model
considers current yield, forward yield, steepnddb@interest rate curve, current mortgage ratesigage rates of the outstanding loan, loan age,
margin, and volatility.
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March 31, 201*
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than on Greater than fiv
year and less th.  years and less Greater than te

Less than one ye five years than ten year years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 82 % 416,99: $ 1,637,85! $ 873,75t $ 2,929,43
Senior intere-only 1,062 60,60" 157,26 64,95( 283,88
Subordinatec - 55,32 285,01¢ 147,45¢ 487,80(
Subordinated intere-only - - 5,08( 1,24¢ 6,32t
Agency MBS
Residentia - 6,380,49 66,63 - 6,447,122
Commercia - - 30,40: 421,50( 451,90:
Interes-only - 86,30! 177,81: - 264,11¢
Total fair value $ 1,888 $ 6,999,72 $ 2,360,06! $ 1,508,90! $ 10,870,58
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 47z $ 325,67¢ $ 1,187,71- $ 598,75¢ $ 2,112,62.
Senior intere-only 1,821 70,30: 164,52: 62,117 298,76
Subordinatec - 42,10¢ 218,38t 120,92: 381,41¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 8,22¢ 1,12¢ 9,35¢
Agency MBS
Residentia - 6,310,31 63,69:¢ - 6,374,00:
Commercia - - 29,88: 413,73 443,61t
Interest-only - 85,79 179,51: - 265,30«
Total amortized cos $ 229 $ 6,834,19' $ 1,851,93. $ 1,196,65 $ 9,885,08
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than on Greater than fiv
year and less th.  years and les¢ Greater than te
Less than one ye five years than ten year years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,65¢ $ 306,30¢ $ 1,678,221 $ 749,58¢ $ 2,735,78!
Senior intere-only 51k 60,40 110,80( 35,49¢ 207,21¢
Subordinatec - 80,41« 245,43t 128,49¢ 454,34¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 5,447 1,35¢ 6,80¢
Agency MBS
Residentia - 4,237,65: 3,781,89I 235,87: 8,255,41!
Interes-only - 82,99« 103,10¢ - 186,10
Total fair value $ 2,171 $ 476777 $ 5,924911 $ 1,150,81. $ 11,845,67
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,20 $ 255,00¢ $ 1,129,93; $ 506,30¢ $ 1,892,45!
Senior intere-only 1,294 65,29: 124,99¢ 35,72« 227,30"
Subordinate( - 58,44¢ 188,50: 99,61¢ 346,56¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 8,41: 1,164 9,571
Agency MBS
Residentia - 4,173,98 3,750,83: 234,99¢ 8,159,81i
Interest-only - 83,65¢ 106,13t - 189,79°
Total amortized cos $ 2,49¢ $ 4,636,39. $ 5,308,81. $ 877,81. $ 10,825,51

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to cretik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit rishtigh its asset selection process. The Non-
Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralized lvhat the Company classifies as Alt-A first lieomngages. An Alt-A mortgage is a type of U.S.
mortgage that, for various reasons, is considasiér than A-paper, or prime, and less risky teahprime, the riskiest category. Mtinterest rates
which are determined by credit risk, therefore tembe between those of prime and subprime honmesldgypically, Alt-A mortgages are
characterized by borrowers with less than full doeatation, lower credit scores and higher loangh ratios. The Company periodically reviews
and evaluates its criteria for certain types oftgeges. Beginning in the third quarter of 2014, @ompany revised its criteria for -A mortgage



securities to include Non-Agency RMBS where (i) timglerlying collateral has weighted average FIC@esbetween 680 and 720 or (ii) for
instances where FICO scores are greater than NMBShave 30% or less of the underlying collatemahposed of full documentation loans. This
change was made to conform the Compsugfinition more closely to industry standardg.Maarch 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 66% and
of the Non-Agency RMBS collateral was classifiedA#tsA, respectively. At March 31, 2015 and DeceanB1, 2014, 19% and 24% of the Non-
Agency RMBS collateral was classified as primepeesively. The remaining Non-Agency RMBS collatéseclassified as sub-prime.
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The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the follng collateral characteristics at March 31, 2048 Becember 31, 2014.

December 31,

March 31, 201! 2014

Weighted average maturity (yea 24.7 22.F
Weighted average amortized loan to value 71.2% 67.5%
Weighted average FICO ( 693 67¢
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 32z $ 332
Weighted average percentage owner occu 81.7%0 83.(%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 75.€% 65.5%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 1.7% 1.7%
Weighted average geographic concentration of tap $tates CA 32.1% CA 31.7%

FL 8.3% FL 8.4%

NY 7.4% NY 7.8%

NJ 2.2% NJ 2.9%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the cotlht the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The table below presents the origination year efuhderlying loans related to the Company’s pddfof NonAgency RMBS at March 31, 2015 a
December 31, 2014.

Origination Yeal March 31, 201 December 31, 20:
1999 0.1% 0.2%
2000 0.6% 0.6%
2001 1.8% 2.1%
2002 0.4% 0.4%
2003 2.2% 2.5%
2004 3.7% 3.9%
2005 21.4% 20.4%
2006 31.(% 28.5%
2007 35.4% 37.¢%
2008 2.C% 2.1%
2013 0.7% 0.9%
2014 0.7% 0.8%

Total 100.(% 100.(%

Gross realized gains and losses are recorded inrdfdézed gains (losses) on sales of investmamghe Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. The proaetigross realized gains and gross realized Idssassales of investments for the quarters
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201 March 31, 201

(dollars in thousand

Proceeds from salt $ 2,241,61 $ 100,25¢
Gross realized gair 30,29¢ 8,46¢
Gross realized losst (731) (92)
Net realized gail $ 29,56¢ $ 8,37
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Included in the gross realized gains for the quanteled March 31, 2015 in the table above are exggeaof securities with a fair value of $7 million
where the Company exchanged its investment inramge security for the underlying collateral sugpay the group related to the exchanged
asset. These exchanges were treated as non-¢eslkusd purchases and resulted in a realized §&8 million reflected in earnings.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Securitized loans held for investment is cosgatiof two portfolios. The first portfolio is comged of loans collateralized by non-conforming,
single family, owner occupied, jumbo, prime restifdrmortgages. The second portfolio is compriggtharily of loans collateralized by seasoned
sub-prime residential mortgages.

At March 31, 2015, all securitized loans held fordstment are carried at fair value. See NotedutdConsolidated Financial Statements for a
discussion on how the Company determines the &ires of the securitized loans held for investméygt.changes in the fair value of these
securitized loans are reflected in earnings, then@amy does not estimate or record a loan loss gimvi At December 31, 2014, $626 million of
securitized loans held for investment comprisethprily of non-conforming, single family, owner ogied, jumbo, prime loans were carried at
amortized cost, net of an allowance for loan losses

The following table provides a summary of the chemin the carrying value of securitized loans Hetdnvestment at fair value at March 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014:

For the Quarter End:  For the Year Ende
March 31, 201! December 31, 20:

(dollars in thousands

Balance, beginning of peric®) $ 5,306,50. $ -
Purchase - 4,722,82.
Principal paydown (167,400 (173,59)
Net periodic amortization (accretio 8,39: 5,02¢
Change in fair valu (14,597 144,96(
Balance, end of peric $ 5,132,90. $ 4,699,21!

(1) Includes Securitized loans held for investn@ 607 million for which the fair value option etén was made beginning January 1, 2(
The primary cause of the change in fair value is uchanges in credit risk of the portfolio.

Jumbo prime residential mortgage loe

The securitized loan portfolio collateralized bynjoo prime residential mortgages were originatedhduthe following years:

Origination Yeal March 31, 201 December 31, 20:
2004 0.1% 0.%
2007 8.5% 8.1%
2008 7.2% 7.C%
2009 0.2% 0.2%
2010 5.8% 6.2%
2011 35.6% 35.4%
2012 42 5% 42.1%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

A summary of key characteristics of the loan pdidfoollateralized primarily of non-conforming, gjile family, owner occupied, jumbo, prime
mortgages follows:
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December 31

March 31,2015 2014
Number of loan: 817 86¢
Weighted average maturity (yea 26.4 26.4
Weighted average loan to value 70.9% 71.€%
Weighted average FICO ( 76€ 76€
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 702 $ T71€
Weighted average percentage owner occu 94. 7% 95.(%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 70.(% 71.(%
Weighted average geographic concentration of wgpdtate: CA 34.4% CA 34.8%
NJ 5.8% NJ 5.€%
VA 5.6% VA 5.5%
MD 5.2% MD 5.1%
TX 5.1% NY 5.1%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the cotlag the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The following table summarizes the outstandinggpal balance of the jumbo prime loans which ar&l&@s delinquent and greater as reported by
the servicer at March 31, 2015 and December 314.201

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days Bankruptcy Foreclosur REO Total

Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent
(dollars in thousands)

March 31, 201! $ 2,681 $ 93z $ 3,167 - $ 4487 $ 47 $ 11,74
December 31,
2014 $ 2,621 $ 56 $ 98¢ - $ 7,152 - $  11,32¢

The fair value of the jumbo prime residential magg loans 90 days or more past due is $4 millicof &arch 31, 2015.

Seasoned sub-prime residential mortgage loans

The securitized loan portfolio collateralized byasened sub-prime residential mortgages originateithgl the following years:

Origination Yeal March 31, 201 December 31, 20:

2002 and prio 6.C% 6.C%
2003 4.3% 4.4%
2004 12.2% 12.2%
2005 20.6% 20.6%
2006 18.2% 18.2%
2007 26.5% 26.2%
2008 9.€% 9.9%
2009 1.2% 1.2%
2010 and later 1.1% 1.1%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

A summary of key characteristics of the loan pdidfoollateralized by seasoned sub-prime resident@tgages follows:

23




December 31

March 31, 201! 2014
Number of loan: 56,76 58,17(
Weighted average maturity (yea 22 22
Weighted average loan to value 80.2% 80.2%
Weighted average FICO ( 62¢ 62¢
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 79 $ 79
Weighted average percentage owner occu 95.8% 95.8%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 73.€% 73.€%
Weighted average geographic concentration of wgpdtate: CA 9.2% CA 9.2%
FL 7.1% FL 7.C%
NC 7.C% NC 7.C%
VA 6.4% VA 6.4%
OH 6.C% OH 6.C%

(1) As provided by the Truste
The following table summarizes the outstandinggpal balance of the loan portfolio consisting edsoned sub-prime residential mortgage loans

which are 30 days delinquent and greater as rapbystehe servicer at March 31, 2015 and Decembg2@14.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent
(dollars in thousand:
March 31, 201! $ 179,24: $ 62,98t $ 199,74 % 14537 $ 114,04 $ 19,59¢ $ 720,98

December 31,201  $ 226,15 $ 92,36 $ 192,24 $ 154,27¢  $ 80,14¢ $ 16,55¢ $ 761,74

The fair value of seasoned sub-prime residentiatgage loans 90 days or more past due is $317omitls of March 31, 2015.

Securitized loans held for investment, net of adloee for loan losses

As of December 31, 2014, $626 million of securiiizeans held for investment comprised primarilynof-conforming, single family, owner
occupied, jumbo, prime loans were carried at amedticost, net of an allowance for loan losses ah#ifon.

The prime jumbo securitized loans held for investhier which the Company has not elected the falue option are carried at amortized cost wl
is their principal balance outstanding, plus undired premiums, less unaccreted discounts and@naaice for loan losses. The following table
provides a summary of the changes in the carryaigevof these securitized loans held for investraéitecember 31, 2014:

For the Year Ende
December 31, 201

(dollars in thousand

Balance, beginning of peric $ 783,48
Principal paydown (153,067
Net periodic amortization (accretio (4,547
Change to loan loss provision 232
Balance, end of peric $ 626,11:

The following table represents the Company’s prjomebo securitized residential mortgage loans hetdrfvestment which are carried at amortized
cost at December 31, 2014:

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand

Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 633,38t
Less: allowance for loan losses 7,27¢
Securitized loans held for investme $ 626,11.
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The following table summarizes the changes in tlwevance for loan losses for the securitized mayigkan portfolio carried at amortized cost at
March 31, 2014:

For the Quarter Endi
March 31, 201«

(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 9,06:
Provision for loan losse 31¢
Charge-offs (365)
Balance, end of peric $ 9,017

The Company has established an allowance for lugsek related to jumbo prime securitized loansethat amortized cost that is composed of a
general and specific reserve. The balance inltber@nce for loan losses related to the generaruesand specific reserve at December 31, 201«
$3 million and $4 million, respectively.

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired & which the Company established a specificrieseas $22 million at December 31, 2014.
Company’s recorded investment in impaired loansmioich there is a related allowance for credit émsat December 31, 2014 was $16 million. The
total unpaid principal balance of non-impaired lpéor which the Company established a generalvesgas $600 million at December 31,

2014. The Company’s recorded investment in noraineg loans for which there is a related genersdmee for credit losses was $610 million at
December 31, 2014. Interest income on impaireddaarried at amortized cost was not significant.

With the exception of its ability to approve centévan modifications, the Company is not involveithwhe servicing or modification of the jumbo
prime loans held for investments which are caratdmortized cost. The servicer of the respea@airitization is responsible for servicing and
modifying these loans. The Company is requirechéde certain assumptions in accounting for themedalue to the limitation of information
available to the Company. The following table pres the loans that were modified by the serviceind the years ended December 31, 2014:

Unpaid Principal  Unpaid Principal Amortized Cost of Amortized Cost of
Number of Loan Balance of Modifie Balance of Modifie Modified Loans For Whic Modified Loans For Whic
Modified During Loans (Pre- Loans (Post- Amortized Cost ¢ There is an Allowance forThere is No Allowance fc
Period modification) modification) Modified Loans Loan Losse: Loan Losse:
(dollars in thousand:

Decembe!
31, 2014 23 1,13¢ $ 1,25¢ $ 1,17 $ 1,17¢ $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methodss mitigation. Based on the information availalleing the year ended December 31, 2014, the
Company determined that all loans carried at amexitcost which were modified by the servicer wenestdered TDRs, as defined under GAAP. A
TDR is generally any modification of a loan to aroaver that is experiencing financial difficultieshere a lender agrees to terms that are more
favorable to the borrower than are otherwise allan the current market. All loan modificationsrohg the year ended December 31, 2014 inch

a reduction of the stated interest ratésans modified by the servicer have been indivijuatsessed for impairment and measurement of
impairment is based on the excess of the recordezsiment in the loan over the present value oéxpected cash flows, post modification,
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rateedption. As all loans are carried at fair vaiseof March 31, 2015, there is no longer a resknve
losses related to TDRs as of March 31, 2015.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accoogawith GAAP to account for its financial instruntenThe Company categorizes its financial
instruments, based on the priority of the inputthtovaluation technique, into a three-level failue hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priority to quoted prices in active marlfetsidentical assets or liabilities (Level 1) athe lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Levell8
the inputs used to measure the financial instrugiatitwithin different levels of the hierarchy gtlcategorization is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measuremdrihe instrument. Financial assets and liabilitexsorded at fair value on the Consolidated Statésnen
of Financial Condition or disclosed in the relatedes are categorized based on the inputs to thatia techniques as follows:
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Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology inlgwuoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dilkeor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Leake3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value and such
changes could result in a significant increaseegrelse in the fair value. Any changes to the vialnanethodology are reviewed by management to
ensure the changes are appropriate. As marketgraddcts evolve and the pricing for certain prodlmcomes more transparent, the Company will
continue to refine its valuation methodologies. Tiethodology utilized by the Company for the pesipdesented is unchanged. The methods used
to produce a fair value calculation may not bedative of net realizable value or reflective ofuit fair values. Furthermore, while the Company
believes its valuation methods are appropriatecamdistent with other market participants, the afsgifferent methodologies, or assumptions, to
determine the fair value of certain financial instients could result in a different estimate of f@ilue at the reporting date. The Company uses
inputs that are current as of the measurement @ieh may include periods of market dislocatiouridg which price transparency may be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, the observapilif prices and inputs can be difficult for centamvestments. If third party pricing services are
unable to provide a price for an asset, or if theepprovided by them is deemed unreliable by then@any, then the asset will be valued at its fair
value as determined by the Company without valicheto third-party pricing. llliquid investmentspigally experience greater price volatility as an
active market does not exist. Observability o€gsiand inputs can vary significantly from periogériod and may cause instruments to change
classifications within the three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by empany to estimate the fair value of its finanaiatruments by instrument class follows:
Agency MBS and Non-Agency RMBS

The Company determines the fair value of all ofriteestment securities based on discounted casls fltilizing an internal pricing model that
incorporates factors such as coupon, prepaymentispban size, collateral composition, borrowearahteristics, expected interest rates, life caps,
periodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasonelmodiency, expected losses, expected defaultisgvenedit enhancement, and other pertinent
factors. To corroborate that the estimates offfaiues generated by these internal models amecteft of current market prices, the Company
compares the fair values generated by the modenebinding independent prices provided by two petelent third party pricing services. For
certain highly liquid asset classes, such as Agéireg-rate pass-through bonds, the Company’s valng are also compared to quoted prices for To-
Be-Announced (“TBA”) securities.

Each quarter the Company develops thresholds vareldetermined utilizing current bid/ask spreadsidity, price volatility and other factors as
appropriate. If internally developed model pridéfer from the independent prices provided by ¢gethan a market derived predetermined
threshold for the period, the Company highlightssthdifferences for further review, both internalhd with the third party pricing service. The
Company obtains the inputs used by the third ganiting services and compares them to the Comganputs. The Company updates its own in
if the Company determines the third party pricinguts more accurately reflect the current markeirenment. If the Company believes that its
internally developed inputs more accurately refteetcurrent market environment, it will requestttthe third party pricing service review market
factors that may not have been considered by il plarty pricing service and provide updated wicehe Company reconciles and resolves all
pricing differences in excess of the predetermiteesholds before a final price is established Match 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, all
differences between the model generated pricesrenthird party prices were within the derived medmined threshold for the period.

The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default awdrity curves all involve judgment and assumptiivas are deemed to be significant to the fair

value measurement process, which renders theirestlon-Agency RMBS fair value estimates Level Bts in the fair value hierarchy. As the fair
values of Agency MBS are more observable, thesesimvents are classified as level 2 in the fairev&lierarchy.
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Securitized Loans Held for Investment
Securitized loans consisting of seasoned sub-prsidential mortgage loans:

The Company estimates the fair value of its seezedtloans held for investment consisting of sead®ub-prime residential mortgage loans on a
loan by loan basis using an internally developedehahich compares the loan held by the Companly siban currently offered in the market. -
loan price is adjusted in the model by considetirggloan factors which would impact the value tdan. These loan factors include: loan coupa
compared to coupon currently available in the miaukkC O, loan-to-value ratios, delinquency histawner occupancy, and property type, among
other factors. A baseline is developed for eaghiicant loan factor and adjusts the price up@wd depending on how that factor for each specific
loan compares to the baseline rate. Generallynitst significant impact on loan value is the lg@erest rate as compared to interest rates clyrent
available in the market and delinquency historhede two factors are based on relevant observailgsi

The Company also monitors market activity to idigritiades which may be used to compare internalyetbped prices; however, as the portfolio of
loans held at fair value is a seasoned sub-prinokgfanortgage loans, comparable loan pools areaamon or directly comparable. There are
limited transactions in the market place to devel@@mprehensive direct range of values. Howefverarket data becomes available, the Company
will compare this data to the internally developeites to ensure reasonableness of the valuation.

The Company reviews the fair values generated éyrthdel to determine whether prices are reflecifithe current market by corroborating its
estimates of fair value by comparing the resultsan-binding independent prices provided by tweejmehdent third party pricing services for the
loan portfolio. Each quarter the Company devetbpssholds which are determined utilizing a ses@guritization market for a similar pool of loa

If the internally developed fair values of the Iqaools differ from the independent prices provitlgdyreater than a predetermined threshold for the
period, the Company highlights these differencesudher review, both internally and with the thiparty pricing service. The Company obtains
certain inputs used by the third party pricing g@s and evaluates them for reasonableness. The&gnupdates its own model if the Company
determines the third party pricing inputs more aataly reflect the current market environment aseed information from the third party vendors.
If the Company believes that its internally develdpnputs more accurately reflect the current magkeironment, it will request that the third party
pricing service review market factors that may mmte been considered by the third party pricingiser The Company reconciles and resolves all
pricing differences in excess of the predetermiheesholds before a final price is established.

The Company’s estimates of fair value of securitians held for investment involve managementijueigt and assumptions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement processch renders the resulting fair value estimatgsll8 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

Securitized loans collateralized by jumbo, primgidential mortgages

The securitized loans collateralized by jumbo, jerimsidential mortgages are carried at fair vatuefarch 31, 2015. The securitized loans are
held as part of a consolidated CFE. A CFE is &bt interest entity that holds financial assestsjes beneficial interests in those assets anddas
more than nominal equity and the beneficial intisrbgave contractual recourse only to the relatedta®f the CFE. Accounting guidance for CFEs
allow the Company to elect to measure the CFEanfiial assets using the fair value of the GHitlancial liabilities as the fair values of theancial
liabilities of the CFE are more observable. Therefthe fair value of the securitized loans cellalized by jumbo, prime residential mortgages is
based on the fair value of the securitized delee @scussion of the fair value of Securitized Debliateralized by Loans Held for Investment at fa
value below.

As the more observable Securitized debt, colladlby loans held for investment are considereel I8 in the fair value hierarchy, the Securitized
loans collateralized by jumbo, prime residentiakigages are also level 3 in the fair value hienarch
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Securitized Debt, collateralized by N-Agency RMBS

The Company carries securitized debt, collaterdllzeNon-Agency RMBS at the principal balance anding plus unamortized premiums, less
unaccreted discounts recorded in connection wetfittancing of the loans or RMBS with third partiekhe Company estimates the fair value of
securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBSestimating the future cash flows associated wie underlying assets collateralizing the
secured debt outstanding. The Company modelsathedlue of each underlying asset by considemngong other items, the structure of the
underlying security, coupon, servicer, delinqueramtual and expected defaults, actual and expeetalilt severities, reset indices, and prepayment
speeds in conjunction with market research forlsinziollateral performance and management’s expientaof general economic conditions in the
sector and other economic factors. This procesfyding the review process, is consistent withghecess used for Agency MBS and Non-Agency
RMBS using internal models. See the further disicusof the valuation process and benchmarkingge®in theAgency MBS and Non-Agency
RMBSdiscussion of fair value.

The Company’s estimates of fair value of securitidebt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS involvamagement’s judgment and assumptions
that are deemed to be significant to the fair vaheasurement process, which renders the resultingdlue estimates level 3 inputs in the fair ealu
hierarchy.

Securitized Debt, collateralized by Loans Held favestment

The Company determines the fair value of secudtidebt, collateralized by loans held for investn@aged on discounted cash flows utilizing an
internal pricing model that incorporates factorstsas coupon, prepayment speeds, loan size, calla@mposition, borrower characteristics,
expected interest rates, life caps, periodic cagsst dates, collateral seasoning, expected losggscted default severity, credit enhancement, and
other pertinent factors. This process, includimgreview process, is consistent with the procesd for Agency MBS and Nofigency RMBS usin
internal models. See the further discussion of/tiieation process and benchmarking process iAgiemcy MBS and Non-Agency RMB& ussion
of fair value.

The Company’s estimates of fair value of securitidebt, collateralized by loans held for investrmiamblve management’s judgment and
assumptions that are deemed to be significantetdaiin value measurement process, which rendensethdting fair value estimates level 3 inputs in
the fair value hierarchy.

Derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps and Swapti

The Company determines the fair value of its irterate swaps and swaptions based on the net predea of future cash flows of the swap or
swaption. The Company compares its own estimataiofalue to dealer quotes received to evaluatedasonableness. The dealer quotes
incorporate common market pricing methods, inclgdirspread measurement to the Treasury yield @irigerest rate swap curve as well as
underlying characteristics of the particular cocttrénterest rate swaps and swaptions are modglégebCompany by incorporating such factors as
the term to maturity, Treasury curve, overnighteingdwap rates, and the payment rates on the figgtbp of the interest rate swaps. The Company
has classified the characteristics used to deterthia fair value of interest rate swaps as LevepAts in the fair value hierarchy.

Treasury Futures

The fair value of Treasury futures is determinedjbgted market prices for similar financial instemts in an active market. The Company has
classified the characteristics used to determiadat value of Treasury futures as Level 1 inpatthe fair value hierarchy.

Mortgage Option:
Mortgage options are valued using an option pricimagiel which considers the strike price of the aptihe price of the underlying security, settle
date, a discount rate and the implied volatilitheTimplied volatility is determined from the dajlyice of the underlying security as well as prioas

similar financial instruments. The Company hassifasd the characteristics used to determine thevédue of mortgage options as Level 3 inputs in
the fair value hierarchy.
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Repurchase Agreemen

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finamic@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquirestment securities. Due to the short term n
of these financial instruments, the Company es@sie fair value of these repurchase agreemeinis i@ contractual obligation plus accrued
interest payable at maturity.

Short-term Financial Instruments
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuyad interest receivable, receivable for secergi@d, dividends payable, payable for securities

purchased and accrued interest payable are coedittebe a reasonable estimate of fair value dtigetshort term nature and low credit risk of these
short-term financial instruments.

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair value on a recurring basis, including level in the fair value hierarchy, at March 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014 is presented below.

March 31, 201*
(dollars in thousand:

Counterparty an
Level 1 Level Z Level = Cash Collateral, nettir Total

(dollars in thousand:

Assets:

Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu $ - $ - $ 3,707,43 $ 3,707,43
Agency RMBS, at fair valu - 7,163,14. - - 7,163,14.
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair ¢ - - 5,132,90; 5,132,90;
Derivatives - 9,78¢ - - 9,78¢
Liabilities:

Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized bgrls held

for investmen - - (4,198,19) - (4,198,19)
Derivatives (12,136 (103,24 (1) 102,85: (12,527
Total $ (12,130 $ 7,069,69 $ 4,642,14: $ 102,85. $ 11,802,55

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Counterparty an
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Cash Collateral, nettit Total

(dollars in thousand:

Assets:

Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu $ - $ - $ 340414 $ - $ 3,404,14
Agency RMBS, at fair valu - 8,441,52. - - 8,441,52;
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e: - - 4,699,21! - 4,699,21!
Derivatives 4. 79¢ (1,169 3,631
Liabilities:

Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dgrls held

for investmen - - (3,868,361 - (3,868,361
Derivatives (7,227 (113,679 (71) 106,80t (14,17
Total $ (7,227) $ 8,332,64 $ 4,23492 $ 105,63. $ 12,665,97

The table below provides a summary of the chanyése fair value of securities classified as Le3sat March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
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Fair Value Reconciliation, Level

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMB¢ Derivatives Securitized Loar Securitized Del Total

Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,404,14' $ 7)) $ 5,306,50. $  (4,383,21) $4,327,36.
Transfers in to Level 3 ass¢ - - - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 asst - - - - -
Purchase 486,56 - - - 486,56
Principal payment (70,149 - (167,40() 189,72 (47,827)
Sales and Settlemer (116,67¢) (56%) - - (117,24)
Accretion of purchase discour 31,26¢ - 8,39: 1,644 41,30:
Gains (losses) included in net inco

Other than temporary credit impairment los (7,815 - - - (7,815
Realized gains (losses) on sales and settler 3,06¢ 412 - - 3,47¢
Net unrealized gains (losses) included in inc¢ 4,04~ 224 (14,59 (6,346 (16,669
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivenig

Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe (27,009 (1) - - (27,009
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,707,43 $ Qs 5,132,90. $  (4,198,19) $4,642,14

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level

For the Year Ende
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS Derivatives Securitized Loan Securitized Deb  Total
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,774,46. $ -$ -$ - $3,774,46:
Transfers in to Level 3 asst - - - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 asst - - - - -
Purchase 454 50¢ - 4.722,82. (4,309,05) 868,27!
Principal payment (324,76%) - (173,59 412,65: (85,719)
Sales and Settlemer (602,577) (8,479 - - (611,057
Accretion of purchase discour 99,51: - 5,02¢ 2,02¢ 106,56¢
Gains (losses) included in net inco
Other than temporary credit impairment los (63,997 - - - (63,99)
Realized gains (losses) on sales and settler 62,63 8,74¢ - - 71,38
Realized gain on deconsolidati 47,84¢ - - - 47,84¢
Net unrealized gains (losses) included in ince 25,27 (341) 144,96( 26,01: 195,90:
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivenma
Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe (68,750 - - - (68,750
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,404,14' $ 7)) $ 4,699,221 $ (3,868,36)) $4,234,92'

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 fordharter ended March 31, 2015 and the year endeenitsar 31, 2014.

Sensitivity of Significant Inputs — Non-Agency RMB8 securitized debt, collateralized by loans Heldnvestment

The significant unobservable inputs used in theviaiue measurement of the Company’s Non-Agency BMBd securitized debt are the weighted

average discount rates, constant prepayment speB&Y(), cumulative default rate, and the loss sityer

Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CPR, vaoyding to interest rates, the type of financiatinment, conditions in financial markets, and t
factors, none of which can be predicted with anyatety. In general, when interest rates risés felatively less attractive for borrowers to nefince
their mortgage loans, and as a result, prepaynpetds tend to decrease. When interest ratepifaiayment speeds tend to increase. For RMBS
investments purchased at a premium, as prepayrpeetls increase, the amount of income the Compang dacreases as the purchase premium on
the bonds amortizes faster than expected. Corlyetereases in prepayment speeds result in isedeiacome and can extend the period over
which the Company amortizes the purchase premigon.RMBS investments purchased at a discount,eggsagment speeds increase, the amount of
income the Company earns increases from the aatieleiof the accretion of the discount into inteiesome. Conversely, decreases in prepayment

speeds result in decreased income as the accoétiba purchase discount into interest income acowuer a longer period.
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For securitized debt carried at fair value issueal gremium, as prepayment speeds increase, theramibinterest expense the Company recognizes
decreases as the issued premium on the debt aesofdizter than expected. Conversely, decreaggspayment speeds result in increased expense
and can extend the period over which the Comparyrtaes the premium.

For debt issued at a discount, as prepayment sjieadsase, the amount of interest the Company esgseimcreases from the acceleration of the
accretion of the discount into interest expensew@€csely, decreases in prepayment speeds residtheased expense as the accretion of the dis
into interest expense occurs over a longer period.

Cumulative default rates represent an annualiziedofadefault on a group of mortgages. The congtefault rate (“CDR”) represents the percentage
of outstanding principal balances in the pool tivatin default, which typically equates to the hdyeang past 60-day and 90-day notices and in the
foreclosure process. When default rates increagected cash flows on the underlying collaterateleses. When default rates decrease, expected
cash flows on the underlying collateral increases.

Loss severity rates reflect the amount of loss etguefrom a foreclosure and liquidation of the uhdeg collateral in the mortgage loan pool. When
a mortgage loan is foreclosed the collateral id sold the resulting proceeds are used to settleutstanding obligation. In many circumstances, th
proceeds from the sale do not fully repay the antding obligation. In these cases a loss is iecliy the lender. Loss severity is used to predict
how costly future losses are likely to be. An &ase in loss severity results in a decrease inceegbéuture cash flows. A decrease in loss severit
results in an increase in expected future cashsflow

The discount rate refers to the interest rate ursélik discounted cash flow analysis to determirgepresent value of future cash flows. The discount
rate takes into account not just the time valumohey, but also the risk or uncertainty of futuastcflows. An increased uncertainty of future cash
flows results in a higher discount rate. The distoate used to calculate the present value oétpected future cash flows is based on the digcoun
rate implicit in the security as of the last measuent date. As discount rates move up, the disedwash flows are reduced.

A summary of the significant inputs used to estartae fair value of Non-Agency RMBS held for invaent at fair value as of March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014 follows:

March 31, 201! December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted Loss Weighted Loss
Average CPR CDR Severity Average CPR CDR Severity
Discount Rat: Range Discount Rat Range
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior 47% 1%-12% 0%-3C% 50%- 8% 47% 1%-12% 0%-2S% 50%- 8%
Senior intere-only 11.6% 1%-28% 0%- 3C% 50%- 85% 14.2%  1%-25% 0%- 32% 50%- 85%
10% -
Subordinatet 56% 1%-21% 0%-21% 10(% 58% 1%-16% 0%-1S% 10%- 78%
Subordinated intere-
only 21.% 2%-12% 0%-13% 50%- 61% 22.% 1%-1C% 0%-14% 50%- 65%
RMBS transferred t
consolidated VIE: 4.2%  1%-14% 0%-2%% 50%- 85% 4.6% 1%-1€% 0%-31% 50%- 85%

A summary of the significant inputs used to estartae fair value of securitized debt at fair vahseof March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
follows:

March 31, 201! December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
CPR CDR Loss Severit CPR CDR Loss Severit
Rang Rang Range Rang Rangt Range
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dgrls held fo 3%-26 0%- 13 3%- 0% -
investmen % % 50%- 74% 8% 9% 50%- 73%

All of the significant inputs listed have some dagpof market observability, based on the Compakrysvledge of the market, information available
to market participants, and use of common markiet staurces. Collateral default and loss severibjegtions are in the form of “curves” that are
updated quarterly to reflect the Company’s colkteash flow projections. Methods used to devéh@se projections conform to industry
conventions. The Company uses assumptions it censsits best estimate of future cash flows for eseturity.

The discount rates applied to the expected casisfto determine fair value are derived from a rapfigebservable prices on securities backed by
similar collateral. As the market becomes morkess liquid, the availability of these observallplits will change.
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The prepayment speed specifies the percentage abltateral balance that is expected to prepaael point in the future. The prepayment speed is
based on factors such as collateral FICO scora;tmaalue ratio, debt-to-income ratio, and vintagea loan level basis and is scaled up or down to
reflect recent collateral-specific prepayment eigrere as obtained from remittance reports and rhdeta services.

Default vectors are determined from the currenpéfine” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmgin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are REO.
These delinquent loans determine the first 30 nwathhe default curve. Beyond month 30, the défawdve transitions to a value that is reflectiy:
a portion of the current delinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s ergedaiss severity is based on collateral-speciffzeeience with consideration given to other
mitigating collateral characteristics. Characté&gssuch as seasoning are taken into considera¢ioause severities tend to initially increase omly
originated securities, before beginning to dectisehe collateral ages and eventually stabilizella@ral characteristics such as loan size, l@an-t
value, and geographic location of collateral al§eat loss severity.

Sensitivity of Significant Inputs — Securitizedris#eld for investment

The significant unobservable inputs used to esértta fair value of the securitized loans heldfigestment collateralized by seasoned sub-prime
residential mortgage loans, as of March 31, 20IbRecember 31, 2014 include coupon, FICO scoreigination, loan-to-value ratios (LTV),
owner occupancy status, and property type. A sumwiahe significant inputs used to estimate thie Yalue of Securitized loans held for
investment at fair value as of March 31, 2015 aedddnber 31, 2014 follows:

March 31, 201! December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted Weighted
Average/Percerdf Average/Percent
Base Rat: loan pool Base Ratt loan pool
Factor:
Coupon
Clean 4.4% 7.C% 4.0% 6.6%
Reperforming 5.2% 7.1% 5.2% 6.6%
FICO 62C 62¢ 62C 637
Loar-to-value (LTV) 90% 80% 9C% 81%
Occupancy
Owner Occupiet N/A 96% N/A 96%
Investor N/A 4% N/A 4%
Secondan N/A 0% N/A 0%
Property Type
Single family N/A 7% N/A 7%
Manufactured housin N/A 15% N/A 15%
Multi-family/mixed use/othe N/A 6% N/A 6%

The loan factors are generally not observableHerindividual loans and the base rates developatidbZompanys internal model are subjective
change as market conditions change. The impabtiedban coupon on the value of the loan is depetnale whether the loan is clean or
reperforming. A clean loan, with no history ofidguent payments and a relatively high loan intera® would result in a higher overall value tla
reperforming loan which has a history of delinquen8imilarly, a higher FICO score and a lower LTafio results in increases in the fair market
value of the loan and a lower FICO score and adrigiV ratio results in a lower value.
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Property types also affect the overall loan valuesoperty types include single family, manufaatineusing and multi-family/mixed use and other
types of properties. Single family homes repregeoperties which house only one family unit. M&autured homes include mobile homes and
modular homes. Loan value for properties thairarestor or secondary homes have a reduced valoenagared to the baseline loan

value. Additionally, single family homes will rdsin an increase to the loan value where manufadtand multi-family/mixed use and other
properties will result in a decrease to the lodnegas compared to the baseline.

The following table presents the carrying value fidvalue, as described above, of the Compafigancial instruments not carried at fair valuea
recurring basis at March 31, 2015 and Decembe2@14.

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Level in Fair Valu
Hierarchy Carrying Amour Fair Value
Repurchase agreeme 2 (8,296,22) (8,312,32)
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 3 (671,609 (671,38Y

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level in Fair Valu
Hierarchy Carrying Amour Fair Value
626,11: 626,10(
(8,455,38) (8,473,83))
(704,91Y) (708,62))
(521,99) (514,85)

Securitized loans held for investm

Repurchase agreemel

Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifiwestmen

wWwwN W

6. Repurchase Agreements

The interest rates of the Company’s repurchaseeagrts are generally indexed to the one-monthetimenth and twelve-month LIBOR rates and
re-price accordingly. The repurchase agreemerntsanding, weighted average borrowing rates, weijjavverage remaining maturities, average
daily balances and the fair value of collateratigled as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is:

March 31, 201 December 31, 20:

Repurchase agreements outstanding (in thous $ 829,22 $ 8,455,38:
Average Daily Balanc 8,315,35 8,247,72,
Weighted average borrowing r¢ 0.6&% 0.6%%
Weighted average maturi 65 Day: 100 Day:
RMBS pledged as collateral at fair value (in thowus)
Agency $ 7,420,90. $ 7,822,55.
Non-Agency 1,853,50! 1,487,18.

At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the réfase agreements collateralized by RMBS had thewiollg remaining maturities.

March 31, 201 December 31, 20:
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ -$ -
1 to 29 day: 5,614,64 2,652, 71
30 to 59 day: 688,17t 1,371,85!
60 to 89 day: 774,52 656,91!
90 to 119 day - 2,068,74i
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 1,218,871 1,705,15.
Total $ 8,296,22. $ 8,455,38.
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At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Compad an amount at risk with Credit Suisse Firs$tBo of 10% of its equity related to the
collateral posted on repurchase agreements. Tweneno other amounts at risk with any other caypatities greater than 10% of the Company’s
equity as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company'’s securitized debt is collatered by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyB8M For financial reporting purposes, the
Company’s securitized debt is accounted for asreeldoorrowings. Thus, the residential mortgagedaar RMBS held as collateral are recorded in
the assets of the Company as securitized loandtreilicdvestment or Non-Agency RMBS transferred dosolidated VIEs and the securitized debt is
recorded as a non-recourse liability in the accamgipey Consolidated Statements of Financial Connitio

Securitized Debt Collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS

At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the Conipaguritized debt collateralized by Non-Agency BMis carried at amortized cost and had
a principal balance of $693 million and $727 milljsespectively. At March 31, 2015 and Decen8gr2014, the debt carried a weighted average
cost of financing equal to 4.17% and 4.28%, respelgt The debt matures between the years 203284@. None of the Company’s securitized
debt collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS is callable.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2014, the Compaguired securitized debt collateralized by NayeAcy RMBS with an outstanding principal
balance of $54 million for $56 million in cash. i$lransaction resulted in a loss on the extingugtit of debt of $2 million. This loss is reflecied
earnings for the quarter ended March 31, 2014.

The following table presents the estimated prifaippayment schedule of the securitized debt achMad, 2015 and December 31, 2014, based on
expected cash flows of the residential mortgagedaa RMBS, as adjusted for projected losses ontiderlying collateral of the debt. All of the
securitized debt recorded in the Company’s Conat#idl Statements of Financial Condition is non-res@to the Company.

March 31, 201 December 31, 20:
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 165,86: $ 175,71:
One to Three Yeal 197,63 220,99!
Three to Five Year 105,83 112,77¢
Greater Than Five Yea 99,64¢ 96,26¢
Total $ 568,98: $ 605,75

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt anpeshelent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their repayment is
based on scheduled principal payments on the unidgtbans. This estimate will differ from actuahaunts to the extent prepayments or loan losses
are experienced. See Notes 3 for a more detaidedssion of the securities collateralizing theusitized debt.

Securitized Debt Collateralized by Loans Held fordstment

At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the Conipa®guritized debt collateralized by loans heldifivestment had a principal balance of $4.3
billion and $4.5 billion, respectively. During tigearter ended March 31, 2015, the company recedrddoss of $6 million on the securitized debt
carried at fair value in Net unrealized gains @3%n financial instruments at fair value. TherPany did not have any securitized debt carried at
fair value during the quarter ended March 31, 2014.

At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the tetalistized debt collateralized by loans held fardisiment carried a weighted average cost of
financing equal to 3.52% and 3.47% respectivellie @ebt matures between the years 2023 and 2065.

The following table presents the estimated prifaippayment schedule of the securitized debt achad, 2015 and December 31, 2014, based on

expected cash flows of the residential mortgagedaa RMBS, as adjusted for projected losses ontlderlying collateral of the debt. All of the
securitized debt recorded in the Company’s Conat#idl Statements of Financial Condition is non-res@to the Company.
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March 31, 201 December 31, 20:
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 717,65 $ 704,65¢
One to Three Yeai 1,178,49 1,206,24.
Three to Five Year 799,47 828,19¢
Greater Than Five Yea 1,436,77 1,577,36:
Total $ 4,132,39' $ 4,316,45!

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt anpeshelent upon cash flows received from the undaglioans. The estimate of their repayment is
based on scheduled principal payments on the urdgibans. This estimate will differ from actuahaunts to the extent prepayments or loan losses
are experienced. See Note 4 for a more detaikligsion of the loans collateralizing the secgitidebt.

Certain of the securitized debt collateralized dmnis held for investment contain call provisiond are callable at par, at the option of the
Company. The following table presents the parevalithe callable debt by year at March 31, 2015.

March 31, 201*
(dollars in thousand:

Year Principal
2015 1,358,96!
2016 2,208,92i
2017 251,93:
Total 3,819,82i

8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbE$hie purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laam®-securitizing RMBS and obtaining
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compagijuated its interest in each VIE to determirieif the primary beneficiary.

As of March 31, 2015, the Company’s Consolidatete®bent of Financial Condition includes assetsofolidated VIEs with a carrying value of
$7.7 billion and a carrying value of $4.9 billiohlabilities. As of December 31, 2014, the ComyparConsolidated Statement of Financial
Condition includes consolidated VIEs with $7.9ibill of assets and $5.1 billion of liabilities.

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Benefficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whilb Company is the primary beneficiary are tyyctile subordinated tranches of these re-

securitizations and in some cases the Company wldyifiterests in additional tranches. The tableweeflects the assets and liabilities recorded in
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditédated to the consolidated VIEs as of March 31,.528nd December 31, 2014.

35




March 31, 201 December 31, 20:
(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu $ 241924 $ 2,473,46
Securitized loans held for investment, net of allose for loan losse - 626,11:
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair e 5,132,90: 4,699,21!
Accrued interest receivab 37,69( 39,55¢
Other Asset: 86,19¢ 85,88(
Liabilities
Securitized debt, collateralized by M-Agency RMBS $ 671,60 $ 704,91!
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestmen - 521,99
Securitized debt at fair value, collateralized dgrs held for investme 4,198,19 3,868,36!
Accrued interest payab 15,51¢ 16,07(

Income and expense and OTTI amounts related tmtidated VIEs recorded in the Consolidated StatemehOperations and Comprehensive
Income is presented in the table below.

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201 March 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 150,61¢ $ 85,21
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE 46,75 20,69¢
Net interest incom $ 103,86! $ 64,51:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (397 $ =
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerine (6,88¢) -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (7,285 $ -

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Biereefy

The Company is not required to consolidate VIEwlich it has concluded it does not have a conhglfinancial interest, and thus is not the primary
beneficiary. In such cases, the Company does et hath the power to direct the entities’ most gigant activities and the obligation to absorb
losses or right to receive benefits that could piadly be significant to the VIEs. The Companywéstments in these unconsolidated VIEs are
carried in Non-Agency RMBS on the Consolidated Stants of Financial Condition and include seniat smbordinated bonds issued by the VIEs.
The fair value of the Company’s investments in ursodidated VIEs at March 31, 2015, ranged from teas $1 million to $56 million, with an
aggregate amount of $1.3 billion. The fair valuetef Company’s investments in unconsolidated ViH3exember 31, 2014, ranged from less than
$1 million to $46 million, with an aggregate amooh$931 million. The Company’s maximum exposuréotss from these unconsolidated VIEs was
$1.2 billion at March 31, 2015 and $822 milliorD&cember 31, 2014. The maximum exposure to lossle@smined as the amortized cost of the
unconsolidated VIE, which represents the purchase pf the investment adjusted by any unamortesiums or discounts as of the reporting
date.

9. Derivative Instruments

In connection with the Company’s interest rate rieknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk by
entering into derivative financial instrument caats in the form of interest rate swaps, swaptiand, Treasury futures. The Company’s swaps are
used to lock in a fixed rate related to a portibitocurrent and anticipated payments on its relpase agreements. The Company typically agrees to
pay a fixed rate of interest (“pay rate”) in excbarfor the right to receive a floating rate of et (“receive rate”) over a specified period of

time. Treasury futures are derivatives which trdmkprices of specific Treasury securities andraged on an active exchange. It is generally the
Company’s policy to close out any Treasury futyesitions prior to taking delivery of the underlgisecurity. The Company uses Treasury futures
to lock in prices on the purchase or sale of Agavi®5 and to hedge changes in interest rates @xissing portfolio.

In addition to interest rate swaps, from time todithe Company purchases and sells mortgage optdasgage options give the Company the ri

but not the obligation, to buy or sell mortgageKeaitsecurities at a future date for a fixed pri€ae Company uses mortgage options to lock in
prices on the purchase or sale of Agency MBS amshb@nce investment returns.
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The use of derivatives creates exposure to cristirelating to potential losses that could be geized if the counterparties to these instrumests f
to perform their obligations under the contradtsthe event of a default by the counterparty,Gloenpany could have difficulty obtaining its RMBS
or cash pledged as collateral for these derivatisguments. The Company periodically monitorsdahetit profiles of its counterparties to determine
if it is exposed to counterparty credit risk. $&me 14 for further discussion of counterparty dredk.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf the derivatives reported in the Consolidé&&atements of Financial Condition after
counterparty netting and posting of cash collatasabf March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

March 31, 201t

Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities
Location on Consolidate Net Estimated Fé  Location on Consolidate
Notional Amoun  Statements of Financial ~ Value/Carrying Statements of Financial  Net Estimated Fair
Derivative Instrument  Outstanding Condition Value Condition Value/Carrying Valu
(dollars in thousand:

Interest Rate Swaj $ 2,599,901 Derivatives, at fair value, ni $ - Derivatives, at fair value, n (12,759
Mortgage Option: 200,00( Derivatives, at fair value, ni - Derivatives, at fair value, n (D)
Swaptions 377,00( Derivatives, at fair value, ni 9,78¢ Derivatives, at fair value, ni (772)
Treasury Future 850,00( Derivatives, at fair value, ni - Derivatives, at fair value, n -
Total $  4,026,90 $ 9,78¢ $ (12,527

December 31, 201

Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities
Location on Consolidated Net Estimated Fai  Location on Consolidated
Notional Amoun  Statements of Financial ~ Value/Carrying Statements of Financial Net Estimated Fa
Derivative Instrument  Outstanding Condition Value Condition Value/Carrying Valu
(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Swaj $ 3,573,001 Derivatives, at fair value, ni $ - Derivatives, at fair value, n (14,067)
Mortgage Option: 200,00t Derivatives, at fair value, ni - Derivatives, at fair value, n (72)
Swaptions 242,000 Derivatives, at fair value, ni 2,88¢ Derivatives, at fair value, ni (45)
Treasury Future 1,240,001 Derivatives, at fair value, n - Derivatives, at fair value, n -
Total $ 5,255,00! $ 2,88¢ $ (214,179

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had a net p@&skion of $742 thousand which settled in Janwér3015. This amount is included in
Derivative assets on the Consolidated Statemerfsahcial Condition as of December 31, 2014.

The effect of the Company'’s derivatives on the @tidated Statements of Operations and Comprehefsigene is presented below.

Net gains (losses) on derivativ
For the Quarter Ende

Location on Consolidated Statements of

Derivative Instrument Operations and Comprehensive Incc March 31,201 March 31, 201
(dollars in thousands

Interest Rate Sway Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati $ 9,96( $ 4,06t
Interest Rate Swaj Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (83,74¢) (5,650
Mortgage Option: Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 224 74€
Mortgage Option: Net realized gains (losses) on derivati 41z 60:<
Treasury Future Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati (4,909 (7,009
Treasury Future Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (27,45¢) (701)
Swaptions Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati (1,227 -
Swaptions Net realized gains (losses) on derivati 144 -
Other Derivative Assel Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati -
Other Derivative Assel Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (22)
Total $ (106,610 $ (7,946

The Company paid $69 million to terminate interes¢ swaps with a notional value of $575 milliomidg the quarter ended March 31, 2015. The
terminated swaps had original maturities rangiognf2024 to 2044. This amount represented thevédire of the terminated interest rate swaps, not
counting any accrued interest at the time of setiet.
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The weighted average pay rate on the Company’seisiteate swaps at March 31, 2015 was 2.22% anddfighted average receive rate was

0.27%. The weighted average pay rate on the Coy'parierest rate swaps at December 31, 2014 v2892 and the weighted average receive rate
was 0.24%. The weighted average maturity on thegamy’s interest rate swaps at March 31, 2015 aswkMbber 31, 2014 is 6 years and 7 years,
respectively.

Certain of the Company’s derivative contracts atgexct to International Swaps and Derivatives Agt@n Master Agreements or other similar
agreements which may contain provisions that granhterparties certain rights with respect to thygliaable agreement upon the occurrence of
certain events such as (i) a decline in stockheld=guity in excess of specified thresholds orataimounts over set periods of time, (ii) the
Company'’s failure to maintain its REIT status))(iiie Company’s failure to comply with limits oretamount of leverage, and (iv) the Company’s
stock being delisted from the New York Stock Exam(NYSE). Upon the occurrence of any one of itéijnrough (iv), or another default under
the agreement, the counterparty to the applicadreesnent has a right to terminate the agreemeattdardance with its provisions. Certain of the
Company’s interest rate swaps are cleared throughistered commodities exchange. Each of the CoyipéSDAS and clearing exchange
agreements contains provisions under which the @oms required to fully collateralize its obligatis under the interest rate swap agreements if at
any point the fair value of the swap representahility greater than the minimum transfer amoumtained within the agreements. The Company is
also required to post initial collateral upon exemuof certain of its swap transactions. If then@@any breaches any of these provisions, it will be
required to settle its obligations under the age@sat their termination values, which approxiredédr value. Cleared swaps are fair valued using
internal pricing models and compared to the exchangrket values. The aggregate fair value of all/dBve instruments with credit-risk-related
contingent features that are in a net liabilityipos at March 31, 2015 is approximately $116 moiflincluding accrued interest, which represents the
maximum amount the Company would be required toypsn termination, which is fully collateralized.

10. Common Stock

On March 12, 2015, The Company's board of direappoved a 1-for-5 reverse stock split of its canmtock. The reverse stock split was
effective after the close of trading on April 6,150 and the shares of the Company's common stagniteading on a reverse split-adjusted basis on
the New York Stock Exchange beginning at the opgnirtrading on April 7, 2015. As a result of tlewerse stock split, every five shares of the
Company’s common stock was converted into one stfatemmon stock, reducing the number of issuedanstanding shares of the Company’s
common stock from approximately 1.0 billion to apxdmately 206 million and reducing the number ofhauized shares from 1.5 billion to
approximately 300 million. No fractional shares ésued in connection with the reverse stock.dpéith stockholder who was otherwise entitle
receive a fractional share of the Company’s comstook was entitled to receive a cash payment indfea fractional share. The reverse stock split
was not subject to stockholder approval and didchahge the par value of the Company's common s&dt&ommon shares, outstanding options
and per share amounts for all periods were retregtadjusted to reflect the reverse stock split.

During the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2B@4Company declared dividends to common sharetsotd&ling $99 million and $92 million,
respectively, or $0.48 and $0.45 per share, relspéct

Earnings per share for the quarters ended MarcB®I5 and 2014, respectively, are computed asislio
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For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201 March 31, 201

Numerator:

Net income $ 67,04 $ 100,36¢
Effect of dilutive securities - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 67,04: $ 100,36¢

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 205,527,47 205,452 52
Effect of dilutive securities 39,48( 65,23(
Weighted average diluted sha 205,566,95 205,517,75
Net income per average share attributable to caomstmckholder-

Basic $ 0.3 $ 0.5C
Net income per average share attributable to caomstmckholder:-

Diluted $ 0.3 $ 0.5C

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the changes in thepmmants of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incd®@Cl”) for the quarters ended March .
2015 and 2014:

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousands
Unrealized gain
(losses) on available-
for-sale securities, Total Accumulatec

net OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 1,046,681 $ 1,046,68!
OCI before reclassificatior (19,919 (19,919
Amounts reclassified from AOC (21,262 (21,26))
Net current period OC (41,179 (41,179
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 1,005,50° $ 1,005,50

March 31, 201«
(dollars in thousands
Unrealized gain
(losses) on available-
for-sale securities, Total Accumulatec

net OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 990,80: $ 990,80:
OCI before reclassificatior 37,50: 37,50:
Amounts reclassified from AOC (6,849 (6,843
Net current period OC 30,66( 30,66(
Balance as of March 31, 20 $ 1,021,46:. $ 1,021,46.

The following table presents the details of thdagsifications from AOCI for the quarters ended &faB1, 2015 and 2014:

March 31, 201! March 31, 201-
Amounts Amounts
Reclassified Reclassified
rom rom Affected Line on the Consolidate
Accumulated  Accumulated Statements Of Operations And

Details about Accumulated OCI Compone OCI OCI Comprehensive Incon
Unrealized gains and losses on avail-for-sale
securities (dollars in thousands
_ Net realized gains (losses) on s¢
$ 29,07¢ $ 8,371 of investment:
Net othe-thar-temporary credi
(7,815 (1,539 impairment losses

$ 21,26: $ 6,84: Income before income tax
- Income taxe:




$ 21,26 $ 6,845 Net of tax
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12. Long Term Incentive Plan

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restritterk awards in the amount of 260,200 shares, &djder the 1-for-5 split, to employees of
FIDAC and its affiliates and the Compasyhdependent directors. The awards to the inddgoerdirectors vested on the date of grant andwads
to FIDAC’s employees vest quarterly over a peribd@years.

On February 2, 2015, the Company granted restrigtiazk awards in the amount of 84,700 shares tdames of FIDAC. The awards vest annually
over a period of two years.

The Company recognized stock based compensati@msgmwf $436 thousand and $50 thousand for theeys@nded March 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. As of March 31, 2015 there was axprately $1 million of total unrecognized compeisatcosts related to non-vested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the lomgineentive plan, based on the closing price efg¢hares at March 31, 2015. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a period of appratdiy 3 years.

13. Income Taxes

For the quarter ended March 31, 2015 and for tlae geded December 31, 2014, the Company was auibtidibe taxed as a REIT under Code
Sections 856 through 860. As a REIT, the Compampt subject to federal income tax to the exteat it makes qualifying distributions of taxable
income to its stockholders. To maintain qualificatas a REIT, the Company must distribute at 188%6 of its annual REIT taxable income to its
shareholders and meet certain other requiremenksagiassets it may hold, income it may generatétaishareholder composition. It is generally
the Company’s policy to distribute to its sharefeotdall of the Company’s taxable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renag the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay imctax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, hmvebe subject to certain minimum state
local tax filing fees and its TRS’s are subjectdaderal, state, and local taxes. There were nuf&gignt income tax expenses for the quarters ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014.

In general, common stock cash dividends declaretidoCompany will be considered ordinary incomsttekholders for income tax purposes. F
time to time, a portion of the Company’s dividemaay be characterized as capital gains or retuoapital.

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from isnbined federal, state and city corporate statuttyate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€®&ection 857(a).

The Company’s 2013, 2012 and 2011 federal, statdamal tax returns remain open for examination.
14. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company'’s primary components of market riskcaeglit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk in connection
with its investments in Agency MBS and Non-AgendyBS, residential mortgage loans, and borrowingseumepurchase agreements. When the
Company assumes interest rate risk, it attemptsinanize interest rate risk through asset select@uging and matching the income earned on
mortgage assets with the cost of related liabgliti®he Company attempts to minimize credit risktigh due diligence and asset selection by
purchasing loans underwritten to agreed-upon spatifns of selected originators as well as on-ggiartfolio monitoring. The Company has
established a whole loan target market includingn@rand sub-prime borrowers, Alt-A documentatiospgraphic diversification, owner-occupied
property, and moderate loan-to-value ratios. Tli@s@rs are considered to be important indicatbrzredit risk.

By using derivative instruments and repurchaseamgeats, the Company is exposed to counterpartyt cigdif counterparties to the contracts do
not perform as expected. If a counterparty failpedorm on a derivative hedging instrument, thenany’s counterparty credit risk is equal to the
amount reported as a derivative asset on its balgineet to the extent that amount exceeds collatet@ned from the counterparty or, if in a net
liability position, the extent to which collateabsted exceeds the liability to the counterpartye @mounts reported as a derivative asset/(ligbdite
derivative contracts in a gain/(loss) position, &mthe extent subject to master netting arrangésnest of derivatives in a loss/(gain) positiorhwi

the same counterparty and collateral received/@adyl If the counterparty fails to perform on auehase agreement, the Company is exposed to a
loss to the extent that the fair value of colldtptadged exceeds the liability to the counterpaje Company attempts to minimize counterparty
credit risk by evaluating and monitoring the coupéety’s credit, executing master netting arrangehand obtaining collateral, and executing
contracts and agreements with multiple countergsitt reduce exposure to a single counterpartyrendygoropriate.
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Our repurchase agreements and derivative transadi@ governed by underlying agreements that gedair a right of setoff under master netting
arrangements, including in the event of defaulhdhe event of bankruptcy of either party to trensactions. We present our assets and liabilities
subject to such arrangements on a net basis inamsolidated statements of financial condition.e Tdllowing table presents information about our
liabilities that are subject to such arrangementsa@an potentially be offset on our consolidatedeshents of financial condition as of March 31,5

and December 31, 2014.

Repurchase Agreemer
Interest Rate Sway
Treasury Future
Mortgage Option:
Swaptions- Gross Liability
Swaptions- Gross Asse
Total Liabilities

(1) Included in other asse

Gross Amount:

Offset in the

Gross Amount.  Consolidated
of Recognized Statements of

Assets Financial
(Liabilities) Position
$ (8,296,22) $ -
(102,469 90,71*
(12,136 12,13¢
(1) -
(772) -
9,78¢ -

March 31, 201t
(dollars in thousands

Gross Amounts Not Offset with Financ
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi

Net Amounts
Offset in the
Consolidated

Statements of Cash Collatere

Financial Financial (Received)
Position Instruments Pledged (1 Net Amount
$ (8,296,22) $ 9,274,41 $ 506( $ 983,24
(11,759 10,98¢ 65,60 64,83¢
- - 7,382 7,382
(1) - - (1)
(772) - - (772)
9,78¢ - - 9,78¢

$ (8,40181) $ 102,85

$ (8,298,96) $ 9,28540 $ 78,041 $ 1,064,48

Gross Amount:
Offset in the
Gross Amount.  Consolidated

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands

Gross Amounts Not Offset with Financ
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi

Net Amounts
Offset in the
Consolidated

Statements of

Cash Collatere

of Recognizec Statements ol

Assets Financial Financial Financial Received)

(Liabilities) Position Position Instruments ledged (1 Net Amount
Repurchase Agreemer $ (8,455,38) $ - $ (8/455,38) $ 9,309,731 $ - 9% 854,35’
Interest Rate Sway (113,59) 99,53¢ (14,06)) 19,34( 64,79t 70,07t
Treasury Future (7,227) 7,227 - - 12,59¢ 12,59¢
Mortgage Option: (72) - (72) - - (71
Swaptions- Gross Liability (45) - (45) - - (45)
Swaptions- Gross Asse 2,88¢ - 2,88¢ - - 2,88¢
Total Liabilities $ (8,573,43) $ 106,76 $ (8,466,66) $ 9,329,071 $ 77,39. $ 939,80(

(1) Included in other asse

15. Management Agreement and Related Party Transtions
Management Agreeme

On August 8, 2014, the management agreement wasdathend restated. Effective August 8, 2014, taeagement fee was increased to 1.20% of
gross stockholders’ equity from 0.75% of gross ldtotders’ equity. The Company incurred managenfemexpenses of $10 million and $6 million
for each of the quarters ended March 31, 2015 84d Zespectively.

The management agreement provides for a two yeardgading August 7, 2016 and may be automaticaltewed for two year terms at each
anniversary date unless at least two-thirds ofritlependent directors or the holders of a majaitthe outstanding shares of common stock elects
not to renew the agreement in their sole discredimhfor any or no reason. Unless the managengee¢iment is terminated for “cause” or FIDAC
terminates the management agreement, in the enegrthie management agreement is terminated oenetved, the Company must pay to FIDAC a
termination fee equal to two times the average anmanagement fee, calculated as of the end ohtist recently completed fiscal quarter prior to
the date of termination. FIDAC will continue to pide services under the management agreementger@d not less than 180 days from the date
the Company delivers the notice not to renew theagament agreement.
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The Company may also terminate the managementragreavith 30 days’ prior notice from the Compantsard of Directors, without payment of
a termination fee, for cause or upon a change wirabof Annaly or FIDAC, each as defined in thermagement agreement. FIDAC may terminate
the management agreement if the Company becomesaedo register as an investment company undehthestment Company Act of 1940, as
amended, with such termination deemed to occur ideey before such event, in which case the Compauld not be required to pay a
termination fee. FIDAC may also decline to renbe tnanagement agreement by providing the Compatiyh8D-days’ written notice, in which
case the Company would not be required to paynaitetion fee.

The management agreement provides that FIDAC will gl past and future expenses that the Compatheohudit Committee of the Company

incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s accountindgyalelated to the application of GAAP to its Noméncy RMBS portfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2)
restate the Company’s financial statements fop#éd covering 2008 through 2011 as a result@Bhaluation (the “Restatement Filing”); and (3)
investigate and evaluate any shareholder derivadiéveands arising from the Evaluation or the Restate Filing (the “Investigation”); provided,
however, that FIDAC'’s obligation to pay expenseglias only to expenses not paid by the Compsumsurers under its insurance policies. Expe
shall include, without limitation, fees and costsurred with respect to auditors, outside courss®l, consultants engaged by the Company or the
Audit Committee of the Company for the EvaluatiBestatement Filing and the Investigation. The amhpaid by FIDAC related to these expenses
for each of the quarters ended March 31, 2015 add & $1 million, respectively, and is presentethe Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income as Expense recoveries fronadyéan

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC fortsdscurred on the Company’s behalf under the mamamt agreement. In addition, the
management agreement permits FIDAC to require tragany to pay for its pro rata portion of rentepone, utilities, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhequkases that FIDAC incurred in connection with @@npany’s operations. These expenses are
allocated between FIDAC and the Company basederatio of the Company’s proportion of gross assetspared to the gross assets managed by
FIDAC as calculated at each quarter end. FIDACtaedCompany will modify this allocation methodojpgubject to the approval of the Company’
Board of Directors if the allocation becomes in¢ajoiie (i.e., if the Company becomes very highlyelaged compared to FIDAC's other funds and
accounts). During the quarters ended March 315201 2014, reimbursements to FIDAC were less #iamillion, respectively.

RCap

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an adtrétive services agreement with RCap Securities [“RCap”). RCap is a SEC-registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aprhat clears the Company’s securities trade®tarn for normal and customary fees that RCap
charges for such services. RCap may also provialeebage services to the Company from time to tidaring each of the quarters ended Marct
2015 and 2014, fees paid to RCAP were less thanilibn, respectively.

16. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become involmedarious claims and legal actions arising inah&inary course of business. In connection
with certain re-securitization transactions engagdaly the Company, the Company has the obligatimater certain circumstances to repurchase
assets from the VIE upon breach of certain reptatiens and warranties. Management is not awaaapfcontingencies that require accrual or
disclosure as of March 31, 2015 and December 314.20

17. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to March 31, 2015, the Company exeritsedll option to retire securitized debt, calalized by loans held for investment with an
unpaid principal amount of $230 million at par.
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ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financi&@ondition and Results of Operations

"

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we™“our”) financial condition and results of operatsoshould be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes tetetatements included in Item 1 of this quarteglyort on Form 10-Q. All per share amounts,
common shares outstanding and restricted sharélsefdirst quarter of 2015 and all prior periodieet the Company's 1-for-5 reverse stock split,
which was effective April 6, 2015.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this reploat fare subject to risks and uncertainties. Thesesird-looking statements include information

about possible or assumed future results of ounbss, financial condition, liquidity, results gierations, plans and objectives. When we use the

words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” “intend,” “sho uld,” “may,” “would,” “will”  or similar expression

we intend to identify forward-looking statementatements regarding the following subjects, anathgrs, are forward-looking by their nature:
e our business and investment strate
e our ability to maintain existing financing arrangembs and our ability to obtain future financingasgements
e our expectations regarding materiality or sigmifice;
e the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pmdedures;
e material weaknesses in our internal controls owernicial reporting

e inadequacy of or weakness in our internal costoeker financial reporting of which we are not emtty aware or which have not been
detected;

e additional information that may arise from the @egtion of our financial statemen

e general volatility of the securities markets ihigh we invest;

e the impact of and changes to various governmegrams;

e our expected investmen

e changes in the value of our investments;

e interest rate mismatches between our investnamtur borrowings used to finance such purchases;
e changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayaEs;

o effects of interest rate caps on our adjus-rate investments

e rates of default, delinquencies or decreasedvesgaates on our investments;

e prepayments of the mortgage and other loans lymaigiour mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, theoasset-backed securities, or ABS;
e the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatili

e impact of and changes in governmental regulatitansiaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simiktters
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e availability of investment opportunities in reatats-related and other securitie

e availability of qualified personnel;

e estimates relating to our ability to make disitibns to our stockholders in the future;

e our understanding of our competitic

e market trends in our industry, interest rates,ddlst securities markets or the general econc

e our ability to maintain our classification asealrestate investment trust, or REIT, for fedemebime tax purposes; and

e our ability to maintain our exemption from regédion under the Investment Company Act of 194Graended, or 1940 Act.

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefseassumptions and expectations of our futureopeance, taking into account all information
currently available to us. You should not placeusceliance on these forward-looking statementes&tbeliefs, assumptions and expectations can
change as a result of many possible events orrfaatot all of which are known to us. Some of thiastors are described under the caption “Risk
Factors” in our 2014 Form 10-K. If a change os;wur business, financial condition, liquidity aedults of operations may vary materially from
those expressed in our forward-looking statemetg.forward-looking statement speaks only as ofdage on which it is made. New risks and
uncertainties arise from time to time, and it ipossible for us to predict those events or how thay affect us. Except as required by law, we are
not obligated to, and do not intend to, updateewise any forward-looking statements, whether @salt of new information, future events or
otherwise.

Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpeiabn November 21, 2007. We acquire, eitherctlirer indirectly through our subsidiaries,
residential mortgage-backed securities, or RMBSdemtial mortgage loans, commercial mortgage lodad estate related securities and various
other asset classes. We are externally managEdkeg Income Discount Advisory Company, which wierdéo as FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC
is a fixed-income investment management compartyighragistered as an investment adviser with t8€.SFIDAC is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Annaly Capital Management, Inc., or Annaly. FIDA&Ss a broad range of experience in managing inesgtin Agency MBS, which are mortgage
pass-through certificates, collateralized mortgalgi@ations, or CMOs, and other RMBS representitigrests in or obligations backed by pools of
mortgage loans issued or guaranteed by Fannie fMeaddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, ¢eHalized debt obligations, or CDOs,
and other real estate related investments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, grity through dividends and secondarily through
capital appreciation. We intend to achieve thigaiive by investing in a diversified investmenttbalio of RMBS, residential mortgage loans, real
estate-related securities and various other akstas, subject to maintaining our REIT statuseainption from registration under the 1940

Act. The RMBS, ABS, CMBS, and CDOs we purchase malude investment-grade and non-investment gedaleses, including the BB-rated, B-
rated and non-rated classes.

We rely on our Manager’s expertise in identifyirggets within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on various
factors, including expected cash yield, relativeigarisk-adjusted returns, current and projectedit fundamentals, current and projected
macroeconomic considerations, current and projestipply and demand, credit and market risk conagatr limits, liquidity, cost of financing and
financing availability, as well as maintaining dREIT qualification and our exemption from regisimatunder the 1940 Act.

Over time, we may modify our investment allocatstrategy as market conditions change to seek tomizx the returns from our investment

portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wotlr Manages experience, will enable us to pay dividends artdesve capital appreciation throu
various changing interest rate and credit cyclespovide attractive long-term returns to investors
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Our targeted asset classes and the principal imeggs we have made and in which we may in the dutwest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS °

Residential Mortgage Loans e

Non-Agency RMBS, including investme-grade and nc¢-investment grade classes, including the-rated, E-
rated or lower including ne-rated classe

Agency MBS, including securities backed by resiggr@ind commercial real este
Interes-only (“10”) MBS

Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loarisctivdform to the underwriting guidelines of Fankiae and
Freddie Mac, which we refer to as Agency Guideliresl jumbo prime mortgage loans, which are modgag
loans that conform to the Agency Guidelines exesb loan siz

Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that imaag been originated using documentation stanc
that are less stringent than the documentatiordatas applied by certain other first lien mortgémn purchas
programs, such as the Agency Guidelines, but haeeoo more compensating factors such as a bormwitiera
strong credit or mortgage history or significargets

Seasoned si-prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansnizgthave been originated usi
documentation standards that are less stringentghime mortgage loans and that have borrowershvalve
credit or mortgage history which would not meetstendards for prime mortgage loans or Alt-A mogia
loans.

Mortgage loans collateralized by manufactured e-fabricated home:

Mortgage loans collateralized by second lien, heunpgity lines of credit, and other similar finangin
arrangements

FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loang tdwenply with the underwriting guidelines of thedeeal
Housing Administration (FHA) or Department of VetarAffairs (VA) and which are guaranteed by the F6tA
VA, respectively

Mortgage servicing rights associated with residgmtiortgage loans, which reflect the value of titefe strean
of expected cash flows from the contractual rigbtservice a given pool of residential mortgageo

45




Commercial Mortgage Loar e First or second lien loans secured by multifamilggerties, which are residential rental properti@ssisting of
five or more dwelling units; and mixed residentialother commercial properties; retail propertifice
properties; or industrial properties, which mayray not conform to the Agency Guidelir

Other Asset-Backed e CMBS
Securities

e Debt and equity tranches of CDr

e Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgesde and non-investment grade classes, includimg
BB-rated, E-rated, or lower including n«-rated classe

e Loans collateralized by commercial real estai@diassets and equipment that are part of the busithess
administration certified development company pragt

Hedging Instrument e Swaps
e Swaptions
e Futures
e Mortgage option:
e Index options

We commenced operations in November 2007 and fogusivestment activities primarily on acquiring iNAgency and Agency MBS and on
purchasing residential mortgage loans that have beginated by select originators, including tké&il lending operations of leading commercial
banks. At March 31, 2015, based on the amortipstlfzalance of our interest earning assets, appaigly 47% of our investment portfolio was
Agency MBS, 19% of our investment portfolio was Ndgency RMBS, and 34% of our investment portfoliasasecuritized residential mortgage
loans. At December 31, 2014, based on the amdrtiast balance of our interest earning assetspappately 52% of our investment portfolio was
Agency MBS, 16% of our investment portfolio was Négency RMBS, and 32% of our investment portfoliasasecuritized residential mortgage
loans.

We have engaged in transactions with residentiatgage lending operations of leading commerciakband other originators in which we
identified and re-underwrote residential mortgaggnk owned by such entities, and purchased andtsslisuch residential mortgage loans. In the
past we have also acquired formerly AAA-rated NageAcy RMBS and immediately re-securitized thosestes. We sold the resulting AAA-
rated super senior RMBS and retained the rateshi@ted mezzanine RMBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest rate aredit environment. We expect to adjust our
strategy to changing market conditions by shifting asset allocations across these various asssted as interest rate and credit cycles change ove
time. We believe that our strategy, combined WHRAC’s experience, will enable us to pay dividerasl achieve capital appreciation throughout
changing market cycles. We expect to take a lengrtview of assets and liabilities, and our remgbgarnings and estimates of the fair value of our
investments at the end of a financial reportinggaewill not significantly impact our objective gfoviding attractive risk-adjusted returns to our
stockholders over the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potentiains and to finance the acquisition of our ass@tsr income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income wea@aour assets and the cost of our borrowinge. elpect to finance our investments using a
variety of financing sources including, when aualiéa repurchase agreements, warehouse facilitésecuritizations. We may manage our debt and
interest rate risk by utilizing interest rate heslgauch as interest rate swaps, caps, optionsutunm@$ to reduce the effect of interest rate flatituns
related to our financing sources.
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We have elected and believe we are organized areldgerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedas a REIT under the Code. A REIT
generally will not be subject to federal income taxtaxable income that is distributed to stockbdd Furthermore, substantially all of our assets
consist of qualified REIT real estate assets (eftyfpe described in Code Section 856(c) (5)). Weutate that at least 75% of our assets were
qualified REIT assets, as defined in the CodetHerquarter ended March 31, 2015 and the year ebdedmber 31, 2014. We also calculate tha
revenues qualified for the 75% REIT income test famdhe 95% REIT income test for the quarters endarch 31, 2015 and for the year ended
December 31, 2014. We also met all REIT requirdmmgarding the ownership of our common stockthedlistribution of our REIT taxable
income. Therefore, for the quarter ended Marct2815 and for the year ended December 31, 2014elieve that we qualified as a REIT under
Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from regmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are regquio invest a substantial majority of our assets
in loans secured by mortgages on real estate aheéstte-related assets. Subject to maintainindR&IT qualification and our 1940 Act exemption,
we do not have any limitations on the amounts wg imaest in any of our targeted asset classes.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentabeun assets that will be invested in each assesabr whether we will invest in other classes of
investments. We may change our investment stratadypolicies without a vote of our stockholders.

Net Income Summary

The table below presents our net income on a GA&gtstfor the quarters ended March 31, 2015, and.201
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Net Income

(dollars in thousands
(unaudited’

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201! March 31, 201

Net Interest Income:

Interest income (1 $ 243,14* $ 120,66°
Interest expense (: 60,45¢ 22,42
Net interest income (expens 182,68 98,24
Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (1,052 (400
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensicere (6,769 (1,139
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (7,815 (1,539
Other investment gains (losses'

Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 4,05t (2,199
Realized gains (losses) on terminations of intewst swap: (68,579 -
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (42,086 (5,74%¢)
Net gains (losses) on derivativ (106,610 (7,946
Net unrealized gains (losses) on financial instmtsat fair value (20,425 15,01(
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 29,56¢ 8,371
Loss on extinguishment of De - (2,189
Total other gains (losse (87,470 13,257
Other expenses

Management fee 10,32¢ 6,221
Expense recoveries from Manag (1,119 (681)
Net management fel 9,21: 5,54(
General and administrative expen 11,14¢ 4,05¢
Total other expense 20,36: 9,59t
Income before income taxe 67,04: 100,37(
Income taxe: 1 2
Net income $ 67,04. $ 100,36¢
Net income per share available to common shareholde

Basic $ 03 $ 0.5(C
Diluted $ 0.3 $ 0.5C
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin

Basic 205,527,47 205,452,52
Diluted 205,566,95 205,517,75

(1) Includes interest income of consolidated VIE$1560,618 and $85,211 for the quarters ended Matcl2015 and 2014 respective
(2) Includes interest expense of consolidated \GE846,753 and $20,699 for the quarters ended Maitcl2015 and 2014 respective

Our net income decreased by $33 million to $67iami|lor $0.33 per average basic common sharehéqtarter ended March 31, 2015 as comparec

to $100 million, or $0.50 per average basic comstware, for the quarter ended March 31, 2014. Boeedse in earnings for the quarter ended
March 31, 2015 over the same period of 2014 is arilynattributable to a $68 million realized loss e termination of $525 million notional of
interest rate swaps. There were no realized lass&®14 for derivative terminations. In additianthe termination loss, we incurred $36 million

additional realized losses on derivatives in th&t fjuarter of 2015 as compared to the same pefiail4. This loss was offset in part by an inse
in net interest income of $84 million in the ficgtarter of 2015 as compared to the same perio@bf.2

We discuss the changes in our net income in greateil in the discussion on our results of operetibelow.
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Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be tfteby various factors, many of which are beyondommtrol. Our results of operations will

primarily depend on, among other things, the l@felur net interest income, the market value ofamsets, and the supply of and demand for such
assets. Economic trends, both macro as well @ ttiioectly affecting the residential housing marged the supply and demand of RMBS may
affect our operations and financial results. Ws avaluate market information regarding curresidiential mortgage loan underwriting criteria and
loan defaults to manage our portfolio of asset®rege, and debt. Our net interest income, whaflbats the amortization of purchase premiums and
accretion of discounts, varies primarily as a restithanges in interest rates, borrowing coseglitimpairment losses, and prepayment speeds,
which is a measurement of how quickly borrowers gayn the unpaid principal balance on their moregglagins. Further description of these fac

is provided below.

Prepayment Speec Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constap@yment Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteegss, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, anaeotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @rtainty. In general, when interest rates rist

is relatively less attractive for borrowers to nefince their mortgage loans, and as a result, pnegratyspeeds tend to decrease. When interest rates
fall, prepayment speeds tend to increase. For raget¢pan and RMBS investments purchased at a pngnaisi prepayment speeds increase, the
amount of income we earn decreases as the purpterséum on the bonds amortizes faster than expe@@edversely, decreases in prepayment
speeds result in increased income and can extengktiiod over which we amortize the purchase premkor mortgage loan and RMBS investmi
purchased at a discount, as prepayment speedasecithe amount of income we earn increases freradbeleration of the accretion of the discount
into interest income. Conversely, decreases ingymgnt speeds result in decreased income as thetianoof the purchase discount into interest
income occurs over a longer period. Recentlyctireelation between interest rates and prepaymashbt followed normal trends for certain asset
classes. Due to economic hardship, some borrdweets been unable to refinance their loans as umidiexgvstandards are more stringent and credit
conditions remain restrictive.

Rising Interest Rate Environme As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prapat speeds generally decrease. Rising inteatest,rhowever,
increase our financing costs which may resultmetanegative impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency MBS and Non-
Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset adjblaate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- and yigar hybrid ARMs, such interest rate increi
could result in decreases in our net investmertrite; as the increase in our adjustable rate assgtéincrease slower than our adjustable rate
financing. We expect that our fixed-rate assetsld/decline in value in a rising interest rate @oriment and that our net interest spreads on fixed
rate assets could decline in a rising interesteatéronment to the extent such assets are finanitedloating rate debt.

Falling Interest Rate Environmer As indicated above, as interest rates fall, prepnt speeds generally increase. Falling inteegtss, however,
decrease our financing costs which may resultrietgositive impact on our net interest incomee €ampany attempts to mitigate some of the risk
of falling interest rates by using interest ratedgive hedges such as swaps, futures and opti@tsaire designed to increase in value if intenasts
rise. When interest rates fall, the value of sintérest rate derivatives also fall in value asrtbk the derivative is designed to hedge is lowafe
expect our interest rate hedges to lose valudatliag interest rate environment and reduce nepine.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquiringeésted Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradealise of defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a pricé shat its loss-adjusted return profile is in
line with our targeted yields. We retain the miglpotential credit losses on all of the residdmtiartgage loans we hold in our portfolio as welladl

of the Non-Agency MBS. We attempt to mitigate dreidk in the asset selection process. Priohtogurchase of investments, we conduct a credit-
risk based analysis of the collateral securingimuestment that includes examining borrower charstics, geographic concentrations, current and
projected delinquencies, current and projectedrieass and actual and expected prepayment speedsgother characteristics to estimate expected
losses. We also acquire assets which we beliele @i high credit quality.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as measumgdhe aggregate unpaid principal balance of ootgage loans ai
aggregate principal balance of our mortgage relagedrities and the other assets we own, is al®y aevenue driver. Generally, as the size o
investment portfolio grows, the amount of interiestome we receive increases. The larger investmperifolio, however, may result in increa
expenses if we incur additional interest expend#mce the purchase of our assets.
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Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Valu

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotabas analysis and discussion of financial infoiiorathat utilizes or presents ratios based on
GAAP book value. The table and discussion belosg@nt our estimated economic book value. We ckeaind disclose this non-GAAP
measurement because we believe it representsiarasbf the fair value of the assets we own oraéite to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. The estimated economic book value shaaddbe viewed in isolation and is not a substifatebook value computed in accordance with
GAAP.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securitizatand re-securitization transactions where we liletermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeetasto the trusts, which issue tranches of semdrsubordinate notes or certificates. We sell the
senior tranches and therefore have no continumg\vement in these trusts other than being a halfleotes or certificates issued by the trustsh wit
the same rights as other holders of the notesrtficates. However, with respect to certain Vigedlateralized by loans held for investment, wed
the ability to approve loan modifications and detiexe the course of action to be taken as it relatésans in technical default, including whether o
not to proceed with foreclosure. The notes antificates we own that were issued by the trustdangely subordinated interests in those trustse T
trusts have no recourse to our assets other thangnt to a breach by us of the transaction doctswetated to the transfer of the assets by useo t
trusts, but are presented as if we own 100% ofrthst.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan sézafions, we present the pre-securitized assatsterred into the consolidated trusts in our
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as-Ngency or Securitized loans held for investmepbst securitization RMBS assets sold are
presented as liabilities in our Consolidated Stat@siof Financial Condition as Securitized debitateralized by Non-Agency RMBS and
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifiwestment. We have presented the underlying g&suwe transferred to the trusts for the
calculation of GAAP book value at fair value andaeled the corresponding liability for the notesertificates sold to third parties at amortizedt:
or fair value. Fair value adjustments that areanetlit related are recorded in Other compreherisi@me. Credit related impairments are deemed
other-than-temporary and are recorded in earnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into thegrwge also present our estimated economic
book value. We believe this measure representsdtimated value of the securities issued by ttresés that we own. In contrast to GAAP book
value, our estimated economic book value considlelssthe assets we own or are able to disposdedgp, or otherwise monetize. To determine
estimated economic book value, we consider onlyahevalue of the notes or certificates issuedh®ysecuritization and re-securitization trusts tha
we actually own. Accordingly, our estimated ecoimbook value does not include assets or liabdlifer which we have no direct ownership,
specifically the notes or certificates of the sé@@ation and re-securitization trusts that werkd o third parties.

At March 31, 2015, the difference between GAAP bwakie and estimated economic book value was detedhto be $292 million, or $1.44 per
share. At December 31, 2014, the difference betv@®AP book value and estimated economic book valag determined to be $336 million, or
$1.65 per share. This difference is primarily drisby the value of the RMBS assets we have retam#tse re-securitization transactions as
compared to the value of consolidated loans andrgies net of RMBS assets sold, but treated acarsed financing on the statement of financial
condition. In these re-securitization transactjans have generally retained the subordinatedc&yi nonfated, first loss notes or certificates iss
by the securitization trusts. These securitiecarplex, typically locked out as to principal rgpeent, relatively illiquid, and do not necessarily
appreciate or depreciate in tandem with the brobderAgency RMBS market or with the loans on sd@siowned by the trusts. As the senior
notes pay off, we expect the difference betweereeanomic and our GAAP book value to decrease. tdlhles below present the adjustments to
GAAP book value that we believe are necessary ¢gaakely reflect our calculation of estimated eeoicdbook value as of March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014.
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March 31, 201t
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

GAAP Book Value $ 3,523,19!
GAAP Book Value per Shal $ 17.1¢4
Economic Adjustments

Assets of Consolidated VIE (7,552,14!
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VI 4,869,7¢
Interests in VIEs eliminated in consolidati 2,390,1¢
Total Adjustment:- Net (292,16!
Total Adjustment:- Net (per share 1.4
Economic Book Valu $ 3,231,03I
Economic Book Value per Sha $ 15.7(

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

GAAP Book Value $ 3,607,69!
GAAP Book Value per Shal $ 17.5¢
Economic Adjustments

Assets of Consolidated VIE (7,798,79:
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VI 5,095,27%
Interests in VIEs eliminated in consolidati 2,367,9¢
Total Adjustment:- Net (335,56.
Total Adjustment:- Net (per share 1.€
Economic Book Valus $ 3,272,122
Economic Book Value per Sha $ 15.9(

Our estimate of economic book value has imporiamitdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to significant judgment,
primarily the estimate of the fair value of the wéties issued by the trusts which we own and ceaely sell or pledge. Should we sell the assets in
our portfolio, we may realize materially differgmoceeds from the sale than we have estimatedtag oéporting date.

The calculation of estimated economic book valugedbed above is used by management to underdterfdit value of the assets we own and the
liabilities for which we are legally obligated, aisdpresented for informational use only. Thereated economic book value should not be viewed in
isolation and is not a substitute for book valumpated in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the quarter ended March 31, 2015, on aneagde basis, we purchased $1.7 hillion of inveatsets, sold $2.2 hillion of invested assets, and
received $581 million in principal payments relatedur Agency and Non-Agency RMBS. In additiorg wsed $316 million of proceeds received
from principal and interest on our investmentsepay principal on our securitized debt.

The following table summarizes certain charactiessaf our portfolio at March 31, 2015 and Deceniiir2014.
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March 31, December 31

2015 2014
Interest earning assets at pe-end (1) $16,003,48 $17,170,99
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $13,166,02 $13,550,65
Leverage at peric-end 3.7:1 3.8:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 2.6:1 2.6:1
Portfolio Composition, at amortized cc
Non-Agency RMBS 7.% 5.1%
Senior 3.2% 1.5%
Senior, interest onl 2.C% 1.4%
Subordinatec 2.€% 2.2%
Subordinated, interest on 0.1% 0.1%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 10.% 10.2%
Agency MBS 47.5% 52.1%
Residentia 42. % 50.%%
Commercia 3.C% N/A
Interes-only 1.8% 1.2%
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aoge for loan losse - 4.(%
Securitized loans held for investment, at fair ¢ 33.7% 28.5%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 90.(% 92.5%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 10.(% 7.5%
Annualized vield on average interest earning ageethe year ende 6.4% 6.S%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed fidodghe year ended (. 2.2% 2.5%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale _
(2) Includes the effect of realized losses on gderate swap:

The following table presents details of each aslssts in our portfolio at March 31, 2015 and Decengti, 2014. The principal or notional value
represents the interest income earning balancaabf elass. The weighted average figures are wesdby each investment’s respective

principal/notional value in the asset class.

March 31, 201t

Principal o Weightec Weightec Weightec ] Principal
Notional ) _ Average Average Average ) Weightec _ Writedown:
Value at Weightec Weightec Yield at 3 Month 12 Montk Weighted Average Weighted During

PeriodEnd Average Average Weightec Period- CPRat CPRat Average Loss Average Period

dollars in Amortizec Fair  Average End Period- Period- Delinqguenc' Severity

Credit dollars in

thousands Cost Basi  Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60 (2) Enhanceme! thousands
Non-Agenc
Mortgage-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 710,15¢ $ 56.7F $ 78.6¢ 3.5% 14.6% 9.7% 10.(% 29.2% 64.5% 9E% $ 7,87¢
Senior, interest onl $6,133,600' $ 4.8¢ $ 4.6C 1.7% 13.(% 11.9% 12.5% 216 53.9% 0.C% $ -
Subordinate( $ 711,44'$ 53.6]1 $ 68.5¢ 31% 13.2% 14.2% 15.1% 16.€%0 44.%% 11.2% $ 5,04(
Subordinated
interest only $ 21435($% 43¢ $ 2.9t 0.8% 9.4% 9.1% 10.4% 13.%  45.™% 0.C% $ -
RMBS transferred t
consolidated VIE: $3,054,59. $ 53.9¢ $ 80.3(C 45% 17.5%% 9.2% 10.2% 226  60.52% 1.3% $ 22,24.

Agency Mortgag-
Backed Securiﬂge

Residentia $6,060,50! $105.17 $106.3¢ 3.€% 24%  13.%% 12.5% NA NA NA $ =
Commercia $ 432,04: $102.6¢ $104.6( 4.C% 4.1% 0.C% 0.C% NA NA NA $ -
Interes-only $5,888,222$ 451 $ 4.4¢ 1.C% 5.%% 9.2% 10.(% NA NA NA $ =
Securitized loan $5,073,69' $ 99.2¢ $101.4: 6.2% 4.8% 9.8% 8.2% 10.5%  46.(% 36.5%$ 6,11(

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weightegefage Yield is calculated using each investmeaspective amortized co:

(2) Calculated based on reported losses to dalieing widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc.

December 31, 201

Principal o Weightec Weightec Weightec ] Principal
Notional ) . Average Average Average ) Weightec . Writedown:
Value at Weightec Weightec Yield at 3 Month 12 Montk Weighted Average Weighted During

PeriodEnd Average Average Weightec Period- CPRat CPRat Average Loss Average Period

dollars in Amortizec Fair  Average End Period- Period- Delinquenc' Severity

Credit dollars in

thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemel thousands
Non-Agency
Mortgage-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 34495. % 55.0¢ $ 79.6¢ 4% 15.9% 10.8% 11.6% 30.%  68.6% 10.4% $  2,19(
Senior, interest onl $5,178,73 $ 4.3t $ 3.97 1.6% 14.4% 12.2% 13.% 21.2%  51.¢% 0.C% $ -
Subordinatet $ 690,59¢$ 50.1¢ $ 65.7¢ 3.1% 10.60 13.9% 14.€% 15.6%  45.5%% 11.7% $ 5,66¢
Subordinated
interest only $ 216,40:$ 44 $ 3.14 0.€% 9.2% 7.C% 11.%% 13.2%  46.1% 0.(% $ -
RMBS transferred t
consolidated VIE: $3,133,611 $ 53.51 $ 80.0: 45% 17.4%  10.2% 10.7% 21.%  59.5% 1.2% $ 25,60

Agency Mortgag-



Backed Securitie

Residentia $7,774,261 $104.9¢ $106.1¢ 4.(% 3.2% 9.7%  10.6% NA NA NA $ -
Interes-only $3,88452.$% 48¢ $ 4.7¢ 0.2% 3 1% 11.7% 9.5% NA NA NA $ -
Securitized loan $5,241,100 $ 99.1¢ $101.7¢ 6.€% 6.2% 9.8% 8.2% 10.2%  46.(% 36.5%0% 3,64:

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weighteefage Yield is calculated using each investmeespective amortized co
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, 1-month loss, etc.

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgeRRIBS that are not of high credit quality, a portiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldmspurchase discount expected to be accretednteiest income, and a portion is designated as
Non-Accretable Difference, which represents the caii@ principal on the security that is not expddtebe collected. The amount designated as
Non-Accretable Difference may be adjusted over tingsedl on the actual performance of the securitynitierlying collateral, actual and projected
cash flow from such collateral, economic conditiansl other factors. If the performance of a segusitnore favorable than previously estimated, a
portion of the amount designated as Non-AccretBiifference may be accreted into interest income duge. Conversely, if the performance of a
security is less favorable than previously estimhatiee amounts designated as Non-Accretable Difterenay increase, resulting in an OTTI loss.
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The following table presents changes to AccretBlideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it pedd our entire Non-Agency RMBS portfolio
for assets with purchase discounts during the ptesviive quarters.

For the Quarters Ende
December 31 September 3(
March 31, 201 2014 2014 June 30, 201 March 31, 201

(dollars in thousands
Accretable Discour

Balance, beginning of peric $ 987,86: $ 977,04: $ 951,30! $ 990,20: $ 996,69¢
Accretion of discoun (44,350 (44,16%) (39,067) (42,10 (40,309
Purchase 80,71: 2,63¢ 126,75: (6,779 18,81¢
Sales and deconsolidati (29,147 (2,979 (66,167) (66¢) (3,849
Transfers from credit reser 6,96¢ 58,64: 11,80¢ 17,13« 31,66¢
Transfers to credit reser (11,719 (4,319 (7,607 (6,489 (12,826
Balance, end of peric $ 990,33: $ 087,86: $ 977,04. $ 951,30* $ 990,20:

For the Quarters Ende
December 31 September 3(
March 31, 201 2014 2014 June 30, 201 March 31, 201

(dollars in thousands
Non-Accretable Differenc

Balance, beginning of peric $ 908,92° $ 933,66¢( $ 1,046,531 $ 1,171,213 $ 1,217,79
Principal Writedown: (39,959 (37,049 (81,289 (41,15% (47,079
Purchase 80,71: 2,63¢ 126,75 (6,779 18,81¢
Sales and deconsolidati (15,04 - (156,09() (71,389 (1,099
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairmel )

losses 7,81% 63,99: 1,99( 5,341 1,53¢
Transfers from credit reser (6,969 (58,649 (11,809 (17,139 (31,66¢)
Transfers to credit reser 11,718 4,31¢ 7,601 6,48¢ 12,82¢
Balance, end of peric $ 947,20. $ 908,92° $ 933,66¢ $ 1,04651 $ 1,171,13

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our financial statements in accordarntteagcounting principles generally accepted inlimited States, or GAAP, which requires the
use of estimates and assumptions. Managementd$massded and reviewed the development, selectidndianlosure of critical accounting estimates
with the Company’s Audit Committee. Managementédaads that the most critical accounting policies estiimates, since these estimates require
significant judgment, are interest income and ethan-temporary impairment, or OTTI, on Né&gency RMBS, the determination of the appropr
accounting model for Non-Agency RMBS, the impactiefault and prepayment assumptions on RMBS, a@ngdaie measurements. Financial
results could be materially different if other medblogies were used or if management modifiedsssimptions.

For a discussion of the Company'’s critical accaumpolicies and estimates, see “Critical Accounfiaijicies and Estimates” in Part Il, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” included i@ @ompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Refer to Note 2(p) in the Notes to Consolidatedakaial Statements for a discussion of accountindagece recently adopted by the Company or
expected to be adopted by the Company in the future

Results of Operations for the Quarters Ended Marct31, 2015 and 2014

Our primary source of income is interest incomenedron our assets. Our economic net interest incaqmals interest income excluding interest
earned on cash and cash equivalents less inteysmtge and realized losses on our interest raigesed

Interest Income

Interest income increased by $122 million, or 10184243 million for the quarter ended March 3112@rom $121 million for the same period of
2014. The increase is primarily due to the inazéasagency holdings of approximately $5.3 billeequired primarily during the second half of 2014
and the increase in securitized loans of approxm&4.4 billion also acquired during the secontf 662014. Interest income on our Agency RMBS
and securitized loan portfolios increased by $5#aniand $75 million, respectively. Both portfoiancreased from the prior year due to acquisit
during 2014 financed by additional repurchase ageses and secured debt as we increased our levexigéo 3.7:1 from the first quarter of 2014.
The increases are partially offset by a declinatarest income on our Non-Agency portfolio of $8lion year over year as principal payments and
expected losses have reduced the interest earalagde of these assets by $164 million or 4% ofdbe assets.
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Interest Expense¢

Interest expense increased by $38 million, or 17@%$60 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2&bm $22 million for the same period of
2014. The increase is primarily due to increaséerést expense of $26 million on our securitizebtdnd $12 million on our repurchase
agreements. Since March 31, 2014, we have inatdagerage to finance additional investments inkyeRMBS, Non-Agency RMBS, as well as
securitized loans held for investment. Our repasehagreement obligation increased by $6.7 bitthd®B.3 billion as of March 31, 2015 as compe
to $1.6 billion as of March 31, 2014. Interestexpe for GAAP reporting does not include the peciadsts of our derivatives, which are reported
separately.

Net Economic Interest Incom

Our economic net interest income equals interestnre, less interest expense and realized lossesranterest rate swaps. For the purpose of
computing economic net interest income and rastaing to cost of funds measures throughout #itien, interest expense includes net payments
on our interest rate swaps, which is presentedpastaf Realized gains (losses) on derivativesunConsolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income. Interest rate swaps aretasednage the increase in interest paid on repsechgreements in a rising rate

environment. Presenting the net contractual istggayments on interest rate swaps with the int@ad on interest-bearing liabilities reflects our
total contractual interest payments. We believ® gthesentation is useful to investors becauseptigisentation depicts the economic value of our
investment strategy, by showing actual intereseagp and net interest income. Where indicateekgst expense, including interest payments on
interest rate swaps, is referred to as econongcast expense. Where indicated, net interest ira@ffecting interest payments on interest rate
swaps, is referred to as economic net interestiieco

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAfeasurements reflected in the Management’'s Bismuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Add: Net Less: Ner

Realized Realized Economic
GAAP GAAP Losses on Economic GAAP Net Losses on Net
Interest Interest Interest Rate Interest Interest Interest Rate Interest
Income Expense Swaps Expense Income Swaps Income (1)

For the Quarter Ended Mar
31, 201%

For the Quarter Ende
December 31, 201

For the Quarter Ende
September 30, 201

For the Quarter Ended June

243,14! 60,45¢ 15,16¢ 75,62t 182,68! 15,16¢ 167,20:

242,45! 65,79¢ 17,67¢ 83,47 176,66: 158,97.

$ $ $

$ $ 17,67¢ $
56,01¢ $ 15146¢ $ 17,13 $ 134,33

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $
$ $
190,35! $ 38,88t $ 17,13:
$ $
$

B |P |8 B P
A P R e e

2014 134,31¢ 20,68( 12,06 32,74: 113,63t 12,06’ 101,57:
For the Quarter Ended Mar ]
31, 2014 120,66° $ 22,42t 5,65( 28,07t 98,24: 5,65( 92,58t

(1) Excludes interest income on cash and cash algunts.
Net Interest Rate Sprea

The following table shows our average earning adsel], interest earned on assets, yield on avémsgrest earning assets, average debt balance,
economic interest expense, economic average coshd$, economic net interest income, and netesteate spread for the periods presented.
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For the Quarter Ende

March 31, 201! March 31, 201
(dollars in thousands
Average Average  Average Average
Balance Interest  Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost
Assets:
Interes-earning assets (1

Agency RMBS $ 7,491,390 $ 67,78¢ 3.6% $1,977,91! $ 16,04( 3.2%

Non-Agency RMBS 999,06 24,42 9.8% 779,92 19,41: 10.(%

Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V 1,639,96. 68,18:¢ 16.€% 2,055,20! 77,41: 15.1%

Jumbo Prime securitized residential mortgage |t 610,83¢ 8,00: 5.2%  774,85: 7,80(C 4.C%

Seasoned sub-prime securitized residential mortiyeges
held for investmer 4,499,93 74,43 6.€% - - 0.C%
Total $15,241,20 $242,82° 6.4% $5,587,891 $120,66: 8.€%
Liabilities and stockholders' equit

Interes-bearing liabilities

Agency repurchase agreements $ 7,198,681 $ 22,66: 1.%% $1,610,24. $ 7,37¢ 1.8%

Non-Agency repurchase agreeme 1,116,67! 6,20¢ 2.2% - = 0.C%

Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 688,26( 7,947 4.€% 881,19¢ 15,15¢ 6.€%

Securitized debt, collateralized by jumbo primedestial
mortgage loan 499,07" 5,341 4.2% 653,58t 5,54¢ 3.4%

Securitized debt, collateralized by seasonet-prime
residential mortgage loal 3,808,60 33,46¢ 3.5% - - 0.C%
Total $13,311,29 $ 75,62¢ 2.2% $3,145,02! $ 28,07¢ 3.€%
Net economic interest income/net interest rate spael $167,20: 4.C% $ 92,58¢ 5.1%
Net interesti-earning assets/net interest margii $ 1,929,90. 4.0% $2,442,87. 6.€%
Ratio of interesi-earning assets to interest bearing liabilitie: 1.14 1.7¢

(1) Interes-earning assets at amortized ¢
(2) Interest includes cash paid on sw

Net Economic Interest Income and the Average EargiAsset:

Our economic net interest income increased by $iflom or 81%, to $167 million for the quarter ediMarch 31, 2015 from $93 million for the
same period of 2014. Our net interest rate sprehith equals the yield on our average assetshessconomic average cost of funds decreased by
97 basis points for the quarter ended March 3152&lcompared to the same period of 2014. Thmteeest margin, which equals the net economic
interest income as a percentage of the net avéxa@gace of our interest-earning assets less osireisitbearing liabilities, decreased by 224 basis
points for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 as ewetpto the same period of 2014. Our net intenasgin declined due to a decline in the total
average yield on our interest-earning assets 0b22& points which was not fully offset by the ldexin our average cost of funds of 130 basis
points. The portfolio has experienced significelminges from March 31, 2014 as we have increasegvetage Agency RMBS and securitized Ic
held for investment and our Non-Agency RMBS hadided as a percentage of the total portfolio. Ehelsanges have increased our leverage,
resulting in lower spreads, but higher interesbime.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Fur
The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typaaliglated to LIBOR and the term of the
financing. The table below shows our average lwegtbfunds, economic interest expense, averageotfistds (inclusive of realized losses on

interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBOR a@eesix-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR retatd average six-month LIBOR, and
average cost of funds relative to average onesandanonth LIBOR.
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Average On-
Month Average Cos Average Cos

LIBOR of Funds of Funds
] ~ Relativeto Relative to  Relative to
Economic Average Average Average Si- Average Six- Average Average Six-
AveraFje Interest Cost of One-Month Month Month One-Month Month
Debt Balanc Expense (1 Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ende _ _
March 31, 201! $13,311,29 $ 75,62 2.21% 0.17% 0.3¢% (0.21%) 2.1(% 1.8%
For The Quarter Ende _ _
December 31, 201 $13,336,71 $ 83,47 2.5(% 0.16% 0.32% (0.17%) 2.352% 2.17%
For The Quarter Ende _
September 30, 201 $10,351,25 $ 56,01¢ 2.1% 0.15% 0.3%% (0.17%) 2.01% 1.84%
For The Quarter Ended Ju _ _
30, 2014 $ 4,483,557 $ 32,74 2.92% 0.15% 0.32% (0.17%) 2.71% 2.6(%
For The Quarter Ende _ _
March 31, 201 $ 3,145,021 $ 28,07t 3.51% 0.1€% 0.3%% (0.17%) 3.41% 3.24%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interatt swaps

Average interest-bearing liabilities increased 9.8 billion, for the quarter ended March 31, 2@%5ompared to the same period of

2014. Economic interest expense increased by $#iBmfor the quarter ended March 31, 2015 as pared to the same period of 2014. The
increase in average interest-bearing liabilities iesult of the increase in leverage from repigetagreements and securitized debt entered irte sin
March 31, 2014, offset by declines in our seciedizlebt collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS. Theitwoltal financing was used to increase our
Agency RMBS and secured residential mortgage lo&ssour average interest-bearing liabilities ims®d, we have had an increase in interest
expense. Average one-month and six month LIBORewerl basis point and 5 basis points, respectiiretye first quarter of 2015 as compared to
2014. While we do acquire interest rate hedgesitigate changes in interest rate risks, the hedggsnot fully offset interest expense movements.

Net othe-than-temporary credit impairment losses

OTTI losses are generated when fair values debkh@v our amortized cost basis, an unrealized ksd,the expected future cash flows decline
prior periods, an adverse change. When an unegbliss and an adverse change in cash flows ogeuwjll recognize an OTTI loss in earnings. In
addition, if we intend to sell a security, or beéieve will be required to sell a security in anaalized loss position, we will recognize an OTTddo

in earnings equal to the unrealized loss.

OTTI losses were $8 million and $2 million for thearters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectiv@i these amounts, $7 million of the OTTI
for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 was relatesg¢arities included in our consolidated VIEs. oAdMarch 31, 2015, we had seven securities i
unrealized loss position totaling less than $liamilfor which we did not recognize impairment. Weend to hold these securities until they recover
their amortized cost. We continue to monitor aweistment portfolio and will record an OTTI for allvestments in an unrealized loss position for
which we do not believe we will recover our amartizost prior to maturity or sale.

Net gains (losses) on derivativ

The table below shows a summary of our net gassjlon derivative instruments, for the quartersedrdarch 31, 2015 and 2014.
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For the Quarter Ende
March 31, March 31,

2015 2014
(dollars in thousands
Periodic interest cost of interest rate swaps $ (15,169 $ (5,650
Realized gain (loss) on derivative instruments;
Mortgage Option: 412 602
Treasury Future (27,457 (701
Swaptions 144 -
Other Derivative Assel (21) -
Swaps- Terminations (68,579 -
Total realized gain (loss) on derivative instrunsemiet (95,490 $ (5,749
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, |
Interest Rate Sway 9,96( $ 4,06¢
Mortgage Option: 224 74€
Treasury Future (4,909 (7,009
Swaptions (1,227 -
Total unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instratsenet: 4,05¢ (2,199
Total gain (loss) on derivative instruments, $ (106,610 $ (13,596

Our derivative portfolio primarily includes inteteste swaps, swaptions, Treasury futures, andgaget options During the quarter ended March
2015, we terminated 7 interest rate swap agreemeétitsa notional value of $525 million. Also dugithe quarter ended March 31, 2015, one swap
matured with a notional value of $500 million, wiiwas not replaced. Also during the first quadfe2015, we reduced our Treasury positions by
$390 million of notional. The reduction in bothr@awaps and Treasury future positions is due taeHaction in our Agency positions during the
quarter of 2015. We reduced our Agency positiaming the first quarter of 2015 to position the Gmmy to take advantage of market opportunities
in Non-Agency RMBS and mortgage loans. We mayioaetto sell off holdings and reposition our detiva portfolio in the future based on
changes in markets, interest rates and opportaratiailable in both Non-Agency RMBS and mortgagso

During the quarter ended March 31, 2015, we reaaghnet losses on derivatives of $107 million coragdo net losses of $14 million for the same
period of 2014. The net gains and losses on ouvatares include both unrealized and realized gaim$ losses. Realized gains and losses inclu
net cash paid and received on our interest ratpswaring the period as well as sales and settlenoérour Treasury futures and mortgage

options. Realized gains and losses for the finsrigr of 2015 includes the payment of $68 millonerminate interest rate swaps. In addition, we
incurred realized losses on Treasury futures ofr2lfon as interest rates continued to be voladileing the first quarter of 2015.

Unrealized gains and losses include the changeamkehvalue, period over period, on our derivatipegfolio. We may or may not ultimately real
these unrealized derivative gains and losses démgnd trade activity, changes in interest ratetthe values of the underlying securities. Total
unrealized gains during the quarter ended Marcl2315 is $4 million, an increase of $6 million fr@n unrealized loss of $2 million for the same
period of 2014.

Our interest rate swaps are primarily used to ecocally hedge the effects of changes in interestsran our portfolio specifically our floating rate
debt. Therefore, we included the periodic intecests of the interest rate swaps for the quaeteded March 31, 2015 and 2014 on these economic
hedges in our presentation of economic net inténesime and our net interest spreads. As we dacwgunt for these as hedges for GAAP
presentation, we present these gains and lossasaselg in the consolidated statements of operaténd comprehensive income. The increase in the
net periodic interest cost of the interest ratepsnare primarily due to declines in interest rgesr over year as we pay a fixed rate on our ietere

rate swaps and are receiving a lower floating rate.

Treasury futures are not included in our economtierest expense and economic net interest incaffeealso do not include any gains or losses on
our mortgage options in our economic interest egpeand economic net interest income as the morigatiens were sold for income generation and
not as an economic hedge for changes in intereest i our portfolio. As we identify opportunitiesmortgage backed securities market, we may
from time to time purchase or sell mortgage optiamduding both call and put options to take adage of these opportunities. We had one
mortgage option as of March 31, 2015 with an urizedlgain of less than $1 million.
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Net Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Financial Instrumts at Fair Value

We have elected a fair value option with changdaiimvalue reflected in earnings for our Agencyl &on-Agency IO RMBS securities, certain of
our securitized loans held for investment, colkieed by a seasoned sub-prime pool of residemiiatgage loans, and the related financing for the
securitized loans consolidated as a VIE in ouestant of financial condition. The table below skdhe unpaid principal, fair value and impact of
change in fair value on each of these financiatimsents:

As of As of For the Quarter Ende
March 31, March 31,
March 31, 201* March 31, 201« 2015 2014
(dollars in thousand (dollars in thousand (dollars in thousand:
Unpaid Unpaid Gain/(Loss) o1 Gain/(Loss) ot
Principal/ Principal/ Change in Change in
Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Assets:
IO RMBS securitie! $ 12,277,92 554,32« 7,145,93 329,53: 7,45¢ 15,041(
Nor-Agency RMBS securitie N/A 10,59: - - (909) -
Securitized loans held for investmen
fair value 5,073,69! 5,132,90; - - (10,657) -
Liabilities:
Securitized debt at fair valt 4,296,43' 4,198,19. - - (6,327 -
Total gain (loss) on financii
instruments, net $ 2164805 $ 9,896,000 $ 7,14593 $ 329,53 $ (10,42 $ 15,01(

Unrealized gains and losses on our Agency and Ngen8y RMBS portfolio represent the changes invfalues of the securities from the prior
period. Unrealized gains and losses on our eAtgency and Non-Agency RMBS portfolio are reflectee@arnings. 10 securities represent the right
to receive the interest on a pool of mortgage basleeurities, including both Agency and Non-Agenuyrtgage pools. The fair value of IO RMBS
securities are heavily impacted by changes in depggarepayment rates. When IO securities prepayholder of the 10 security will receive less
interest on the investment due to the reduced ipahc During the first quarter of 2015, we acqdiresidual interests in several seasoned pools for
mortgage loans. These holdings generally do neg haraditional unpaid principal amount and pashdaased on guidance in the trust documents
when excess cash is available. Many of these igddio not pay any interest and may never payesteiWe have elected to carry these residual
interests at fair value with changes in fair valeitected in earnings. As of January 1, 2015 Cbepany adopted the guidance in ASU 2014-13,
Measuring the Financial Assets and the Financibilities of a Consolidated Collateralized Finagcintity, which allowed us to carry both the
assets and liabilities of certain consolidated VAE®ir value with changes in fair value reflecte@arnings.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2015, we recbroeealized losses in earnings of $10 million, pared to a gain of $15 million for the same
period of 2014.

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets and Loss anguishment of securitized debt

Net realized gains on sales of investments weren§iion and $8 million for the quarters ended Maf1, 2015 and 2014, respectively. We do
forecast sales of investments as we generally ¢xpéavest for long term gains, however, from titodime, we may sell assets to create liquidity
necessary to pursue new opportunities, achieveteadeverage ratios as well as for gains wheregpiiedicate a sale is most beneficial to us, tre
most prudent course of action to maintain a tadyesk adjusted yield for our investors.

Also during the first quarter of 2014, the compaaychased $54 million of securitized debt colldteeal by nonagency RMBS for cash payments
$56 million. When the Company acquires its outditag debt, it extinguishes the outstanding debtraedgnizes a gain or loss based on the
difference between the carrying value of the delotthe cost to acquire the debt. This acquisitésulted in a net loss of $2 million which is
reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Opematand Comprehensive Income as a loss on extingeishof debt during the quarter ended March
31, 2014.

Net Management Fees and General and Administratisepenses

The table below shows our total management feegandral and administrative, or G&A, expenses aspeoed to average total assets and average
equity for the periods presented.
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Total
Total Management Total Manageme!
Management Fee and G&A Fee and G&A
Fee and G&/ Expenses/Toti: Expenses/Averag

Expense: Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollar
thousands

For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 20,36: 0.4% 2.28%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $ 22,61: 0.41% 2.51%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 201- $ 13,17¢ 0.4% 1.54%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 10,31" 0.42% 1.22%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 9,27¢ 0.54% 1.11%

(1) Does not include ortime management fee reduction of $24 mill

We incurred management fees of approximately $1l@omiand $6 million for each of the quarters endiéaich 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
also recognized reimbursements from our Managateglto the amended management agreement of apyatey $1 million for each of the quart
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. The managemeit Besed on our stockholders’ equity as definatiérmanagement agreement. See further
discussion of the management fee, including amenthie the management agreement, as well as ajheeraents with our Manager in our
discussion of related party transactions below.

G&A expenses were approximately $11 million anch@Hion for the quarters ended March 31, 2015 a@ti® respectively. G&A expenses include
servicing fees paid by our consolidated VIEs ofragpnately $6 million and $1 million for the quarseended March 31, 2015 and 2014. These
servicing fees are related to the consolidatiothefwhole loan securitization vehicles and are fraich interest income earned by the

VIEs. Excluding the servicing fees, our G&A expesave increased in the first quarter of 2015aspared to the same period of 2014 primaril

a result of increased legal and professional ses\iees.

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equ

The table below shows our economic net interestnire, realized gains (losses) on sale of assetthantedit related OTTI, realized and unrealized
gains (losses) on interest rate swaps and 10$,n@@agement fee and G&A expenses, and income&ak, as a percentage of average equity, and
the return on average equity for the periods pitesen

Realized ant
Unrealized
] ~ Gains (Losses)
. Realized Gain on Total
Economic (Losses) on Interest Rate Management Fee
Net Interest Sales and Swaps and & G&A
Income/Averag OTTI/Average 10s/Average Expenses/Averac  Returnor
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Average Equit
(Ratios have been annualiz¢
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( 17.0% 2.44% (8.9€%) (2.28%) 7.52%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 15.7(% (3.51%) (7.75%) (2.51%) 0.72%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 2 15.64% 7.41% 2.51% (1.54%) 43.9%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2 12.0(% (1.17%) 2.55% (1.22%) 12.3%%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( 11.0% 0.7&% 1.31% (1.11%) 11.9¢%

* Includes effect of realized losses on interett gavaps

Our net income was $67 million and $100 million foe quarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, régplgc Economic net interest income as a
percentage of average equity increased by 602 pesits for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 aspewed to the same period of 2014. The
increase in our economic net interest income ayeeptage of average equity is due to an incresisedrest earned, net of economic interest
expense, on assets over the prior year as we hergased our interest bearing assets to enhaneeom®mic interest income and increased our
leverage. Return on average equity decreased ®pdsis points for the quarter ended March 31, 2&1&mpared to the same period of 2014. The
decline is due to lower income in the current cerapprimarily as a result of realized losses orivagives, including terminations of interest rate

swaps.
Core earnings

Core earnings is a non-GAAP measure and is defisédAAP net income excluding unrealized gains eratiigregate portfolio, impairment losses,
realized gains on sales of investments, gain onrdegidation, extinguishment of debt and certalveonon-recurring gains or losses. As defined,
Core earnings include interest income and expesgeeh as realized gains or losses on derivatigesi o hedge interest rate risk. Core earnings are
provided for the purpose of comparability to otheer issuers, but have important limitations. gaenings as described above helps evaluate our
financial performance without the impact of certaamsactions and is of limited usefulness as alyfical tool. Therefore, core earnings should not
be viewed in isolation and is not a substituterfierincome or net income per basic share compataddordance with GAAP.
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Our core earnings were $120 million, or $0.59 perage basic common share, for the quarter endedh\&d, 2015 compared to $83 million, or
$0.40 per average basic common share, for the panm in 2014. We attribute the majority of thergase in core earnings to the increase in net
interest income of $84 million from the acquisitiohadditional Agency RMBS and securitized loamgsithe quarter ended March 31, 2014. The
increase was offset in part by additional realitbsdes on derivatives of $36 million due to theéase in hedge costs as the portfolio has
increased. The increase was also offset in pagrhyigher management fees and general and administexpenses of $11 million due to increased
servicing costs and an increase in the managereest éffective in the second half of 2014.

The following table provides GAAP measures of mebime and net income per basic share availablentonon stockholders for the quarters ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014 and details with resperdonciling the line items to core earnings arddteel per average basic common share amounts:

For the Quarter Ende

March 31, 201!  March 31, 201«
(dollars in thousands, except per sk
data)

GAAP Net income $ 67,04, $ 100,36¢

Adjustments
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 7,81¢ 1,53«
Net unrealized (gains) losses on derivati (4,055 2,19¢
Net unrealized (gains) losses on financial instmimat fair value 10,42¢ (15,010
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investn (29,564 (8,377)
Other (gains) losse - 2,18¢
Realized (gains) losses on terminations of intenast swap 68,57¢ -

Core Earning: $ 120,24 $ 82,897
GAAP net income per basic common sk $ 0.3t $ 0.5C
Core earnings per basic common st $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4C

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortgage loans
and other assets for our portfolio, pay dividenas ather general business needs. Our principatesuwof capital and funds for additional
investments primarily include earnings from ourastments, borrowings under securitizations argeexitizations, repurchase agreements and
financing facilities, and proceeds from equity affigs.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundsenfeinm of repurchase agreements and, subject to
market conditions, other types of financing. Téerts of the repurchase transaction borrowings uogiemaster repurchase agreements generally
conform to the terms in the standard master repselagreement as published by the Securities hydarst Financial Markets Association, or
SIFMA, as to repayment, margin requirements and#ygegation of all securities we have initiallydsender the repurchase transaction. In addi
each lender typically requires that we include seqmental terms and conditions to the standard mespeirchase agreement. Typical supplemental
terms and conditions include changes to the mangiimtenance requirements, cross default provisi@ugiired haircuts (or the percentage that is
subtracted from the value of RMBS that collatersdithe financing), purchase price maintenance mepeints, and requirements that all disputes
related to the repurchase agreement be litigatedbitrated in a particular jurisdiction. Thesevisions may differ for each of our lenders.
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We expect to meet our short term liquidity needsdbying on the cash flows generated by our invesisi These cash flows are primarily compt
of monthly principal and interest payments receigadur investments. We may also sell our investmand utilize those proceeds to meet our
term liquidity needs or enter into non-recoursafiicing of our assets through sales of securitidisitd parties of loan securitizations or RMBS re-
securitization transactions, similar to transactitrat we have completed in prior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetswill be sufficient to enable us to meet
anticipated short-term liquidity requirements. Hwer, a decline in the value of our collateral dozduse a temporary liquidity shortfall due to the
timing of margin calls on the financing arrangensesnid the actual receipt of the cash related teip@l paydowns. If our cash resources are at any
time insufficient to satisfy our liquidity requireants, we may have to sell investments, potentétlly loss, or issue debt or additional equity sées

in a common stock offering.

To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitalaand funds to continue to be provided by
earnings from our investments, borrowings undeusgzations and re-securitizations, repurchaseeagrents and other financing facilities, as well as
proceeds from equity offerings. As a result of failure to file our SEC filings by the filing datequired by the SEC (including the grace period
permitted by Rule 12b-25 under the Securities ErghaAct of 1934, as amended), we are not curretitijble to file a new Form S-3 registration
statement. Our ineligibility to use Form S-3 dgrthis time period may have a negative impact arability to quickly access the public capital
markets because we would be required to file a-fong registration statement and wait for the SB@éclare such registration statement effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capitalatésed above, we may enter into warehouse fadldied use longer dated structured repurchase
agreements. The use of any particular sourcepifatand funds will depend on market conditiongibility of these facilities, and the investment
opportunities available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&ELp million and $165 million at March 31, 2015 dhelcember 31, 2014, respectively. As a
result of our operating, investing and financing\aiies described above, our cash position deeeédéy $46 million from December 31, 2014 to
March 31, 2015.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $34 million and $64 million for the quardeended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respecti
The cash provided by our operations is primarilg ttuinterest received in excess of interest parihd the period. During the first quarter of 2015
interest received net of interest paid was $17Hanil This cash received was offset in part bymeamgts on derivatives of $110 million.

Our investing activities provided cash of approxieha$396 million and $436 million for the quartensded March 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. During the quarter ended March ®1L52we purchased investments of $3.0 billion, prilp&Agency RMBS. This use of cash was
offset during the period from sales of investmearit$2.8 billion and principal repayments of $581liom during the first quarter of 2015. The
purchases and sales activity was primarily dubééoGompany continuing to balance its Agency padfti maximize spread income and provide
liquidity for purchases of Non-Agency RMBS and ngaige loan pools.

Our financing activities used cash of $475 milleomd $537 million for the quarters ended March ®1,%and 2014, respectively. During the quarter
ended March 31, 2015, we paid proceeds on our cBpse agreements, net of proceeds on our repuragesements of $159 million. We also
repaid principal of our securitized debt of $224liomi and paid dividends of $92 million.

Our recourse leverage is 2.6:1 at each of the ggeoded March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.ré@aurse leverage excludes the securitized
debt which can only be repaid from the proceedtherassets securing this debt in their respectl&s VT he increase in our recourse leverage
compared to March 31, 2014 is a result of the m®ean repurchase agreements to primarily expanédg@ency RMBS portfolio as well as to finance
significant acquisitions of Non-Agency RMBS invesimh assets. Our recourse leverage is presentedati® to our economic net equity.

We believe that our cash balances provide an apptepevel of liquidity. Even though we have wireeted Agency RMBS investments, we expect
to meet our future cash needs primarily from ppatand interest payments on our portfolio and ofoamticipate we will need to sell unrestricted
Agency RMBS investments to meet our liquidity neeéée expect to continue to finance our RMBS pdidgftargely through repurchase agreements
and loans through the securitization market. Intaad we may from time to time sell securitiesissue debt as a source of cash to fund new
purchases.
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At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the rem@imaturities on our RMBS repurchase agreements agfollows.

December 31

March 31, 201! 2014

(dollars in thousands
Overnight $ - $ -
1-29 days 5,614,64! 2,652,71
30 to 59 day: 688,17t 1,371,85!
60 to 89 day: 774,52¢ 656,91!
90 to 119 day. - 2,068,74!
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 1,218,87! 1,705,15.
Total $ 8,296,22: $ 8,455,38:
Average days to maturil 65 Day: 100 Day:

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weousgance our operations with our RMBS investmer@sir counterparties negotiate a ‘haircut’
when we enter into a financing transaction, whiakias from lender to lender. The size of the haireflects the perceived risk associated with
holding the RMBS by the lender. The haircut pregidenders with a cushion for daily market valuezemoents that reduce the need for a margin

to be issued or margin to be returned as normb} olireases or decreases in RMBS market valuesrodst March 31, 2015, the weighted average
haircut on our repurchase agreements collaterabiyefigency MBS was 5.2% compared to a haircut oandy RMBS of 5.1% at December 31,
2014. At March 31, 2015, the weighted average bawo our repurchase agreements collateralizeddsyAjency RMBS was 30.1% compared to a
haircut on Non-Agency RMBS of 29.4% at December2®1,4. The haircuts on Agency and Non-Agency RMB& atand-alone basis did not
significantly change as of March 31, 2015 compaoeithe prior year end.

As the fair value of the Non-Agency RMBS is mor#idult to determine, as well as more volatile jperto period than Agency RMBS, the Non-
Agency RMBS typically requires a larger haircutepRrchase agreements also subject us to two typeargin calls. First, there are monthly margin
calls that are triggered as principal payments@eepayments are received by us as these paynosvees the value of the collateral. As a result, we
expect to receive margin calls from our repurclameterparties monthly simply due to the principaydowns on our Agency RMBS. The monthly
principal payments and pre-payments are not knovadvance and vary depending on the behavior didh@wers related to the underlying
mortgages. Second, counterparties make marginaraleturn margin as a result of normal daily ims®s or decreases in asset fair values. In
addition, when financing assets using standard ffr8IFMA Master Repurchase Agreements, the copatéy to the agreement typically nets its
exposure to us on all outstanding repurchase agmismand issues margin calls if movement of threvisluies of the assets in the aggregate exceeds
their allowable exposure to us. A decline in agsietvalues could create a margin call, or maytgao margin call depending on the counterparty’s
specific policy. In addition, counterparties catesia number of factors, including their aggregaqgosure to us as a whole and the number of days
remaining before the repurchase transaction clesesto issuing a margin call. See Note 5 to oungblidated Financial Statements for a discussion
on how we determine the fair values of the RMBSatetalizing our repurchase agreements.

The table below presents our average daily repsechalance and the repurchase balance at eacH paddor the periods presented. Our balan
period-end tends to have little fluctuation frone tiverage daily balances except in periods wherarevadjusting the size of our portfolio by using
leverage as we did during 2014. Our average répseagreement balance for the quarter ended NMar@015 increased compared to our average
repurchase agreement balance for the quarter évidath 31, 2014 due to additional borrowings onm@purchase agreements in excess of
repayments during 2014. We continue to deploytabfor strategic purchases of investments.
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Average Repurchas:
Repurchase Balance at
Period Balance Period Enc

(dollars in thousands

Quarter End March 31, 20: $ 8,315,35 $ 8,296,22.
Quarter End December 31, 2C $ 8,247,72. $ 8,455,38
Quarter End September 30, 2( $ 7,741,833 $ 7,838,16:
Quarter End June 30, 20 $ 3,054,73 $ 5,564,55
Quarter End March 31, 20: $ 1,648,42' $ 1,561,92I

We are not required to maintain any specific dekgguity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverfagehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 atat tebt was approximately $13.2 billion and
$13.6 hillion which represented a debt-to-equitjoraf approximately 3.7:1 and 3.8:1, respectivelye include our repurchase agreements and
securitized debt in the numerator of our debt-toHggatio and stockholders’ equity as the denorttina

During the first quarter of 2015, we decreasedlevgrage as we sold portions of our Agency poufadi generate liquidity to settle repurchase
agreements. At March 31, 2015, we had repurchgigments with nineteen counterparties. All of rpurchase agreements are secured by
Agency and Non-Agency RMBS or, in limited circumgtas, cash. Under these repurchase agreementayvweotnbe able to reclaim our collateral
but still be obligated to pay our repurchase obidges. We mitigate this risk by limiting our expoe to any counterparty to approximately 10% or
less of our total equity, as well as ensuring all counterparties are highly rated. Thereforepeléeve the risk of loss of our collateral posted i
mitigated by the terms of our agreements. As ofdii&1, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had $9i8rhitespectively, of securities pledged
against our repurchase agreement obligations.

Our repurchase agreements have original maturaieging from 30 to 365 days. The average termwsirepurchase agreements at March 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014 was 65 days and 100 dapectegely. We expect to renew each of our repwsetegreements at maturity. When we renew
our repurchase agreements, there is a risk thatillveot be able to obtain as favorable an interatt as a result of rising rates. We offset thle of

our repurchase agreements primarily through theotisgerest rate swaps. The average remainingnitias on our interest rate swaps at March 31,
2015 range from less than 1 year to 19 years anel haveighted average maturity of approximateleérg. We use these interest rate swaps to
protect the portfolio from short term changes iteiast rates. We currently have two swap countgegsaiVhen our interest rate swaps are in a net
loss position (expected cash payments are in exdéesgected cash receipts on the swaps), we pliateral as required by the terms of our swap
agreements. As of March 31, 2015, we have post8d #iillion of cash and securities as collateradto swap counterparties.

Secured Debt Financing Transactior
We did not re-securitize any RMBS or jumbo primgidential mortgage loans during the quarters ehiadh 31, 2015 or 2014.
Exposure to European Financial Counterpartie

Our Agency RMBS are primarily financed with repuaish agreements. We secure our borrowings undss #ggeements by pledging our Agency
RMBS as collateral to the lender. The collateralplezige exceeds the amount of the borrowings uealer agreement, typically with the extent of
over-collateralization being at least 3% of the amtdorrowed. If the counterparty to the repuretagreement defaults on its obligations and we are
not able to recover our pledged assets, we aiskabfrlosing the over-collateralized amount. Hmeount of this exposure is the difference between
the amount loaned to us plus interest due to thateoparty and the fair value of the collaterabgled by us to the lender including accrued interest
receivable on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouestteate risks. Under these swap agreements,edg@lAgency RMBS as collateral as part of a
margin arrangement for interest rate swaps thanaaa unrealized loss position. If swap countegpaere to default on its obligation, we would be
exposed to a loss to the extent that the amoumtiloAgency RMBS pledged exceeded the unrealizexiddoghe associated swaps and we were not
able to recover the excess collateral.
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Over the past several years, several large Eurdijearcial institutions have experienced finandificulty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial initbns or their U.S. subsidiaries have provide
financing under repurchase agreements or we haeeeehinto interest rate swaps with such instingioWe have entered into repurchase agreer
or interest rate swaps with six counterpartiesfadarch 31, 2015 that is either domiciled in Eurapés a U.S.-based subsidiary of a European-
domiciled financial institution. The following tebsummarizes our exposure to such counterpattiglaiech 31, 2015:

March 31, 201!

Repurchas Interest Rat: Exposure as
Number of ~ Agreement Swaps at Fair Percentage of

Country Counterpartie  Financing alue Exposure (1  Total Asset:

(dollars in thousands

France 1 $ 62994 $ - 3 46,937 0.27%
Germany 1 - - - 0.0(%
Netherlands 1 411,84: - 12,86¢ 0.07%
Switzerlanc 2 1,510,12. 10,98¢ 175,51¢ 1.01%
United Kingdom 1 572,18. - 16,80+ 0.1(%
Total 6 $ 3,124,008 $ 10,98¢ $ 252,12 1.45%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgedl&seral to each counterparty less the aggreafaiepurchase agreement financ
and unrealized loss on swaps for each counterg

At March 31, 2015, we did not use credit defaulaps/or other forms of credit protection to hedgedkposures summarized in the table above.

If the European credit crisis continues to imphetse major European financial institutions, itésgible that it will also impact the operationgdtodir
U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings and operatiandccbe adversely affected by such events. We tmoaur exposure to our repurchase agreement
and swap counterparties on a regular basis, usirigus methods, including review of recent ratiggrecy actions, financial relief plans, credit
spreads or other developments and by monitoringtheunt of cash and securities collateral pledgebtiae associated loan amount under repur:
agreements or the fair value of swaps with our tenparties. We make reverse margin calls on ountegparties to recover excess collateral as
permitted by the agreements governing our finanaimgngements or interest rate swaps, or may tigki® other actions to reduce the amount of our
exposure to a counterparty when necessary.

Stockholder’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, the Company entered into aityedjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Seties LLC (“UBS”). The Company did
not sell any shares of its common stock under ¢pgtedistribution agreement during the quarterdezhMarch 31, 2015 and 2014. On September
24,2009, the Company implemented a Dividend Reitnwent and Share Purchase Plan (‘DRSPP”). The DR&BRuspended during the quarter
ended March 31, 2012 when the Company was no langeent in its filings with the SEC. There weresiares issued as a part of the DRSPP
during the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.

As a result of the Company’s delay in filing its GEeports by the filing date required by the SE®I(iding the grace period permitted by Rule 12b-
25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, a=nded), the Company will not be able to issue shafeommon stock under the equity
distribution agreement or the DRSPP until the Camyddes an effective shelf registration statemeiih the SEC.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2015, we dedldigidends to common shareholders totaling $98anil or $0.48 per share. During the quarter
ended March 31, 2014, we declared dividends to comshareholders totaling $92 million, or $0.45 giedire.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarasraf March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
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Related Party Transaction
The Management Agreement

We entered into a management agreement with FIDA@;h provided for an initial term through DecemBér 2010 with an automatic one-year
extension option and subject to certain terminatights. Effective November 28, 2012, the manag#rfee was reduced from 1.50% to 0.75% per
annum of gross stockholders’ equity, which remaiimeeffect until we were current on all of its fiis required under applicable securities laws.

On August 8, 2014, the management agreement wasdati@nd restated. Effective August 8, 2014, taeagement fee was increased to 1.20% of
gross stockholders’ equity. The amended agreeprentides for a two year term ending August 7, 2846 may be automatically renewed for two
year terms at each anniversary date unless attiee-thirds of the independent directors or the holaéra majority of the outstanding shares of
common stock elects not to renew the agreemehein $ole discretion and for any or no reason.eslithe management agreement is terminated fo
“cause” or our Manager terminates the managemeeeagent, in the event that the management agreesienininated or not renewed, we must
pay to FIDAC a termination fee equal to two timles average annual management fee, calculatedtias ehd of the most recently completed fiscal
quarter prior to the date of termination. Our Magragill continue to provide services under the ngemaent agreement for a period not less than 180
days from the date we deliver the notice not t@vethe management agreement.

We may also terminate the management agreemenB@ittays’ prior notice from our Board of Directonsthout payment of a termination fee, for
cause or upon a change of control of Annaly orManager, each as defined in the management agrée@en Manager may terminate the
management agreement if we become required taeegis an investment company under the Investmamp@ny Act of 1940, as amended, with
such termination deemed to occur immediately besadh event, in which case the Company would noegaired to pay a termination fee. Our
Manager may also decline to renew the managemeeg¢isgnt by providing us with 180-daystitten notice, in which case we would not be reed
to pay a termination fee.

The management agreement provides that Our Manalygay all past and future expenses that the Camgpr our Audit Committee incur to: (1)
evaluate the Company’s accounting policy relatetthéoapplication of GAAP to its Non-Agency RMBS folio (the “Evaluation”); (2) restate the
financial statements for the period covering 2008ugh 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (the t&ement Filing”); and (3) investigate and
evaluate any shareholder derivative demands arisdng the Evaluation or the Restatement Filing (fineestigation”); provided, however, that our
Manager's obligation to pay expenses applies angxpenses not paid by our insurers under ouramser policies. Expenses shall include, without
limitation, fees and costs incurred with respeduditors, outside counsel, and consultants engaged or our Audit Committee for the Evaluation,
Restatement Filing and the Investigation. The amhpaid by our Manager related to these expensdabhdajuarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
is $1 million, respectively, and is presented ia @onsolidated Statements of Operations and Corapsale Income as Expense recoveries from
Manager.

The Company is obligated to reimburse our Managecdsts incurred on the Company’s behalf undentheagement agreement. In addition, the
management agreement permits our Manager to regsiite@ pay for its pro rata portion of rent, telepé, utilities, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhequbases that our Manager incurred in connectioh agerations. These expenses are allocated
between the Company and our Manager based ontthefahe proportion of gross assets comparetiéagross assets under management by our
Manager as calculated at each quarter end. Ouadarand us will modify this allocation methodolpgybject to the approval of our Board of
Directors, if the allocation becomes inequitable.(iif the Company becomes very highly leveragedmared to our Managers other funds and
accounts). During the quarters ended March 315201 2014, reimbursements to our Manager werdhass$1 million.

Clearing Fees
On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administragamices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered broker-

dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Annalyclear trades for us and RCap is paid customaryifeesurn for such services. RCap may also
provide brokerage services to us from time to timibe fees paid to RCap are less than $1 milliontfe quarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.
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Restricted Stock Grant

We granted 260,200 shares of restricted stock famees of our Manager and its affiliates and mesbéour Board of Directors on January 2,
2008. On February 2, 2015 we granted 84,700 sldrestricted stock to employees of our ManagerMarch 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
there were approximately 145,200 and 39,400 undestares of restricted stock issued to employe&$AC, respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual gégions at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 20 eEtimated principal repayment schedule
of the securitized debt is based on expected dasis bf the residential mortgage loans or RMBSadjsisted for expected principal writedowns on
the underlying collateral of the debt.

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Greater Thai
Within One Oneto Thre« Three to Five or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 7,996,22. $ 300,000 $ - $ - $ 8,296,22
Securitized dek 883,52( 1,376,12 905, 30! 1,536,42! 4,701,37
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 12,08( 3 - - 12,08
Interest expense on securitized debi 179,64¢ 304,84 230,27¢ 561,59! 1,276,36:
Total $ 9,071,470 $ 198097 $ 1,13558. $ 2,098,021 $ 14,286,05

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeafaMarch 31, 201¢

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

o ~ Greater Tha
Within One  One to Thre« Three to Five or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 8,155,38 $ 300,000 $ - $ - $ 8,455,38
Securitized dek 880,36 1,427,23i 940,97! 1,645,701 4,894,28.
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 18,45 3 - - 18,45
Interest expense on securitized debt 184,07 313,26 238,77t 573,62: 1,309,74.
Total $ 9,23827. $ 2,040,50; $ 1,179,75 $ 2,219,32' $ 14,677,86

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaifeDecember 31, 201
In addition to the above contractual obligations,vave committed to fund commercial MBS project$230 million as of March 31, 2015. These
funding obligations represent MBS guaranteed bgvegiment agency and will be fully funded over tiest 3 years. This amount is included as
payable for securities on our Statements of Firsi@ondition at March 31, 2015.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatetities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance or
special purpose entities, which would have beesibéished for the purpose of facilitating off-balargheet arrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes. Further, we have n@rgnteed any obligations of unconsolidated estiti@r do we have any commitment or intent to
provide funding to any such entities.
Capital Requirements
At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we hachaierial commitments for capital expenditures.
Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetadsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxafd®me (subject to certain adjustments). We
intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to oockholders. Before we pay any dividend, we must fineet any operating requirements and
scheduled debt service on our financing facilidied other debt payable.
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Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabilite® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a resittirest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamgénterest rates do not necessarily correlate inflation rates or changes in inflation ratesir O
consolidated financial statements are prepareddordance with GAAP and our distributions will betermined by our Board of Directors consistent
with our obligation to distribute to our stockhotdet least 90% of our REIT taxable income on aruahbasis in order to maintain our REIT
qualification; in each case, our activities andfinial condition are measured with reference tmhaal cost or fair market value without considei
inflation.

Other Matters

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssooh to become regulated as an investment comyaagr the 1940 Act. If we were to become
regulated as an investment company, our abilitys® leverage would be substantially reduced.

Section 3(a) (1) (C) of the Investment Company defines an investment company as any issuer tiegigaged or proposes to engage in the bus

of investing, reinvesting, owning, holding or trnagliin securities and owns or proposes to acquiesiment securities having a value exceeding 40%
of the value of the issuer’s total assets (exclisivU.S. Government securities and cash itemgnomnconsolidated basis (the “40% tedEjcluded
from the term “investment securities,” among ottiémgs, are securities issued by majority-ownedsgliaries that rely on the exemption from
registration provided by Section 3(c) (5) (C) of tlhvestment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Adselding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we rfayn in the future, rely on the exemption from
registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of theestment Company Act. Section 3(c) (5) (C), dsrpreted by the staff of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (or the SEC), requires usvesinat least 55% of our assets in “mortgages #mef iens on and interest in real estate” (or
Qualifying Real Estate Assets) and at least 80%uofassets in Qualifying Real Estate Assets plakagtate related assets. The assets that we e,
therefore, are limited by the provisions of andtiiles and regulations promulgated under the Imvest Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept eetébesd “Companies Engaged in the Business of AgggMortgages and Mortgage-Related
Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778). Underctreept release, the SEC is reviewing interpresisees related to the Section 3(c) (5) (C)
exemption. We are monitoring developments relatettiis matter.

Based on our calculations, as of March 31, 2015@exkmber 31, 2014, we were in compliance withettemption from registration provided by
Section 3(c)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investm@aompany Act.

As a result of the Dod&fank Wall Street Reform and Consumer ProtectionofA2010, the U.S. Commaodity Futures Trading Cossioin, or CFTC
gained jurisdiction over the regulation of intereste swaps. The CFTC has asserted that thissthseperators of mortgage real estate investment
trusts that use swaps as part of their businesgintodall within the statutory definition of Commidty Pool Operator, or CPO, and, absent relief
the Division or the Commission, to register as CPOs December 7, 2012, as a result of numerousestg for no-action relief from the CPO
registration requirement for operators of mortgeege estate investment trusts, the Division of SBapler and Intermediary Oversight of the CFTC
issued no-action relief entitled “No-Action Relfedbm the Commodity Pool Operator Registration Regmient for Commodity Pool Operators of
Certain Pooled Investment Vehicles Organized asdadge Real Estate Investment Trusts” that perm@P@ to receive relief by filing a claim to
perfect the use of the relief. A claim submittedab@PO will be effective upon filing, so long ae tlaim is materially complete. The conditiong tha
must be met to claim the relief are that the may#geeal estate investment trust must:

e Limit the initial margin and premiums requiredgstablish its commodity interest positions to marerthan five percent of the fair market
value of the mortgage real estate investment's total asset:

e Limit the net income derived annually from itsromodity interest positions that are not qualifylmegging transactions to less than five
percent of the mortgage real estate investmert’s gross income
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e Ensure that interests in the mortgage real estatsstment trust are not marketed to the publia @s a commodity pool or otherwise as ol
a vehicle for trading in the commodity futures, ecoadity options, or swaps markets; ¢

e Either:
e identify itself as ¢ mortgage REI” in Iltem G of its last U.S. income tax return oniidk12(-REIT; or

e ifit has not yet filed its first U.S. income teeturn on Form 1120-REIT, disclose to its sharééid that it intends to identify itself as a
“mortgage REI” in its first U.S. income tax return on Form 1-REIT.

While we disagree that the CFTC’s position thattigrage real estate investment trusts that use sagpart of their business model fall within the
statutory definition of a CPO, we have submittadlaam for the relief set forth in the no-actionieélentitled “No-Action Relief from the Commodity
Pool Operator Registration Requirement for Comnyoliol Operators of Certain Pooled Investment Meki©rganized as Mortgage Real Estate
Investment Trusts” and believe we meet the critieniasuch relief set forth therein.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, market value risk and real estate risk. While
we do not seek to avoid risk completely, we belitheerisk can be quantified from historical expece and we seek to actively manage that risk, to
earn sufficient compensation to justify taking thosks and to maintain capital levels consistéttt te risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with myestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiattgage loans and face more credit risk on
assets we own which are rated below “AAA.” Thedit risk related to these investments pertairibeability and willingness of the borrowers to
pay, which is assessed before credit is grantedrmwed and periodically reviewed throughout tlalor security term. We believe that residual
credit quality, and thus the quality of our assistgrimarily determined by the borrowers’ credivfiles and loan characteristics. We use a
comprehensive credit review process. Our analyfdizans includes borrower profiles, as well as a#ibn and appraisal data. We use compensating
factors such as liquid assets, low loan to valtiesand regional unemployment statistics in euiidgdoans. Our resources include a proprietary
portfolio management system, as well as third psoffware systems. We may utilize a third party diligence firm to perform an independent
underwriting review to ensure compliance with @rigtguidelines. In addition to statistical samplieghniques, we create adverse credit and
valuation samples, which we individually review. \Wgect loans that fail to conform to our standaadd do not meet our underwriting criteria. Once
we own a loan, our surveillance process includg®y analysis through our proprietary data andiser files. Additionally, the Non-Agency
RMBS and other ABS which we acquire for our poitf@re reviewed by us to ensure that they satisfyrigk based criteria. Our review of Non-
Agency RMBS and other ABS includes utilizing a pietary portfolio management system. Our reviewoh-Agency RMBS and other ABS is
based on quantitative and qualitative analysifefrisk-adjusted returns on Non-Agency RMBS aneémo#BS. This analysis includes an evaluation
of the collateral characteristics supporting theB8vsuch as borrower payment history, credit prefileographic concentrations, credit
enhancement, seasoning, and other pertinent factors

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many dast including governmental, monetary and tax jpegicdomestic and international economic and
political considerations and other factors beyondamntrol. We are subject to interest rate riskannection with our investments and our related
debt obligations, which are generally repurchaseegents, warehouse facilities and securitizatlesécuritization vehicles. Our repurchase
agreements and warehouse facilities may be ofdifrdturation that is periodically refinanced at entrmarket rates. We intend to mitigate this risk
through utilization of derivative contracts, pririfinterest rate swap agreements, swaptions, éstand mortgage options.
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Interest Rate Effects on Net Interest Incon

Our operating results depend, in large part, oieifices between the income from our investmerdtanborrowing costs. Most of our warehouse
facilities and repurchase agreements provide fimgncased on a floating rate of interest calculatea fixed spread over LIBOR. The fixed spread
varies depending on the type of underlying assétwtollateralizes the financing. Accordingly, thertion of our portfolio which consists of floati
interest rate assets will be match-funded utilizing expected sources of short-term financing, evbilr fixed interest rate assets will not be match-
funded. During periods of rising interest rates, tlorrowing costs associated with our investmesrtd to increase while the income earned on our
fixed interest rate investments may remain subistintinchanged. This will result in a narrowingtb® net interest spread between the related asset
and borrowings and may even result in losses. Byrtturing this portion of the interest rate anebdrcycles, defaults could increase and result in
credit losses to us, which could adversely affetliguidity and operating results. Such delinquesor defaults could also have an adverse effe
the spread between interest-earning assets amdstteearing liabilities. Hedging techniques arglpd®ased on assumed levels of prepayments of
our fixed-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagas and RMBS. If prepayments are slower or fakim assumed, the life of the mortgage loans
and RMBS will be longer or shorter, which would ued the effectiveness of any hedging strategiesmiageuse and may cause losses on such
transactions.

Interest Rate Effects on Fair Valu

Another component of interest rate risk is theaftdanges in interest rates will have on theviaiue of the assets we acquire. We face the rik th
the fair value of our assets will increase or daseeat different rates than that of our liabilitiesluding our hedging instruments. We primarissas
our interest rate risk by estimating the duratibowr assets and the duration of our liabilitiesr&lion essentially measures the market price Niofe
of financial instruments as interest rates chaWée generally calculate duration using various feialhmodels and empirical data. Different models
and methodologies can produce different duratianbers for the same securities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimgrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100 basis
points from current levels. Therefore, the volgtiln the fair value of our assets could increagaificantly when interest rates change beyond 100
basis points. In addition, other factors impactftievalue of our interest rate-sensitive investiseand hedging instruments, such as the shajpe of t
yield curve, market expectations as to future ggerate changes and other market conditions. Alaugly, in the event of changes in actual inte
rates, the change in the fair value of our assetddMikely differ from that shown below and sudffetence might be material and adverse to our
stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Ris

We also invest in adjustablate mortgage loans and RMBS. These are mortgade®BS in which the underlying mortgages are tyfhycsubject tc
periodic and lifetime interest rate caps and flpassich limit the amount by which the security’s¢darest yield may change during any given period.
However, our borrowing costs pursuant to our finiag@agreements will not be subject to similar iestrns. Therefore, in a period of increasing
interest rates, interest rate costs on our borrgsvaould increase without limitation by caps, whiile interest-rate yields on our adjustable-rate
mortgage loans and RMBS would effectively be limit€his problem will be magnified to the extent asgjuire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not
based on mortgages which are fully indexed. Intadithe mortgages or the underlying mortgagemii®MBS may be subject to periodic payment
caps that result in some portion of the interestddeferred and added to the principal outstandiigs could result in our receipt of less cash
income on our adjustable-rate mortgages or RMBS @wneed in order to pay the interest cost orrelated borrowings. These factors could lower
our net interest income or cause a net loss dyrénipds of rising interest rates, which would hammn financial condition, cash flows and results of
operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Ris

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®MBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdgéng, have interest rates based on indices and
re-pricing terms similar to, but of somewhat shonaturities than, the interest rate indices arpriging terms of the mortgages and RMBS. Inn
cases the interest rate indices an@nieing terms of our mortgage assets and our fundources will not be identical, thereby creatingrdaerest rat
mismatch between assets and liabilities. Our cotrmls would likely rise or fall more quickly thamould our earnings rate on assets. During pel
of changing interest rates, such interest rate wmisihes could negatively impact our financial caoditcash flows and results of operations. To
mitigate interest rate mismatches, we may utilieehedging strategies discussed above. Our analysgks is based on FIDAC'’s experience,
estimates, models and assumptions. These anafgamrmodels which utilize estimates of fair vahral interest rate sensitivity. Actual economic
conditions or implementation of investment decisiby our management may produce results that diffgificantly from the estimates and
assumptions used in our models and the projecsedtseshown in this Form 10-Q.
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Our profitability and the value of our portfolim@luding derivatives) may be adversely affectedrduany period as a result of changing interest
rates. The following table quantifies the potdrttaanges in net interest income and portfolio gdlr our Agency MBS portfolio should interest
rates go up or down 50 and 100 basis points, asguparallel movements in the yield curves. Allrmges in income and value are measured as
percentage changes from the projected net interastne and portfolio value at the base interest saenario. The base interest rate scenario as
interest rates at March 31, 2015 and various egtgnagarding prepayment and all activities areevacbach level of rate change. Actual results
could differ significantly from these estimates.

March 31, 201!
Projected Percentay
Change in Portfolio
Value with Effect of
Projected Percenta( Interest Rate Swaps
hange in Net and Other Hedging

Change in Interest Ra Interest Income (1 Transactions (2
-100 Basis Point (20.28%) 0.2&%
-50 Basis Point 0.17% 0.3%%
Base Interest Ra - -
+50 Basis Point 2.0&% (0.8(%)
+100 Basis Point 1.61% (2.00%)

(1) Change in annual economic net interest incomeudled interest expense on interest rate sv
(2) Projected Percentage Change in Portfolio Valmmsed on instantaneous moves in interest |

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums and discounts on such invessméihbe amortized or accreted into interest
income. In general, an increase in prepayment vateaccelerate the amortization of purchase prens, thereby reducing the interest income ee
on the investments. Conversely, discounts on sugkstments are accelerated and accreted into shieemme increasing interest income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions dagarthe rate at which the borrowers will
prepay the underlying mortgages. In general, wheadfrate or hybrid adjustablate mortgage loans or RMBS are acquired via bdangsy we may
but are not required to, enter into an interes satap agreement or other hedging instrument ffedtizely fixes our borrowing costs for a period
close to the anticipated average life of the fixatd portion of the related assets. This strateglesigned to protect us from rising interest ratethe
borrowing costs are effectively fixed for the dimatof the fixed-rate portion of the related asskEiswever, if prepayment rates decrease in a rising
interest rate environment, the life of the fixedkerportion of the related assets could extend beyloa term of the swap agreement or other hedging
instrument. This could have a negative impact arresults from operations, as borrowing costs waadonger be fixed after the end of the hedging
instrument while the income earned on the fixed laytatid adjustable-rate assets would remain fike@xtreme situations, we may be forced to sell
assets to maintain adequate liquidity, which caaldse us to incur losses.

Basis Risk

We seek to limit our interest rate risk by hedguegtions of our portfolio through interest rate pwand other types of hedging instruments. Interest
rate swaps are generally tied to underlying Trgabanchmark interest rates. Basis risk relatebeaisk of the spread between our RMBS and
underlying hedges widening. Such a widening mageaudecline in the fair value of our RMBS thairisater than the increase in fair value of our
hedges resulting in a net decline in book value Widening of mortgage-backed securities yields Bmeadsury benchmark interest rates may result
from a variety of factors such as anticipated duaomonetary policy actions or other market fastor

70




Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported in
other comprehensive income if no OTTI has beengeized in earnings. The estimated fair value of¢hsecurities fluctuates primarily due to
changes in interest rates, prepayment speeds, thigikidity, credit quality, and other factors. @ally, in a rising interest rate environment, the
estimated fair value of these securities wouldXpeeted to decrease; conversely, in a decreasiegest rate environment, the estimated fair vafue o
these securities would be expected to increasemakket volatility increases or liquidity decreggbe fair value of our investments may be advg
impacted.

Real Estate Market Ris

We own assets secured by real property and mayrea¥mproperty directly in the future. Residenpebperty values are subject to volatility and may
be affected adversely by a number of factors, oioly, but not limited to, national, regional anddbeconomic conditions (which may be adversely
affected by industry slowdowns and other factdmjal real estate conditions (such as an oversupigtpusing); changes or continued weakness in
specific industry segments; construction qualige and design; demographic factors; and retroactie@ges to building or similar codes. In addit
decreases in property values reduce the valueeafdttateral and the potential proceeds availabke hiorrower to repay our loans, which could also
cause us to incur losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REfdtus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage loans,
RMBS, and other assets and related debt againsfféms of major interest rate changes. We gelyesakk to manage risk by:

e monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the resdg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e attempting to structure our financing agreementsatee a range of different maturities, terms, aipatipns and interest rate adjustm
periods;

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, opiaaps, floors and forward sales to adjust trexést rate sensitivity of our investments .
our borrowings

e using securitization financing to lower averaget @dsunds relative to shc-term financing vehicles further allowing us to rivegthe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and unigy dates of the investments not
included in the securitization; ai

e  actively managing, on an aggregate basis, tleegst rate indices, interest rate adjustment pgriald gross reset margins of our
investments and the interest rate indices and td@rg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and liabilities. We attempt to
control risks associated with interest rate movemeviethods for evaluating interest rate risk idel@n analysis of our interest rate sensitivityp,fa
which is the difference between interest-earnirggssand interest-bearing liabilities maturingespricing within a given time period. A gap is
considered positive when the amount of interest-sahsitive assets exceeds the amount of intextessensitive liabilities. A gap is considered

gap would tend to adversely affect net interestiime, while a positive gap would tend to resultnrirecrease in net interest income. During a period
of falling interest rates, a negative gap woulditemresult in an increase in net interest incontfeéle a positive gap would tend to affect net insgr
income adversely. Because different types of assetdiabilities with the same or similar maturstimay react differently to changes in overall mt
rates or conditions, changes in interest ratesaffagt net interest income positively or negativelien if an institution were perfectly matched in
each maturity category.
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The following table sets forth the estimated mayusi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets aterest-bearing liabilities at March 31, 2015heT
amounts of assets and liabilities shown within dipaar period were determined in accordance wWithcontractual terms of the assets and liabili
except adjustable-rate loans, and securities aheded in the period in which their interest rades first scheduled to adjust and not in the period
which they mature and includes the effect of theregst rate swaps. The interest rate sensitiviguofassets and liabilities in the table could vary
substantially based on actual prepayments.

March 31, 201t

(dollars in thousands

Within 1Yearto & Greater thai
3 Months 3-12 Months Years 3 Years Total

Rate sensitive asse $ 175263 $ 242377, $ 657,92¢ $ 23,444,228 $ 28,278,62
Cash equivalent 119,51 - - - 119,51°
Total rate sensitive asse¢ 1,872,14 2,423,77. 657,92¢ 23,444,28 28,398,13
Rate sensitive liabilitie 7,734,66. 2,078,66: 14,07( 1,067,17. 10,894,57
Interest rate sensitivity g¢ $ (5,862,51) $ 345,10t $ 643,85¢ $ 22,377,111 $ 17,503,56
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ (5,862,51) $ (5517,40) $ (4,87354) $ 17,503,56
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap ¢
percentage of total rate sensitive as -21% -19% -17% 62%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager’'sigepce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thasesas rely on models which utilize estimates
of fair value and interest rate sensitivity. Acteabnomic conditions or implementation of investtmdgcisions by our manager may produce results
that differ significantly from the estimates and@a®sptions used in our models and the projectedtsesiown in the above tables and in this Form 10-
Q. These analyses contain certain forward-lookbagements and are subject to the safe harborrsateset forth under the heading, “Special Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year eh@ecember 31, 2014, we disclosed that managenaentkntified a material weakness in our
internal controls over financial reporting. Werndiéed an overreliance on spreadsheets consistimganual inputs and complex calculations used to
record transactions and estimates supporting tia@dial statement amounts and disclosures.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0€fr determined that the aforementioned materiakness in our internal controls over financial
reporting was not fully remediated and that oucldisure controls and procedures were not fullyatife as of March 31, 2015. The Company
continues its work on implementing new systemsethice its reliance on spreadsheets and has bedlep@sting these systems in preparation

to complete implementation in 2015.

Based on the substantial work described in our FIOK for the year ended December 31, 2014 angrbeedures performed through the filing of
this Form 10-Q, we have concluded that the conatgidifinancial statements for the periods coveyednl included in this Form 10-Q are prepared
in accordance with GAAP and fairly present in afliterial respects, our financial position, resuftseration and cash flows for each of the periods
presented herein.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebkeawveno changes in our “internal control over faiakreporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-15 (f)

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as asrttiat occurred during the period covered bydhrterly report that has materially affectec
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our irtal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial stateisdor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Conterétof our Board of Directors initiated an internal
investigation, with the assistance of outside celand financial advisors engaged by outside cduregarding the facts and circumstances relating
to our accounting for Non-Agency RMBS and the riesteent of our financial statements.

In addition, our Board of Directors received thdegivative demand letters alleging, among othergsyj that the directors and our officers, as well a
our Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutigsis by failing to institute adequate internattrols and failing to ensure that we made accurate
financial disclosures. These letters request, @nadiner things, that the Board of Directors takioacto investigate and remedy the alleged breaches
of fiduciary duty. The Audit Committee concludésl investigation in 2014 and reached an agreemigmtFADAC that resolves the issues raised in
the derivative demand letters. The Audit Commitsgeursuing additional remedies against otheligmregarding the facts and circumstances
relating to our accounting for Non-Agency RMBS dhd restatement of our financial statements. Theseother potential actions that may be filed
against us, whether with or without merit, may divbe attention of management from our businessntour reputation and otherwise may have a
material adverse effect on our business, finamgatition, results of operations and cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Under “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Farl10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, wiodatrisk factors related to (i) risks
associated with adverse developments in the moetfiagnce and credit markets, (ii) risks associatgith our management and relationship with
Manager, (iii) risks related to our business, (iigks related to our investments, (v) regulatorg degal risks, (vi) risks related to our commnr

stock (vii) tax risks, and (viii) risks associatedh our prior late filings and related matter¥.ou should carefully consider the risk factorsfeeth
in our Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2014. As od#te hereof, there have been no material chang#setask factors set forth in o
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

ITEM 5. Other Information
On May 7, 2015, our board of directors adoptedraaraiment to our amended and restated bylaws thaires that any of the following four types
litigation be brought in the Circuit Court for Biattore City, Maryland (or, if that court does nowbkgurisdiction, the United States District Cowot f

the District of Maryland, Baltimore Division): (@)derivative lawsuit; (b) an action asserting bheafcfiduciary duty; (c) an action pursuant to any
provision of the Maryland General Corporation Lang (d) any other action asserting a claim govehyetthe internal affairs doctrine.
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Iltem 6.

Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7
4.1

311

31.2
321

32.2

Exhibits

The exhibits required by this item are set forthttoe Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chéntievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1he Company’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and iraratpd herein by
reference)

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentgowation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's@d®rt on Form 8-K filed on
May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corpiora(filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Compé’'s Report on Form-K filed on
November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by retere

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corpiora(filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Compé’'s Report on Form-K filed on April
6, 2015 and incorporated herein by referen

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiowation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’sp@e on Form 8-K filed on April
6, 2015 and incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComyarReport on Form & filed on
December 19, 2011 and incorporated herein by nedeje

Amendment to the Amended and Restated Bylaws dRéggstrant

Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany$ Registration Stateme
on Amendment No. 1 to Fornm-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by reference
Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Execut®&icer and President of the Registrant, pursuargection 302 of the Sarba-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Qféir of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 30@fSarban«-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Execut®&icer and President of the Registrant, pursuarit U.S.C. Section 1350
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Gfér of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8edB50 as adopted pursuan
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document *

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen:

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documen

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&@ment Created*
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documen

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documgl

*%

Submitted electronically herewith. tAthed as Exhibit 10.1 to this report are the foilg documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible

Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of March 31, 20d6audited) and December 31, 2014 (der
from the audited consolidated financial statemeiii})Consolidated Statements of Operations anch@ehensive Income for the quarters ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014; (iii) Consolidated Statetnoé Stockholders' Equity for the quarters endeatdW 31, 2015 and 2014; (iv) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the quarters endedhviit, 2015 and 2014; and (v) Notes to Consolidiiedncial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisddport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lambiase
Matthew Lambias
(Chief Executive Officer and Preside
and duly authorized officer of the registra

Date: May 11, 201

By: /s/Rab Colligan
Rob Colligan

(Chief Financial Office

and principal financial officer of the registra
Date: May 11, 201

S-1



Exhibit 3.7
ARTICLE XV

EXCLUSIVE FORUM FOR CERTAIN LITIGATION

Unless the Corporation consents in writing to thlection of an alternative forum, the Circuit Cofant Baltimore City, Maryland, or, if that
Court does not have jurisdiction, the United St&esirict Court for the District of Maryland, Battiore Division, shall be the sole and exclusive
forum for (a) any derivative action or proceedimgught on behalf of the Corporation, (b) any actsserting a claim of breach of any duty owed by
any director or officer or other employee of thef@@wation to the Corporation or to the stockholddrthe Corporation, (c) any action asserting a
claim against the Corporation or any director dicef or other employee of the Corporation arigingsuant to any provision of the MGCL or the
Charter or Bylaws of the Corporation, or (d) anti@casserting a claim against the Corporationnyrdirector or officer or other employee of the
Corporation that is governed by the internal asfaioctrine.



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessary to n

the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not mislgadith respect to the period cove
by this report

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finandatements, and other financial information includiedhis report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resaftoperations and cash flows of the registrantfased for, the periods presented in
report;

4. The registrard’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (as defir

in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatatnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15+15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaosed such disclosure controls and procedurde tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardeng the reliability of financial reporting arile preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amatguiures, as of the end of the period covered sy réport based on sL
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrast’

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, o

reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmtver financial reportini
to the registrar s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmatcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 11, 201t

[s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Rob Colligan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessary to n

the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not mislgadith respect to the period cove
by this report

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finandatements, and other financial information includiedhis report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resaftoperations and cash flows of the registrantfased for, the periods presented in
report;

4. The registrard’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (as defir

in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatatnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaosed such disclosure controls and procedurde tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepa

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardeng the reliability of financial reporting arile preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amatguiures, as of the end of the period covered sy réport based on sL
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrast’

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, o

reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmtver financial reportini
to the registrar s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmatcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 11, 201

/s/Raob Colligan

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige



Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ@f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgf)the period ended March 31,
2015 to be filed with Securities and Exchange Cassinih on or about the date hereof (the “ReportMdtthew Lambiase, President, and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamBection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2A®&J.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefttion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the

Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deemds tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
May 11, 201t




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ@f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgf)the period ended March 31,
2015 to be filed with Securities and Exchange Cassinin on or about the date hereof (the “Report’lRdb Colligan, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of thb&aes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 13B8t:t

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefttion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deemds tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ Rob Colligar

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Office
May 11, 201t



